VOLUME IV: 2019/2020 ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audited 2019/2020 Annual Financial Statements will now follow for the next 135 pages.
Drakenstein Municipality received an unqgualified audit opinion from the Auditor-General for
the 2019/2020 financial year.
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General Information

Executive mayor and chairperson of mayoral commitee

Portfolio
EXECUTIVE MAYOR AND CHAIRPERSON OF MAYORAL
COMMITTEE

DEPUTY EXECUTIVE MAYOR & MAYORAL COMMITTEE
MEMBER OF FINANCE PORTFOUIO COMMITTEE,
CHAIRPERSON FINANCE COMMITTEE

MAYORAL COMMITTEE MEMBER OF RURAL DEVELOPMENT

MAYORAL COMMITTEE MEMBER OF SOCIAL SERVICES

MAYORAL COMMITTEE MEMBER OF HUMAN SETTLEMENTS
AND PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

MIAYORAL COMMITTEE MEMBER OF ENVIRONMENT AND
OPEN SPACES

MAYORAL COMMITTEE MEMBER OF CORPORATE SERVICES

MAYORAL COMMITTEE MEMBER OF PUBLIC SAFETY

MAYORAL COMMITTEE MEMBER OF COMMUNICATION
AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

MAYORAL COMMITTEE MEMBER OF ENGINEERING SERVICES

MAYORAL COMMITTEE MEMBER OF PLANNING & ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM

MAYORAL COMMITTEE MEMBER OF RECREATION, ARTS
AND CULTURE

Executive management

Position
CITY MANAGER
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: CORPORATE SERVICES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ENGINEERING SERVICES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: COMMUNITY SERVICES

Members of the Audit Commitee

CHAIRPERSON
MEMBER
MEMBER
MEMBER

Councillor
Ci POOLE

GC COMBRINK

MA ANDREAS
E GOUWS

L CYSTER
C KEARNS

LP MOKOENA
R SMUTS

RH VAN NIEUWENHUIZEN

JF LE ROUX

I MILLER

LT VAN NIEKERK

Name
DR JH LEIBBRANDT

MR J CARSTENS (FROM JULY 2019 UP UNTIL MARCH 2020)
MR B BROWN {FROM JUNE 2020)

MR S JOHAAR

MS L WARING Y Y
. >

MR M WUST .
MR G ESAU ‘ )

A UVUDITOR GENERAL
SOWUTH AFRICA
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Name

MS K MONTGOMERY
MR R NAJIAAR

MR R NICHOLLS

MR C WHITTLE
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General information

Council members

Nr Surname Initials Nr Surname Initials
1 ADRIAANSE MM 34 MATTHEE HIN
2 AFRIKA AF 35 MBENENE NP
3 ANDERSON w 36 MOUNUSIE MN
4 ANDREAS MA 37 MEYER wWeD
5 ARNOLDS RB 38 MILLER J

& BEKEER A 39 MOKOENA LP
7 BESTER TG 40 MPULANYANA TR
3 BLANCKENBERG Ds 41 NELL RH
9 BOOYSEN vC 42 NIEHAUS Lw
10 BUCKLE AML 43 NOBULA MD
11 COMBRINK GC 44 NOMANA-NQORO T2
12 CUPIDO FP 45 NZELE LV
13 CUPIDO P8A 46 POOLE a
14 DAVIDS Cco 47 RENS sC
15 DE GOEDE HR 48 RICHARDS AM
16 DE WET J 49 RIX 8
17 DUBA 8P S0 ROSS 5
18 FORD GH 51 SAMBOKWE LS
19 GEORGE NN 52 SAUERMAN ND
20 GOUWS E 53 SEPTEMBER SE
21 JACOBS F 54 SMIT J

22 JONAS SX 55 SMIT * WE
23 KEARNS C 56 SMUTS R
24 KLAAS MT 57 SOLOMONS EA
25 KOEGELENBERG RA 58 STOWMAN AC
26 KOTZE HI 59 VAN NIEKERK LT
27 KROUTZ C 60 VAN NIEUWENHUVZEN RH
28 LANDU L 61 VAN SATEN AJ
29 LE HOE MJ 62 VIKA [\
30 LE ROUX IF 63 WILLEMSE L
31 LUGQOLA A 64 WINDVOGEL £
32 MANGENA TC 65 ZIKHALI N
33 MASOKA ZL

* Councillor Smit has passed away on 8 March 2020 The seat in Council is still vacant to date
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General Information

Legal form of entity

Nature of business and principal activities

Legistation governing the municipality's operations

Other information
Executive Mayor
Executive Deputy Mayor
Speaker

Registered head office

Physical address

Postal address

Telephone
Fax

Bankers

Auditors

Demarcation code

MUNICIPALITY IN TERMS OF SECTION 1 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT:
MUNICIPAL STRUCTURES ACT {ACT 117 OF 1998) READ WITH SECTION 155

(1

OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE REFUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA (ACT 108 OF

1596)

THE PROVISION OF SERVICES {ELECTRICITY, WATER, SANITATION AND
REFUSE) TO COMMUNITIES IM A SUSTAINABLE MANNER, TO PROMOTE
SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AND TO PROMOTE A SAFE AND

HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT

CONSTITUTION OF THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA {ACT 108 OF 1938)
LOCAL GOVERNMENT MUNICIPAL FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT (ACT NO .56

OF 2003)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT MUNICIPAL SYSTEMS ACT (ACT 32 OF 2000)
LOCAL GOVERNMENT: MUNICIPAL STRUCTURES ACT (ACT 117 OF 1998|

MUNICIPAL PROPERTY RATES ACT (ACT OF 6 2004)
DIVISION OF REVENUE ACT (ACT 1 OF 2007)

COUNCILLOR CJ POOLE
COUNCILLOR GC COMBRINK
COUNCILLOR AC STOWMAN

DRAKENSTEIN MUNICIPALITY
CIVIC CENTRE

BERG RIVER BOULEVARD
PAARL

7646

CIVIC CENTRE

BERG RIVER BOULEVARD
PAARL

7646

POBOX1
PAARI
7622

{021) 807 - 4500
{021} 872 - 8054

FIRST NATIONAL BANK
REFER TO NOTE 12
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 june 2020

Accounting Officer's Statement

The accountng Officer is required by the Municipad Finange KManagement Act {Act 56 of 2003}, to maintain adequate accounting records
and 1s responsible for the content and integrity of the audited annual financial statements and refated financial information included in this
report 1t ss the responstnbity of the Accounting Officer to ensure that the audited annual financial staternents fairly present the state of
affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the resubts of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The
external auditors are engaged 1o express an independent epinion on the sudited annual financal statements and was given unrestricted
access to all financial records and relsted data.

The audited annual finanoiat staterments were prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accaunting Prachice {GRAP,
as well as relevant interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by theAccounting Standards 8oard

The audiied annual financial statements are based upon appropriaie aceounting policies cansistently applied and supported by reascnable
and prudent judgements and estimates

, as the Accaunting Officer {accounting authonity) acknowledges that f am ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control
sstablished by the municipality and place considerable importance on maintaining s strong control environment. To enable me to meet
these responsibilitias, | have set standards for internal contral aimed at reducing the nisk of errar or deficit in a cost effective manner. The
standards include the proper detegation of responsibilities within & clearly defined frameworh, effective accounting procedures and
adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of nsk. These controls are monitored throughout the muricipatity and all
employees are required Lo maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the mumcipality’s business is conducted in @ manner that in all
reasonable circumstances i above reproach. The focus of risk management in the municipality is on identfying, assessing, managing and
monitoring all known forms of risk across the municipatity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavours to
minimise it by ensuring thai appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and zthical behaviour aie applied and managed within
predetesrminad procedures and constraints.

| am of the opinion, based an the information and explanations given Dy management, that the system of internal conirol pravides
reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the audited annual financial statements However,
any system of interna! financial cantrol can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement ordefot

| certfy that the remuneration, allowances and benefits of councitloss as disclosed in nate 39 to these audited annual financial staternents
are within the upper Lmits of the framewaork envisaged in section 212 of the Constiution of the Republic of South Afnca, read with the
Hernunaration of Public Office Bearers &t Act 20 of 1998 and the fdinister of Provincial and Local Goverrment's determination in
accordance vath the Act

ihe audited annual financizl statements set out on pages 7 to 127, w terms of Section 125{1) of the Murugipal Finance Management Act
{Act Mo 55 of 2003), which have heen prepared on the going concern batus and whichl have signed on behaif of the rounicipahity on

31 October 2020
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Abbreviations

DBSA

GRAP

LGSETA

MSIG

NOPG

SRAC

FNS

oM

Development Bank of South Africa

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

Municipal System Improvement Grant
Neighbourhood Development And Partnership Grant
Sports, Recreation, Arts and Culture

First National Bank

Drakenstein Municipality

Local Government Services Sector Education and Training Authority
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2020

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2020

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2020 2019
Restated*
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 6,126,283,233 6,062,923,816
Heritage assets 4 41,223,700 41,223,700
Intangible assets 5 5,267,756 5,792,294
Investment property 6 39,558,200 37,740,000
Investmernits 7 82,298 124,967
Non-current receivables from exchange transactions 8 328,805 834,851
6,212,743,992 6,148,639,628
Current Assets
inventories 9 26,336,815 25,326,036
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 10 318,042,113 271,757,059
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 11 108,013,380 71,830,585
Cash and cash equivalents 12 77,549,461 65,853,591
Current portion of long-term receivables 13 104,778 150,118
VAT control 18 755,447
530,801,994 434,917,389
Total Assets 6,743,545,986 6,583,557,017
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 14 1,636,956,881 1,446,315,653
Finance lease habilities 15 1,440,194 2,570,530
Employee benefits 16 178,123,001 169,980,001
Provisions 17 168,950,709 191,848,889
1,985,470,785 1,810,715,073
Current Liahitities
Consumer deposits 19 52,606,653 57,004,529
Payables from exchange transactions 20 387,805,023 330,633,050
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 21 29,951,738 30,584,732
Borrowings 14 19,681,848 184,388,046
Finance {ease habilities 15 1,717,999 2,657,091
VAT control 18 - 4,147,555
Employee benefits 16 101,422,537 82,362,109
593,185,798 691,777,112
Total Liabilities 2,578,656,583 2,502,492,185
Net Assets 4,164,889,403 4,081,064,332
Net assets presented by:
Housing development fund 22 22,000,754 16,788,195
Reserves and funds 23 1,451,197,728 1,480,380,383
Accumulated surplus 24 2,691,690,921 2,583,896,254

Total Net Assets

4,164,889,403

4,081,064,832

.

* See Note 49
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2020 2019
Restated*
Revenue
Exchange revenue
Services charges - Electricity 25 1,171,403,016 1.019,090,079
Services charges - Water 25 163,949,277 167,819,935
Services charges - Waste water management 25 116,383,957 95,320,699
services charges - Waste management 25 124,369,960 101,138,834
sales of goods and rendering of services 26 12,754,384 16,001,550
Rertal from fixed assets 27 15,991,036 9,545,827
Interest on investments 28 6,140,446 14,208,454
Mividends 29 12,600 15,120
Interest on receivables 30 6,421,577 9,574,993
Operational revenue 31 4,266,744 9,309,023
Licences or permits 32 20,240,886 17,643,029
Gain on disposal of assets 33 3,948,433
Total exchange revenue 1,641,933,883 1,463,615,976
Non-exchange revenue
Property rates 34 311,891,563 271,147,341
Surcharges and taxes 852,305 1.339,281
Fines, penalties and farfeits 35 82,126,344 75,253,291
Transfers and subsidies 36 369,372,055 345,844,572
Operational revenue 31 2,368,493 14,369,654
Construction contract revenue 37 2,339,190 1,562,469
Total non-exchange revenue 768,949,950 709,516,608
Total revenue 2,410,883,833 2,173,132,584
Expenditure
Employee related cost 38 667,786,183 660,153,716
Remuneration of councillors 39 31,026,999 29,945,187
Depreciation and amortisation 40 215,723,756 211,287,600
impairment losses on financial assets 41 153,488,029 105,608,248
Imparment losses on PPE, 1A and HA 42 293,482 1,006,785
Finance costs 43 178,731,085 158,386,287
Bulk purchases 44 778,451,728 678,014,058
Inventory consumed 55,892,033 57,697,249
Contracted services 45 147,272,713 150,775,744
Transfers and subsidies 16,656,763 22,656,356
Operational cost 46 63,978,989 74,912,004
Operating leases 47 16,995,086 31,746,286
Loss on disposal of assets 33 513,853
Total expenditure {2,326,810,699) {2,182,195,521})
Surplus (deficit) from operations 84,073,134 {9,062,937)
- .

* See Note 49

AUBITOR-0GENERAL
EOUTH AFRITA

Audiing fo build public canfidence
% A - B Waech 200"

335



Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 june 2020

Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2020 2019
Restated*
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Property rates 304,627,875 278,607,588
Service charges 1,433,699.115 1,320,726,578
Transfers, subsidies and construction contracts revenue received 303,917,244 298,421,267
Interest 12,562,023 23,783,447
Dividends 12,600 15,120
Fines and other receipts 85,123,133 54,837,946
Net VAT received 52,267,649
Payments
Employees {671,609,754) (654,884,120}
Suppliers {1,025,475,768) (977,171,200}
interest paid {121,389,064} (144,220,983}
Net VAT paid (4,903,001}
Net cash from(used) operating activities a8 316,564,403 252,383,292
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts
Proceeds on disposal of fixed and intangible assets 2,793,032 33,539,652
Increase in non-current receivables 551,386 534,007
ncrease in investments 37,329
Payments
Capital assets {269,566,985) {585,566,146)
Net cash flows from investing activities (266,185,238} {551,092,587)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts
Increase in short-term loans (2,792,179}
Increase in borrowing long-terrn 126,072,992
Increase in consumer deposits 12,182,156
Payments
Decrease in short term loans {3,313,269)
Decrease in borrowing long-term (30,972,150}
Decrease in consumer deposits {4,397,876)
Net cash flows from financing activities {38,683,295) 135,462,369
Net increase/(decrease) in cash 11,695,870 {163,246,326)
Cash and cash equivalents at year begin 65,853,591 229,099,917
77,549,461 65,853,591
o
‘_‘-‘_
* See Note 49 L :
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 june 2020

Statement of changes in net assets

Housing Revaluation Accumulated Total net assets
development reserve surplus

Figures in Rand fund
Opening balance as previously reported 20,527,483 1548084,421 2,509,655,396 4,078,267,300
Adjustments
Correction of errors * [33,395,639) 43,957,695 10,562,056
Batance at 01 July 2018 as restated* 20,527,483 1,514,688,781 2,553,613,091 4,088,829,355
{Deficit) for the year - - {9,062,937} {9,062,937)
Asset disposals - {5,121,475} 5,121,475 -
Transfer to Housing Development Fund {3,739,288) 3,066,820 (672,468)
Offsetting of depreciation > {(29,186,923) 29,186,923 o
Total changes {3,739,288) (34,308,398} 28,312,281 (9,735,405}
Restated* Balance at 01 July 2019 16,788,195 1,480,380,382 2,581,925,398 4,079,093,975
Surplus for the year - - 84,073,134 84,073,134
Transfer to Housing Development Fund 5,212,558 . {5,461,144) {248,585}
Offsetting of depreciation - (29,182,654} 29,182,654 .
Total changes 5,212,555 {29,182,654) 107,794,644 83,824,549
Balance at 30 June 2020 22,000,754 1,451,197,728 2,689,720,042 4,162,918,524
MNotefs) 22 23 24

"
4

* See Note 49
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for the year ended 30 June 2020

Original budget *Budget final **Shifting of  ***Virement
adjustments  adjustments funds
Figures in Rand budget

Final budget Actual ot

Commentary

For detail variances between the budget and the actual amounts please, refer to note 67
*budget adjustments done in terms of section 28 and section 31 of the MFMA

**shifting of funds done tn terms of section 31 of the MFMA

***yirement in terms of Council Approve Policy, virements must offset each other so that virements in Total Expenditure column equals

Zero
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

These audited annua! financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), 1ssued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance Management Act
{Act 56 of 2003}

The audited annual financial statements were prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and incorporate the historical cost conventions
as the basts of measurement, except where specified otherwise

in the absence of an issued and effective Standards of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions were
developed in accordance with GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5. Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where
offsetting 15 either required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP

The principal accounting policies, applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements, are set out below. These accounting policies
are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the prior year annual financial statements, unless specified otherwise Details of any
changes in the accounting policies are provided in the notes on changes in accounting policies

1.  Summary of significant accounting policies

These standards are summarised as follows

Reference Description

GRAP Framework Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statements
GRAP 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

GRAP 2 Cash Flow Statements

GRAP 3 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
GRAP 4 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

GRAP 5 Borrowing Costs

GRAP 6 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

GRAP 7 Investment in Associates

GRAP 8 Investment in Joint Ventures

GRAP 9 Revenue from Exchange Transact:ons

GRAP 10 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

GRAP 11 Construction Contracts

GRAP 12 Inventories

GRAP 13 Leases

GRAP 14 Events After the Reporting Date

GRAP 16 lnvestment Property

GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment

GRAP 19 Prowisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

GRAP 20 Related Party Disclosures {Revised)

GRAP 21 Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets

GRAP 23 Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
GRAP 25 Employee Benefits

GRAP 26 impairment of Cash-generating Assets

GRAP 27 Agriculture

GRAP 31 Intangible Assets

GRAP 32 Service Concession Arrarigement Grantor

GRAP 100 Discontinued Operations

GRAP 103 Heritage Assets

GRAP 104 Financial Instruments

GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables

GRAP 109 Accounting by Principals and Agents

FRS 4 Insurance contracts

AS 12 Income taxes

IGRAP 1 Applying the probabie test on initial recognition of revenue
IGRAP 2 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities
GRAP 3 Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a lease (5 W
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Accounting Policies

1.  Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

IGRAP 4 Rights to Interest Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental
Rehabilitation Funds

IGRAP 5 Applying the Restatement Approach under the Standard of GRAP on Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

IGRAP B Loyalty Programmes

IGRAP 7 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and ther interaction

IGRAP 8 Agresrments for the construction of Assets from Exchange Transactions

IGRAP 9 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IGRAP 10 Assets Received from Customers

IGRAP 11 Consolidations — Special Purpose Entities

IGRAP 12 lointly Controlled Entities - Non-monetary Contributions by Ventures

IGRAP 13 Operating Leases — incentives

IGRAP 14 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions involving the Legal Form of a Lease

IGRAP 15 Revenue - Barter Transactions tnvolving Advertising Services

IGRAP 16 Intangible Assets - Website Costs

IGRAP 17 Service Concession Arrangements Where a Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest
in an Asset

IGRAP 18 Recognition and Derecognition of Land

IGRAP 19 Liabiities to Pay Levies

IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements

SIC 25 Income taxes - Changes in the status of an enterprise or its sharehoiders

5IC 29 Disclosure service concession

Directive 1 Repeal of existing transitional provisions in, and consequential amendments to, standards of GRAP

Directive 3 Transitional provisions for high capacity municipabties

Directive 5 Determine the GRAP reporting framework

Directive 7 The Application of Deemed Cost

Directive 11 Changes in the Measurement Bases Following the Initial Adoption of the Standards of GRAP

Guidetine Accounting for Arrangements Undertaken i.t.o the National Housing Programme

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared using the direct methad, whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments are
disclosed.

Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by the above GRAP standards have been devefoped in
accordance with GRAP 3. Where required, accounting policies were developed for standards of GRAP that have been issued by the
Accounting Standards Board, but for which an effective date have not been determined by the Minister of Finance.

1.1 New standards and interpretations
Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the municipality has adopted the foltowing standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financiat year
and that are relevant to its operations:

GRAP 20 on Related Party Disclosures is effective for the reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019. GRAP 20 identifies disclosures
necessary for the users of the audited annual financial statements to consider the impact [if any) that transactions and outstanding
balances with related parties have on the municipality’s surplus or deficit and financial position. The municipality has already based its
accounting policies and disclosures on this standard, and there is therefare no further impact on the audited annual financial statements
when this standard becomes effective.

GRAP 32 on Service Concession Arrangements Grantor is effective for the reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019 GRAP 32
prescribes the accounting for service concession arrangements by the granter {a municipality] The municipality has not entered into any
service concession arrangements to date and will therefore not be immediately affected by the Standard when it becomes effective

GRAP 108 on Statutory Receivables is effective for the reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019. GRAP 108 prescribes the
accounting requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of receivables that arise from legisiation,
supporting regulation for similar means and require settlement by anather entity in cash or another financial asset. The municipality has
already based its accounting policies and disclosures on this standard, and there is therefore no further impact on the financial statgments
when this standard becomes effective. "':s‘&
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Accounting Policies

1.1. New standards and interpretations (continued)

GRAP 109 on Accounting by Principals and Agents 1s effective for the reporting periods beginning on or after 1 july 2013. GRAP 109 outhnes
principles to be used in assessing whether the municipality is a party to a principal-agent arrangement, and whether itis a principai or an
agent in undertaking transactions in terms of such arrangement. The apphcation of this standard will require additional disclosures, as
prescribed, when effective.

GRAP 17 on Service Concession Arrangements is effective for the reporting penods beginning on or after 1 july 2019 This interpretation
has no impact on the mumnicipality as it has not entered into any service concession arrangements

IGRAP 18 on Recognition and Derecognition of Land is effective for the reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019, This
Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP appiies to the initial recognition and derecognition of land in the audited annual financial
statements of the municipality. 1t also considers joint control of land by more than one entity. As this Interpretation of the Standards of
GRAP does not apply to the classification, initial and subsequent measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements of land, the
municipality applies the applicable Standard of GRAP to account for the land once control of the land has been determined. The
municipality also applies the applicable Standards of GRAP to the derecognition of land when it concludes that it does not control the land
after appiying the principles in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP

IGRAP 19 on Liabilities to Pay Levies is effective for the reporting perieds beginning on or after 1 July 2019, This Interpretation of the
Standards of GRAP provides guidance on the accounting for levies in the audited annual financial statements of the municipality that is
paying the levy It clarifies when entities need to recognise a liability to pay a levy that is accounted for in accordance with GRAP 19

Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these audited annual financial statements, the following GRAP Standards (including Interpretations and
irectives) have been issued, but are not yet effective for the year presented and have not been early adopted by the municipality

GRAP 18 on Segment Reporting 15 effective for the reparting periods begmning on or after 1 July 2020 GRAP 18 establishes principles for
the reporting of financial information by segments The mumcipality has early adopted this Standard in current reporting period

GRAP 110 on Living and Non-Living Resources is effective for the reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2020 GRAP 110 prescribes
the recogrition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements for living resources as well as disclosure requirements for non
living resources. The application of this standard will not have a material impact on the audited annual financial statements of the
municipality when effective

All other standards as listed above will only be effective on the date it is announced by the Minister of Finance

The ASB Directive 5 sets out the principles for the application of the GRAP 3 guidelines in the determination of the GRAP Reporting
Framework hierarchy, as set out in the standard of GRAP 3 on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Where a standard of GRAP is approved as effective, it replaces the equivalent statement of international Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board or, Internationat Financial Reporting Standards. Where a standard of GRAP has been issued, but is not in effect, an entity
may select to apply the principies established in that standard in developing an appropriate accounting policy dealing with a particutar
section or event before applying the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Management has considered all of the above-mentioned GRAP standards issued but not effective and anticipates that the adoption of
these standards will not have a sigmificant impact on the financial position, financial performance or cash flows of the municipality
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Accounting Policies

1.2 Presentation currency

These audited annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which 15 the functional currency of the municipality and al
values are rounded to the nearest Rand.

1.3 Going concern assumption

These audited annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipality will continue to operate
as a going concern for at least the next 12 months

1.4 Offsetting

Financial assets and habilities are offset and the net amount reported on the Statement of Finanoial Position only when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amount, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

1.5 Comparative of actual information to budgeted information
Current year comparatives

The annual budget figures have been prepared in accordance with the GRAP standard and are consistent with the accounting pohcies
adopted by the Council for the preparation of these audited annual financial statements. The amounts are scheduled as a separate
additional financial statement, called the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts Explanatory comment is provided in the
notes to the audited annual financial statements giving motivations for over- or under spending on line items where it is found to be
material. The annual budget figures included in the audited annual financral statements are for the Municipality and do not include budget
information relating to subsidiartes or asscciates. These figures are these approved by the Council at the beginming and during the year
following a period of consultation with the public as part of the Integrated Development Plan. The budget 1s approved an an accrual basis
by nature classification. The approved budget covers the period from 01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020

in general, a difference of 10% or more 15 considered matenal, although the surrounding circumstances are taken into account if it could
influence the decisions or assessments of the users of the audited annual financial statements in determining whether a difference between
the budgeted and actual amount is material

Prior year comparatives

The comparative figures of one prior period 15 disclosed. When the presentation or classification of items 1n the audited annual financia
statements is amended, prior period comparative amounts are reclassified. The nature and reasons for the reclassification are disclosed

1.6 Housing development fund
The Housing Development Fund was established in terms of the Housing Act [Act No. 107 of 1997)
Housing devetopment fund

Sections 15{5} and 16 of the Housing Act, 1997 {Act 107 of 1997|, which came into operation on 1 April 1998, requires that the municipality
maintain a separate housing operating account. This legislated separate cperating account will be known as the Housing Development
Fund.

The Housing Act also requires in terms of Section 14(4)(d}{iii){aa) read with, inter alia, Section 16(2} that the net procteeds of any letting,
sale of property or alienation, financed previously from government housing funds, be paid into a separate operating account and be
utilised by the municipality for housing development, development in accordance with the National Housing Policy

The following provisions are set for the creation and utilisation of the Housing development fund
. The proceeds in this fund are utilised for housing development in accordance with the National Housing Policy, and also for
heusing development projects approved by the National Minister of Human Settlements
» Any contributions to or from the fund must be shown as transfers in the Statement of changes in net assets.
. Interest earned on the investments backing up this fund must be recorded as part of interest earned in surplus or deficit for the
year in the Statement of Financial Performance.
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Accounting Policies

1.6 Housing development fund {continued)
Un-realized housing proceeds

In order to comply with Section 14{41{d){1} and (11} of the Housing Act, {Act 107 of 1997) where all net proceeds need to be paid into the
Housing Development Fund, it was necessary to create a holding account which represents the un-realized funds due by long-term housing
seling schemes and sponsored loan debtors. This account s reduced when debtors are bitled for their payment.

1.7 Revaluation reserve
Revaluation reserve

The surplus arising from the revaluation of land and buiddings 15 credited to a nondistributable reserve. The revaluation surplus 1s reahised as
re-valued buildings are depreciated, through a transfer from the revaluation reserve to the accumulated surplus / (deficit). On disposal, the
net revaluation surplus is transferred to the accumulated surplus / (deficit) while gains or losses on disposal, based on re-valued amounts
are credited or charged to the Statement of Financial Performance

1.8 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the mumcipality has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the provision can
be made

The best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation is the amount that an entity would rationally pay to settle the
obligation at the reporting date or to transfer it to a third party at that time and are determined by the judgment of the management of the
entity, supplemented by experience of similar transactions and, in some cases, reports from independent experts The evidence considered
includes any additional evidence provided by events after the reporting date. Uncertainties surrounding the amount to be recognised as a
provision are dealt with by various means according to the circumstances, where the provision being measured involves a large population
of items, the obhigation 1s estimated by weighting ali possible outcomes by their associated probabiities

future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective ewvidence that they will occur. Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account in measuring a
provision. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses The present obligation under an onerous contract is recognised and
measured as a provision, An onerous contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting
from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it - this
unavardable cost resufting from the contract is the amount of the provision to be recognised

Provisions are reviewed at reporting date and the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be reguired to
settle the obiigation. When the effect of discounting is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
that refiect current market assessments of the time value of money The impact of the periodic unwinding of the discount is recognised in
the Staternent of Finanaial Performance as a finance cost as 1t occurs

Environmental rehabilitation provisions

Estimated long-term environmental provisions, compnsing rehabiitation and landfill site ciosure, are based on the Mumicipality's policy,
taking into account current technological, environmental and regulatory requirements. The prowision for rehabilitation is recognised as and
when the environmental hability arises. To the extent that the obligations relate to the asset, they are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Any subsequent changes to an obligation that did not relate to the initial related asset are charged to the Statement of
Financial Performance

1.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during mare than one year

The cost of anitem of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will flow to the municipality, and if the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably

=
e

>
18 \j

A UDITOR-GENERAL
SOUTH AFRI|CA

Audinng fo buid public confidence
£ A - B March 202!

345
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Accounting Policies

1.9 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are mitially recognised at cost on its acquisition date. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
1s the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the lacation and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by the municipality. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. The cost also includes the
necessary costs of dismantling and removing the asset and restaring the site on which it is located

Where an asset is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal consideration (i e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be
equal to the fair value of that asset on the date acquired.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired in exchange for a non-monetary assets or monetary assets, or 3 combination
of monetary and non-monetary assets is measured at the fair value of the asset given up, unless the fair value of the asset received is more
clearly evident. if the acquired item could not be measured at its fair value, its cost is measured at the carrying amount of the asset given

up

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items {major components) of property, plant and equipment

Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the muaicipality expects to use them during
more than one period. Simifarly, if the major spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an item of property.
plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment

Subsequent measurement - cost model

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefils or potentral
service delivery associated with the subsequent expenditure will flow to the municipality and the cost or fair value of the subsequent
expenditure can be reliably measured. Subsequent expenditure incurred on an asset is only capitalised when it increases the capacity or
future economic benefits associated with the asset. Where the municipality replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset
being replaced and capitalises the new component.

Subsequently all property, plant and equipment, excluding land and buildings, are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent measurement — revaiuation model

subsequent to initial recognition, land and buildings are carried at a revalued amount based on municipal valuations, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revalvations are performed by external independent values
every four years to coincide with the implementation of the general valuation such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset

An increase in the carrying amount of land and buildings as a result of a revaluation is credited directly to a revaluation surplus reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit.

A decrease in the carrying amount of an asset as a result of a revaluation is recognised in surplus or defiot, except to the extent of any
credit batance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Where items of property, plant and equipment have been impaired. the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss, which is
recognised as an expense in the period that the impairment is identified except where the impairment reverses a previous revaluation

When revalued assets are sold or retired, the amounts included in the revaluation reserve in respect of that assets, are transferred to
accurnulated surplus or deficit.

Compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up is included in surplus or
deficit when the compensation becomes receivable
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Accounting Policies

1.9 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated as it is regarded as having an unlimited life Depreciation on assets other than land 1s calculated using the straght
line method, to allocate thewr cost or revalued amounts less their residual values over the estimated useful lives of the assets The
depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the assets’ future economic benefits or service potential are expected to be
consurmed by the municipality. Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item 1s depreciated separately. The depreciation rates are based on the following estimated useful lives

Asset class Useful lives as applied in the Asset Register [years)
Infrastructure

¢ Roads and storm water 5-100
. Electricity 5-75
O Water 5-100
. Sewerage 5-100
J Solid Waste 5-100
Buildings, structures and facilities

. Buildings 10-50
4 Recreational and sports facilities 5-100
. Parks, gardens and cemeteries 5-100
) Housing assets 10-50
Other assets

. Transport assets 5-20
. Computer and other office equipment 3-10
. Furniture and fittings 5-10
. Machinery and equipment 5-10

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed annually at the end of the financial year where there is any
ndication that the entity's expectations about the residual amount and the useful life of an asset has changed since the preceding reporting
date Any adjustments anising from the annual review are applied prospectively

Assets under construction are carned at cost. Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is ready for its intended use. Assets held
under finance leases are deprec:ated over thewr expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or, where shorter, the term of the

retevant lease
De-recognition of property, plant and equipment

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or
service potenttal are expected from its use or disposal

Ihe gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is
desecognised. Gains are not classified as revenue

Gains or losses are calculated as the difference between the carrying values of assets (Cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses) and the disposal proceeds is included in the Statement of Financial Performance as a gain or loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment.
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Accounting Policies

1.10 Intangible assets

Intangtble assets are identifiable non—-monetary assets without physical substance held for use in the production or supply of goods ar
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes are classified and recognised as intangible assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. The cost of an intangible assets is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring
the intangible assets to the location and condition necessary for i to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the municipality,
or where an intangible assets is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, the cost shall be its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Intangible assets acquired separately or internally generated are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Subsequent measurement

Amartisation is calculated on cost, using the straight-line method, over the useful lives of the assets, which is estimated to be between 3 to
10 years upon initial recognition. Where intangible assets are deemed to have an indefinite useful life, such intangbie assets are not

amortised

ntangible assets are annually tested for impairment and the estimated useful life, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed
annually at the end of the financial year. Any adjustments arising fram the annual review are applied prospectively.

Derecognition

intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service potential
expected from the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible assets is determined as the
difference between the net disposals proceeds and the carrying value and is recogmsed in the Statement of Financial Performance

1.11 Investment property

Investment property includes property (land or a building, or part of a building, or both land and buildings held under a finance lease) held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, rather than held to meet service delivery objectives, the production or supply of goods or
services, or the sale of an asset in the ordinary course of operations Investment property also includes land held for an undetermined
future use

Initial recognition

At initial recognition, the municipality measures investment property at cost including transaction costs once it meets the definition of
investment property. However, where an investment property was acquired through a non-exchange transaction {i.e. where it acquired the
investment property for no or a nominal value), its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition

Where the classification of an investment property is based on management's judgement, the following criteria have been applied to
distinguish investment properties from owner-occupied property or property held for resale:

. Al properties held to earn market-related rentals or for capital appreciation or both and that are not used for administrative
purposes and that will not be sold within the next 12 months are classified as investment properties,

» Land held for a currently undetermined future use,

. A building owned (or held by under a finance lease) and leased out under one or more operating leases;

. Leased properties that are held to provide a social (community) service or that are necessary for employees to perform their job
functions, but which also generates rental revenue are not seen as investment properties. The rental revenue generated is
incidental to the purposes for which the property is held,

. A buitding that ts vacant but is held to be leased out under one or more operating leases,

. Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property
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Accounting Policies

1.11 tnvestment property (continued]
Subsequent measurement - fair vatue model

Investment property is subsequently measured using the fair value model. Investment property 15 carned at fair value, representing open
market value determined by an external valuer on reporting date Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. A gain or loss arising from a change i the fair value of investment
property is included in surplus or deficit for the period in which it anises

If the municipality determines that the fair value of an investment property under construction is not relably measurable but expects the
fair value to be reliably measurable when construction is completed, it measures that investment property at cost until the fair value can be
reltably determined or construction has been completed

Where the municipality has determined that the fair value of an investment property {other than nvestment property under construction)
s not determinable on a continuing basis, the municipality measures that investment property using the cost model (as per the accounting
policy for property, plant and equipment)

Derecognition/Disposal

nvestment properties are derecognised (ehminated from the Statement of financial posibion) on disposal or when the investment property

is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposal The gain or loss
arising on the disposal of an investment property is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.12 Heritage assets

A hentage asset is defined as an asset that has a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological ar artistic significance,
and is held and preserved indefinitety for the benefit of present and future generations

The mumicipality classifies assets as heritage assets where the significance as a hentage asset can be determined. In regards to land and
buildings all graded sites are classified heritage assets. Furthermore land with a natural significance is not componentised but seen as a
single heritage asset due to all parts contributing together to make up its significance

GRAP 103 requires that fand and buildings that qualify as heritage asset, but of which a significant portion of that land and buildings is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes, are recognised as property, plant and equipment,
rather than heritage asset

Initial recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of hentage assets is recognised as an asset if, and only «f it 1s probable that future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the item will flow to the municipality, and if the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably

Heritage assets are smtially recognised at cost on its acquisition date or in the case of assets acquired by grant or donation, deemed cost,
bemng the fair value of the asset on initial recognition The cost of an item of heritage assets is the purchase price and other costs
attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
municipality. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arnving at the cost. The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located

Where an asset 1s acquired by the mumicipality for no or norminal consideration {ie a non-exchange transaction), the cost 1s deemed to be
egual to the fair value of that asset on the date acquired

The cost of an item of heritage assets acquired in exchange for a non-monetary assets or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary
and non-monetary assets 1s measured at the fair value of the asset given up, unless the fair value of the asset received s more clearly
evident. If the acquired item could not be measured at its fair value, its cost is measured at the carrying amount of the asset given up
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1.12 Heritage assets [continued)
Subsequent measurement

Subsequent expenditure relating to heritage assets is capitalised if it ts probable that future economic benefits or potential service delivery
associated with the subsequent expenditure will flow to the municipality and the cost or fair value of the subsequent expenditure can be
rehably measured Subseguent expenditure incurred on an asset is only capitalised when it increases the capacity or future economic
benefits associated with the asset. Where the municipahity replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset being replaced
and capitalises the new component.

Subsequently al heritage assets {excluding heritage assets which are land and buildings) are measured at cast less accumulated imparrment
losses Heritage assets are not depreciated

Subsequent to initial recognitton, land and buildings which quatify as Heritage Assets are carried at a revalued amount based on municipal
valuations less subsequent accumulated impairment losses Revaluations are performed by external independent valuers every faur years
to coincide with the implementation of the general valuation such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair value at the Statement of Financial Positron date

De-recognition of heritage assets

The carrying amount of an item of heritage assets is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service potential are
expected from its use or disposal The gain or |oss arising from derecognition of an item of heritage assets is included in surplus or deficit
when the item is derecognised

Gains or losses are calculated as the difference between the carrying value of assets {cost less accumulated impairment losses} and the
disposal proceeds is included in the Statement of financial performance as a gain or loss on disposal of heritage assets

1.13 Inventory

Inventory consist of raw materials, work in progress, consumables and finished goods, which are valued at the lower of cost, determined on
the first in first out basis, and net realisable value, except for plants which are valued at the tariffs charged. Where itis held for distribution
or consumption at na charge or for a nominal amount, inventories are valued at the iower of cost and current replacement value

Cost of tnventory comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion, and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
lacation and condition

Redundant and slow moving inventary are identified and wnitten down to their estimated net realisable values estimated by management
Inventories are written down according to their age, condition and utility D:fferences arising on the measurement of such inveatory at the
lower of cost and net reslisable value are recognised In the Statement of financial performance in the year in which they arise. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories ansing from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs

The carrying amaunt of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that the inventory was sold, distributed, written off or
consumed, unless that cost qualifies for capitalisation to the cost of another asset

Water inventory

Water 15 regarded as inventory when the municipahty purchases water 1n bulk with the intention to resell it to the consumers or to use it
internally, or where the municipality has incurred purification costs on water obtaned from natural resources {rain, rivers, springs,
boreholes ete ). However, water in dams, that are filled by natural resources ard that has not yet been treated, and 1s under the contral of
the municipality but cannat be measured reliably as there is no cost attached to the water, and it is therefore not recognised in the
Statement of financral position

The basis of determiming the cost of water purchased and not yet sold at Statement of financial position date compnises all costs of
purchase, cost of conversion and other casts incurred in bringing the inventory to its present location and condition, net of trade discounts
and rebates

Water is valued by using the weighted average method, at the lowest of purified cost and net realisable value, insofar as it is stored and

controtled in reservoirs at year-end .
o .,
o %
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1.13 inventory (continued)
Land inventary for BNG housing projects
The ASB issued the guideline an Accounting for Arrangements Undertaken 1.t.0 the National Housing Programme

In terms of the guidelineg land currently controlled by the Municipaitty and recognised as either Property, plant and equipment or
Investment Property, that has been designated for the purposes of an BNG housing development - in terms of Council's approved housing
pipeline projects - meets the definition of inventary and requires reclassification to inventory

The municipality only reclassifies the portion of land that it would not control after entering into an arrangement with the provincial
Department of Human Settlernents, to inventory.

Once the township development is completed, revisions that may need to be made to the values of the land initially reclassified as
inventory is treated as a change in accounting estimate in terms of GRAP 3

The carrying amount of the land up until the date of reclassification, as determined in accordance with the accounting policy of Property,
plant and equipment or Investment groperty, is the cost amount on the date of reclassification

Land inventory is derecognised once an agreement has been entered into with the provincial Department of Human Settlement, that
passed control to the department

1.14 )mpairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and heritage assets

The municipality classifies all assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial return as cash-generating assets. A
commercial return means that the return charged by the entity is commensurate with the risk assoctated with holding the asset and the
asset1s intended to generate positive cash inflows All other assets are classified as non cash-generating assets

Impairment of :ash-generatirig assets

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impared If any such indication
exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable armount of the indwidual asset

If there 1s any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount s estimated for the individual asset If it 15 not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is
determined

The best evidence of fair value less cost to sell 1s the price in a binding sale agreement in an arm’s length transactron, adyusted for the
meremental cost that would be directly attributable to the disposal of the asset

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit 15 the higher of its fair value less costs to sefl and its value in use

Value in use of a cash-generating asset 1s the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the continuing
use of an asset and from its dispasal at the end of its useful life

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverabie
amount That reduction is an impairment ioss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in surplus or
deficit

Animpairment of assets carried at revalued amount reduces the revaluation surplus for that asset. The decrease shall be debited directly to
a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing i the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. An impairment loss is
recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amaunt of the unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit. The impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit

A municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for assets
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated
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1.14 Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and heritage assets {continued)

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying armount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit

Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
ewsts, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable service amount 15 estimated for the individual asset. f it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable service amount of the individual asset, the recoverable service amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs is determined

The recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash generating asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use
The value in use for a non-cash generating asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential

Fair value less costs ta sell is the arnount obtainable fror the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and
witling parties, lass the costs of disposal

H the recoverable service amount of an asset 1s less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
service amount. That reduction is an impairment loss

An impairment loss of assets carned at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amaortisation is recogmsed immediately in surplus or
deficit Anyimpairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease

A municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s any indication that an tmpairment loss recognised in prior periods for assets
may no fonger exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable service amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset it prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss of assets
carried at cost less accumnulated depreciation or amortisation Is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit Any reversal of an impairment
loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase

1.15 Employee benefits
The municipality provides short term benefits, long term benefits and retirement benefits for its employees and councillors
Short-term employee benefits

Remuneration to employees is recognised in the Statement of financial performance as the services are rendered, except for non-
accurnulating benefits which are only recognised when the specific event occurs

The costs of all short-term employee benefits such as leave pay, are recognised during the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

Post-empltoyment benefits: Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the municipality pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The municipality has no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to service m the current or prior periods

The municipality’s contributions to the defined contribution funds are established in terms of the rules governing those plans. Contributions
are recognised in the Statement of financial performance in the period in which the service is rendered by the relevant employees.
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1.15 Employee benefits (continued)
Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a plan that defines an amount of benefit that an empioyee will receive on retirement

The defined benefit llability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obfigation and unrecognised actuarial gains and
losses, reduced by unrecognised past service costs The plan is unfunded. The defined benefit obligation is calculated using the projected
unit credit method, incorporating actuarial assumptions and a discount rate based on the government bond rate Valuations of these
abligations are carried cut by independent qualified actuaries regularly, as may be required for fair presentation

Actuarial gains or losses recognised immediately in the Statement of financial performance.
Post-retirement health care benefits

The municipality has an obligation to prowide post-retirement health care benefits to certain of its retirees According to the rules of the
Medicat Aid Funds, with which the municipahty is associated, 2 member {who s on the current Conditians of Service), on retirement, is
entitled to remain a continued member of the Medical Aid Fund, in which case the municipality is liable for a certain portion of the medical
ard membership fee

The defined benefit habitity is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and unrecognised actuarial gains and
losses, reduced by unrecognised past service costs The plan is unfunded. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated
using the projected umit credit method, incorporating actuarial assumptions and a discount rate based on the government bond rate
Valuations of these obligations are carned out annually by independent qualified actuaries

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the employees
remaining in service for a specified period of time {the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a stra ght-line
basis over the vesting period

Ex-gratia pension benefits

The municipality provides pension and retirement gratuity benefits to certain employees who were in the employment of the former Paarl
and Wellington Municipality (now incorporated into the Drakenstein Municipality} at 31 Decernber 1994 [Paarl) and 31 March 1935
(Wellington) and still in the employment of Drakenstein Municipality at date of normal retirement, medical disability, retrenchment or
death. The gratuity is calculated on the salary benefits during 199471995

Long-service allowance

The municipality has an obligation to provide Long-service Allowance Benefits to all of its employees According to the rules of the Long-
service Allowance Scheme, which the municipality mstituted and operates, an employee (who is on the current Conditions of Service), is
entitied to a cash allowance, cafculated in terms of the rules of the scheme, after 10, 15, 24, 25 and 30 years of continued service, The
municipality’s hiabihity is based on an actuanial valuation The projected unit credit method has been used to value the liabikties. Actuarial
gains and losses on the fong-term incentives are accounted for through the Statement of financial performance

National- and provincially administered defined benefit ptans

The municipality contributes to various National- and Provincial-administered Defined Benefit Plans on behalf of its qualifying employees
The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against revenue in the year they becorme payable
These defined benefit funds are actvarially valued triennially on the projected unit credit method basis

Deficits are recavered through lump sum payments or increased future contributions on a proportional basis from all participating
muynicipalities

The mumapality does not apply defined benefit accounting ta the defined benefit funds to which it is 3 member where these funds are
classified in terms of the Standard of GRAP 25 on Employee Benefits as multi-employer plans. as sufficient information is not available to
apply the principals involved As a resuit, this standard of GRAP is applied and such funds are accounted for as defined contribution funds

Salaried personne! are members of the Cape loint Pension fund established in terms of the Local Authorities Pension Fund Ordinance, 1969
{Ordinance 23 of 1369). and the provisions of the Pension Fund Act, 1956 (Act 24 of 1956) or the SAMWNU National Pravident Fund
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1.15 Employee benefits [continued)

Leave pay

Liabilities for annual feave are recognised as they accrue to employees The hability is based on the total acerued leave days at year end and
is shown as an accrual in the Statement of financial position

Provision for bonus

The municipality recognises the expected cost of bonuses as a provision only when the municipality has a present legal or constructive
obligation to make such payment and a reliable estimate can be made at reporting date.

1.16 Leases

Lease classification

Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership of an asset are transferred to
the municipality. Leases of property, plant and equipment, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases

Municipality as lessee

Property, plant and equipment subject to finance lease agreements are capitalised at their cash cost equivalent. Corresponding hiabilities
are included in the Statement of financial position as Finance Lease Obligations. The cost of the item of property, plant and equipment is
depreciated at appropriate rates on the straight-line basis aver its estimated useful hfe Lease payments are allocated between the lease
finance cost and the capital repayment using the effective interest rate method. Lease finance costs are expensed when incurred

Operating leases are those leases that do not falt within the scope of the above definition. Operating lease rentals are recognised on the
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a habiiity. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is mare
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the feased asset are consumed

Municipality as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases or installment sale agreements are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
municipality's net investment in the leases. Finance lease or installment sale income s allocated to accounting periods so as ta reflect a
constant periodic rate of return an the municipality's net investment outstanding in respect of the ieases or instaliment sale agreements

Operating lease rental income is recogrised on a straight-line basis aver the term of the relevant lease

1.17 Borrowing costs

interest-bearing external loans and bank overdrafts are recorded net of direct issue costs Finance charges, including premiums payable,
are accounted for on an accrual basis Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs Subsequently, they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in Statement of Financial Performance in the period in which they are incurred
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1.18 Financial instruments

The municipality has various types of financial instruments and these can be broadly categorised as either Financial Assets or Financial
Liabilities

A financial instrument is recognised if the municipality becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument
1.18.1 Classification of financial instruments
financial assets

A financial asset is any asset that 1s a cash or contractual nght to receive cash In accordance with GRAP 104 the Financial Assets of the
municipality are classified as follows into the three categories allowed by this standard

Financial asset at amortised cost being a non-derivative financial asset with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months, which are classified as non-current assets

Financial assets measured at farr value being financial assets that meet either of the following conditions

U Derivatives;
. Combined instruments that are designated at fair value,
. Instruments held for trading,

. Non-derivative financial assets or financial habilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fawr value at
initial recogrition, or
. Financial instruments that do not meet the definstion of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial instruments at cost

Financial assets measured at cost being investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured

The mumicipality has the following types of financial assets as reflected on the face of the Statement of Financial Position or in the notes
thereto

Type of Financial Asset Classification in terms of GRAP 104
Finance Lease Receivables Financral assets at amortised cost
Long-term Recewvables Financia! assets at amortssed cost
Current portion of Long-term Recewvables Financial assets at amortised cost
Cansumer Debtors Financial assets at amortised cost
Qther Debtors Finanoial assets at amortised cost
Short-term Investment Deposits - Call Financial assets at amortised cost
Bank Balances and Cash Financial assets at amortised cost
Investments in stock - ESKOM Financial assets at fair value

Cash includes cash on hand (inciuding petty cash) and cash with banks {including call deposits). Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid
investments, readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities of three
months ar less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value For the purposes of the cash fiow statement, cash and cash
equivalents compnise cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, net of bank overdrafts The municipality categorises cash and cash
equivalents as financial assets at amortised cast

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity

The following main categories of Finanoial Liabilities and the classification determining how they are measured exist

{1 Financial liabilities measured at fair value, or
{if) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

AUDITOR-GEMNERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

Audiing to build publc confidence
KA §Maren 2021

355



Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Accounting Policies

1.18 Financial instruments {continued)

The municipality has the following types of financial liabilities as reflected on the face of the Statement of Financial Position or in the notes
thereto:

Type of Financial Liabilities Classification in terms of GRAP 104
Long term Liabilities Financial liability at amortised cost
QOther Creditors Financial habihty at amortised cost
Bank overdraft Financial liability at amortised cost
Short-term Loans Financial liability at amortised cost
Current portion of Long-Term Liabilities financial tiability at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are measured at fair value that are essentially held for trading {i.e. purchased with the intention to sell or
repurchase in the short term; derivatives other than hedging instruments or are part of a portfolio of financial mstruments where there is
recent actual evidence of short-term profiteering or are derivatives}

Any other financial liabilities should be classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost

Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utihsed. Finance charges on bank overdrafts are expensed as incurred
1.18.2 initial and subsequent measurement

Financial assets:

Financial asset at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset. Subsequently, these assets are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Method less any
impairment, with interest recognised on an effective yield basis

Trade and other recewvables (excluding Value Added Taxation, prepayments and operating lease receivables), loans to Municipality entities
and loans that have fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as financial asset at amortised
cost.

finanaial Assets measured at fair value are initially measured at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised directly in equity until the investment is derecogrised, at which time the
curnulative gain or loss recorded in equity is recognised in the statement of financial performance, or determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative loss recorded in equity is recogrised in the statement of financial performance

Financial liahilities:

Financial liabilities measured at fair value are stated at fair value, with any resulted gain or lass recognised in the Statement of financial
Performance

Any other financial liabilities classified at amortised cost (All payables, loans and borrowings are classified as other liabilities) and are
initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, Trade and other payables, interest bearing debt including finance lease liabilities,
non-interest bearing debt and bank barrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
Interest expense is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance by applying the effective interest rate

Bank borrowings, consisting of interest-bearing short-term bank loans, repayable on demand and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds
received. Finance costs are accounted for using the accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount of the bank borrowing to the extent
that they are not settled in the period that they arise.

Prepayments are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses

1.18.3 Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those measured at fair value, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence of impairment of Financial Assets (such as the probability of insolvency or

significant financial difficulties of the debtor). If there is such evidence the recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with GRAP 104. .
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1.18 Financial instruments (continued)

Trade receivables encompass long term debtors, consumer debtors and other debtors. A provision far impairment of trade receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the munictpality will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of recewables The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate

According to GRAP 104, the assessment for impairment needs to be made for each individual financial asset separately or for groups of
financial assets with similar credit risks. The following methodology was followed to make a provision for bad debts for the year under
review

Consumer debtars

Consumer debtors are assessed individually thereafter collectively, considering factors such as payment histories and ratigs, qualitative
factors e.g correspondence from attorneys, disputes about certain accounts, etc

Other debtors

Other debtors are reviewed individually considering payment histories and disputes about certain amounts Provision for impairment is
made accordingly.

Long term debtors

- Housing loans

The loans in this group are assessed by reviewing their payment histories and ratios Provision for impairment 1s made accordingly
- Other long term debtors

No provision for impairment is made for Other Long term Debtors, because it 1s envisaged that these debts will be fully recovered
Other financial assets at amortised cost are assessed individually for impairment

The carrying amount of the financial asset s reduced by the impairment foss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount s reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectable, it 1s written off agamnst the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the Statememt of Financial
Performance.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event Qccurfing
after the impairment was recogrised, the previously recognised impairment loss 15 reversed through the Statement of Financial
Perfarmance ta the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recogmised

1.18.4 De-recognition of financial assets

The municipality derecognises financ:al assets only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or 1t transfers the
financial asset and substantually all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity, except when Councit approves the
write-off of financial assets due te non-recoverablity

If the municipality neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the rmunicipality recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated lizbility for amounts it may have to pay. if the
municipality retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the municipality continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received

1.18.5 De-recognition of financial liabilities

The municipality derecognises financial hiabilities when, and only when, the municipality’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire
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1.19 Statutory receivables

Statutory receivables are recetvables that anse from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means, and require settlement by
another entity in cash or another financial asset

The municipality has the following major categories under the ambit of statutory receivables
. VAT receivables
. Rates debtors
. Traffic fine debtors
] Availability charges debtors
. Electricity,
. Water,
. Waste; and
) Waste water.

1.19.1 Recognition

The municipality recognises statutory receivables as follows

s if the transaction is an exchange transaction, using the policy on Revenue from exchange transactions,

. if the transaction 15 a non exchange transaction, using the policy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions (Taxes and
transfers); or

. if the transaction is not within the scope of the policies hsted in the above or another Standard of GRAP, the receivable i1s

recognised when the definition of an asset is met and, when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the asset will low to the entity and the transaction amount can be measured reliably

1.19.2 Measurement
The municipality initially measures statutory receivables at their transaction amount

The municipality measures statutory recewables after initial recognition using the cost methed. Under the cost method, the initial
measurement of the receivable 15 changed subsequent to initial recognition to reflect any interest or other charges that may have accrued
on the receivable, impairment losses and amounts derecognised

1.19.3 Impairment of statutory receivables

Statutory receivables, other than those measured at fair value, are assessed for indicators of impawrment at the end of each reporting
period Statutory recewvables are impaired where there is objective evidence of impairment of Statutory recewables (such as the probability
of msolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor} If there 1s such ewidence the recoverable amount is estimated and an

impairment toss is recogmsed in accordance with GRAP 108.

A provision for impairment of receivables 15 established when there is objective evidence that the mumicipality will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the prowision i1s the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate

Accarding to GRAP 108, the assessment for impairment needs to be made for each individual financial asset separately or for groups of
statutory receivables with similar credit risks The following methodology was followed to make a provision for bad debts for the year
under review

Rates and availability charge debtors

Rates debtors are assessed indwidually thereafter collectively. considering factors such as payment histones and ratios, qualitative factors
e g correspondence from attorneys, disputes about certain accounts, etc

Traffic fines debtors

Traffic fine debtars are reviewed collectively considering payment histories and disputes about certain amounts. Provision for impatrment is
macde accordingly
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Accounting Policies

1.19 Statutory receivables {continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount 15 reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Fianaal
Performance to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

1.19.4 De-recognition of statutory receivable

The mumicipality derecognises statutory recewvable only when the rights to the cash flows from the asset are settled, expires or are waived,
or it transfers control of the statutory receivable and substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the murcipality has transferred control of the receivable to another party, whilst retaining some significant risks and rewards, and the
other party has the practical ability to sell the receivable in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer, the municipality will derecognise the receivable, and will
recognised any separate rights and obligations created or retained m the transfer

1.20 Revenue

Revenue, excluding value-added taxation where applicable, is derived from a variety of sources which include rates levied, grants from
other tiers of government and revenue from trading actvities and other services provided

Recognition and measurement

The municipality recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it 15 probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the municipality and when specific criteria have been met for each of the municipalities’ activities as described below. The
amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved The
municipality bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement. Furthermore services rendered are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at
the reporting date

Revenue 15 measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recewvable Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
stock rotation, price protection, rebates and other similar allowances

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the municipahity directly in return for services rendered / goods sold,
the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the municipality received revenue frorm another entity without
directly giving approximately equal value in exchange Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally recognised to the extent that
the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there ts no liability to repay the amount
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1.20 Revenue {continued}
1.20.1 Revenue from exchange transactions

Service charges

Service charges reiating to electricity and water are based on consumption. Meters are read on a monthly basis and are recognised as
revenue when invoiced. Provisional estimates of consumption, based on the consumption history, are made monthly when meter readings
have not been performed. The provistonal estimates of consumption are recogrised as revenue when invoiced, except at year-end when
estimates of consumption up to year-end are recorded as revenue without it being invoiced Adjustments to provisional estimates of
consumption are made in the invoicing period in which meters have been read These adjustments are recognised as revenue in the
invoicing period In respect of estimates of consumption between the last reading date and the reparting date, an accrual 1s made based on
the average monthly consumption of consumers

Service charges relating to refuse removal are recogrised on a monthly basis in arrears by applying the approved tariff to each property
that has improvements. Tarffs are determined per category of property usage, and are levied monthly based on the number of refuse
containers on each praperty, regardless of whether or not all containers are emptied during the month

Service charges from sewerage and sanitation are based on the type of service and the number of sewer connections on all developed
property, using the tanffs approved by Counci and are levied monthly.

in circumnstances where services cannot readily be measured and quantified, a flat rate service charge is levied monthly on such properties
Pre-paid electricity

Revenue from the sale of electricity pre-paid meter cards are recognised at the point of sale. Revenue from the sale of electricity prepard
meter cards are recognised based on an estimate of the prepaid electricity consumed as at the reporting date

Interest earned and rentals received

Interest and rentals are recognised on a time proportion basis that takes into account the effective yield on the investment. Interest may be
transferred from the Accumulated Surplus to the Housing Development Fund or the Insurance Reserve

Dividends

Dividends are recognised on the date that the mumicipality becomes entitled to receive the dividend in accordance with the substance of
the relevant agreement, where apphicable

Tariff charges

Revenue ansing from the application of the approved taniff of charges i1s recogrised when the relevant service is rendered by applying the
relevant authonised tanff. This includes the issuing of hicences and permits

income from agency services

Income for agency services is recognised on a monthly bas's once the income collected on behalf of agents has been quantified The income
recognised 15 in terms of the agency agreement

Housing rental and instaliments

Finance income from the sale of housing by way of instaliment sale agreements or finance leases is recognised on a time proportion bas:s
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1.20 Revenue (continued)
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied
. the municipality has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
. the municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement ta the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effactive control over the goods sold,
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,
. it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the municipality;

and
o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably

1.20.2 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Rates and taxes

Revenue from property rates is recognised when the legal entitlernent to this revenue arises Collection charges are recognised when such
amounts are legally enforceable. Penalty interest on unpaid rates 1s recognised on a time proportion basis with reference to the principal
amount receivable and effective interest rate applicable. A compaosite rating system charging different rate tariffs is employed Rebates are
granted to certain categornies of ratepayers and are deducted from revenue

Fines

Fines constitute both spot fines and camera fines Fines are recognised when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies
the criteria for recogmition as an asset It is measured at the best estimate, based on past experience, of the amount of revenue the
munrcipahity is entitled to collect.

Subsequent to imitial recognition and measurement, the municipahity assess the collectability of the revenue and recogmses a separate
tmpairment loss where appropriate

Donations and contributions

Donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the municipality has complied with any of the criteria, canditions or
obhgations embodied in the agreement Where the agreement contains a stipulation to return the asset, other future economic benefits or
service potential, in the event of non-compliance to these stipulations and would be enforced by the transferor, a liability ts recognised to
the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met

Where such requirements are not enforceable, or where past experience has indicated that the transferor has never enforced the
requirement to return the transferred asset, other future economic benefits or service potential when breaches have accurred, the
stipulation will be considered a restriction and is recognised as revenue

Revenue from public contributions 15 recognised when all conditions associated with the contribution have been met or where the
contribution is to finance property, plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant and equipment are brought into use

Assets acquired in non-exchange transactions are measured at fair value in accaordance with the Standards of GRAP
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1.20 Revenue {continued)
Government grants and receipts
- Unconditional grants

Equitable share allocations are recognised in revenue at the start of the financial year if no time-based restrictions exist

- Conditional grants and receipts

Conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the municipality has complied with any of the
criteria, conditions or ebligations embadied in the agreement. Where the agreement contains a stipulation to return the asset, other future
economic benefits or service potential, in the event of non-comphance to these stipulations and would be enforced by the transferor, a
liabiity 1s recognised to the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met. Where such requirements are not
enforceable, or where past experience has indicated that the transferor has never enforced the requirement to return the transferred
asset, other future economic benefits or service potential when breaches have occurred, the stipulation will be considered a restriction and
is recognised as revenue

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of gving immediate
finanaal support to the municipality with no future related costs are recognised in the Statement of Financral Performance in the period in
which they become receivable.

Revenue s recognised when all conditions associated with the contribution have been met or where the contribution is to finance property,
plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant and equipment are brought into use

- interest earned on unspent grants and receipts

Interest earned on unspent grants and receipts is treated in accordance with grant conditions. If it 15 payable to the funder it is recorded as
part of the creditor and if it is the municipality's interest it is recognised as interest earned i1 the Statement of Financial Performance in
accordance with GRAP 9.

Revenue from recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated procedures, including those
set out in the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003) and is recogrused when the recovery thereof from the responsible
councillors or officials is virtually certain. Such revenue is based on legislated pracedures

Services received in-kind

Services m-kind are recognised at its fair value when it is significant to the operations and/or service delivery ohjectives and when it is
probable that the future econamic benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be
measured reliably. If the services in-kind are not significant to the operations and/or service delivery objectives and/or do not satisfy the
criteria for recogmtion, only the nature and type of services in-kind received during the reparting period is disclosed

Revenue recognition of unciaimed deposits

Unclaimed deposits older than three (3) years are recognised as revenue
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1.21 Accounting by principals and agents
identification

An 2gent is an entity that has been directed by another entity {2 principal) through a binding arrangement ta undertake transactions with
third parties on behalf of the principal and for the benefit of the principal

A principal is an entity that directs another entity {an agent), through a binding arrangement to undertake transaction with third parties on
its behalf and for its own benefit.

A principal-agent arrangement results from a binding arrangement in which one entity {an agent), undertakes transactions with third
parties on behalf and for the benefit of another entity {the principal)

Identifying whether an entity is a principal or an agent

When the municipality 1s party to a principal -agent arrangement it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in accounting for
revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in terms of the arrangement

The assessment of whether a mumicipality is a principal or an agent requires the municipality to assess whether the transactions it
undertakes with third parties are for the benefit of another entity or for its own benefit

Binding arrangement

The municipality assesses whether it is an agent or a principal by assessing the rights and obligations of the various parties established in
the landing arrangement

Where the terms of a tinding arrangement are modified, the parties to the arrangement re-assess whether they act as a principal or an
agent

Assessing which entity benefits from the transactions with third parties

When the municipality in a principal-agent arrangemant concludes that it undertakes transactions with third parties for the benefit of
another entity, then itis the agent. If the municipality concludes that it is not the agent, then it is the principal in the transactions

The municipality is an agent when, in relation to transactions with third parties, all three of the following criteria are present

. It does not have the power to determine the significant terms and conditions of the transaction
. It does not have the ability to use all, or substantially all, of the resources that result from the transaction for its own benefit
. It is not exposed to variability in the results of the transactron

Where the muniaipality has been granted specific powers in terms of legislation to direct the terms and conditions of particular
transactions It is not required to consider the criteria of whether it does not have the power to deterrmine the significant terms and
cond:tions of the transaction, to conclude that 1s an agent The municipality apples Judgement in determining whether such pawers extst
and whether they are relevant in assessing whether the municipality is an agent

Recognition

The municipality, as a principal, recognises revenue and expenses that wise from transactions with third parties in a principal-agent
arrangement in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

The municipality, as an agent, recognises only that portion of the revenue and expenses it receives or incurs i executing the transactions
on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP

The municipality recognises assets and liabiities arising from principal-agent arrangements in accordance with the requirerments of the
relevant Standards of GRAP
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1.22 Housing arrangements
The ASB issued the guideline on Accounting for Arrangements Undertaken in terms of the National Housing Programme

Where the Municipality acts as a project manager in a housing arrangement, it is regarded as an agent in terms of the principles of GRAP
109 - Accounting by Principals and Agents.

Where the muntcipality is regarded as an agent, costs related to the construction of top structures and the related recovery thereof
[revenue) is not be recognised in the statement of financial performance of the municipahty

Where the Municipality is identified as a project developer, the construction of the houses is performed by the municipality or by the
appointment of a sub-contractor to undertake the construction on the municipality’s behalf. The municipaity applies the GRAP 11,
Construction Contracts to account for these construction activities

Where the municipality is regarded as the project developer and if the outcome of the construction contract can be estirmated reliably, then
contract revenue is recognised in profit or loss in propeortion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion is assessed
with reference to surveys of work performed. Otherwise, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. Contract revenue will be in the form of a grant from the Western Cape Department of Human settlements and
presented and disclosed under transfers and subsidies in the Statement of Financial Performance

Contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately

1.23 Value Added Tax

The Municipality is registered with SARS for VAT on the payments basis, in accardance with Section 15(2)(2} of the Value-Added Tax Act No
89 of 1991,

1.24 Grants-in-aid

The municipatity transfers money to individuals, organizations and other sectors of government from time to time. When making these
transfers, the municipality does not:

. Receive any goods or services directly in return, as would be expected in 2 purchase or sale transaction;

. Expect to be repaid in future; or

. Expect a financial return, as would be expected from an investrnent

These transfers are recagnised in the financial statements as expenses in the penod that the events giving rise to the transfer occurred.
1.25 Unauthorised expenditure

Section 1 of the Municipal Finance Management Act {MFMA), No 56 of 2003, defines "unauthorised expendrture” as follows
a)  Overspending of the total amount appropriated in the municipality’s approved budget,
b}  Overspending of the total amount appropriated for a vote in the approved budget;
¢) Expenditure from a vote unrelated to the department or functional area covered by the vote,
d)  Expenditure of money appropriated for a specific purpose, otherwise than for that specific purpose;
e}  Spending of an allocation referred to in paragraph (b), {c) or {d} of the definition of "allocation” otherwise than in accordance
with any conditions of the allocation; or
f) A grant by the municipality otherwise than in accordance with this Act.

Section 1 of the MFMA also defines a "vote” as:
a)  One of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is dvided for the appropriation of money for the different
departments or functional areas of the municipality; and
b)  Which specifies the total amount that is appropriated for the purposes of the department or functionaf area concerned

The Municipality uses departments as the main groupings of segments of the Municipahty to facilitate greater accountability and budget
implementation by the respective Executive Directors as well as per mSCOA classification to facilitate comparisons on a higher level
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1.25 Unauthorised expenditure [continued)

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the year that
the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure 15 classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance I the expenditure is not condoned by the Council 1t is
treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as irrecoverable

1.26 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Mumicipal Finance Management Act {Act No 56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems
Act {Act No 32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act {Act No 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the Municipality’s supply chain
management policies.

1.27 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised
Al expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure 1s recognised as an expense m the statement of financial performance in the
year that the expenditure was incurred The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it
is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance If the expenditure is not condoned by the Council it is
treated as an asset untd it 1s recovered or written off as irrecoverable

1.28 Foreign currenties
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the entity at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at that date The foreign currency gamns or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost or fair value in
the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year, and the amortised cost in
foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period

Non-monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined Foreign currency differences arising on retransiation are
recognised in surplus or deficit

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Rand's by applying, to the foreign currency amount, the exchange
rate between the Rand and the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow

1.29 Changes in accounting policies, estimates and errors

Changes in accounting policies that are affected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with GRAP 3
requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change in
policy. In such cases the mumcipality shall restate the opeming balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earlest period for which
retrospective restatement is practicable

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements,

Correction of errors is apphed retrospectively in the period wn which the error has occurred in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements,
except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-speafic effects or the cumulative effect of the error in such cases the
mumicipality shall restate the opening balances of assets, Labilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective
restaterment is practicable

Details of changes in accounting pohcies, changes in estimates and carrection of errors are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial
statements where applicable
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1.30 Related parties and related party transactions

Individuals as well as their close family members, and/or entities are related parties if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control or jointly contrel the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and/or operating
decisions Management is regarded as a related party and comprises the councillors, Executive Mayor, Mayoral Committee members,
Accounting Officer, executive directors and all other managers reporting directly to the Accounting Officer or as designated by the
Accounting Officer.

Close members of the farily of a individual are thase family members who may be expected to influence or be influenced by that individual
tn their dealings with the Municipality. An individual 15 considered to be a close member of the family of another individual if they are
married or live together in a relationship similar to a marnage, or if they are separated by no more than two degrees of natural or legat
consanguinity or affinity

Remuneration of management includes remuneration derived for services provided to the Municipality in their capacity as members of the
management team or employees. Benefits derived directly or indirectly from the Municipality for services in any capacity other than as an
employee or a member of management do not meet the definition of remuneration

In the case of permanent employees acting in management positions, only the remuneration received additionally for acting in that
position is disclosed

Remuneration of management excludes any consideration provided solely as a reimbursement for expenditure incurred by thase persons
for the benefit of the Municipality.

The Municipality operates in an econemic environment currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
government. As a result of the Constitutional independence of all three spheres of government in South Africa, only parties within the same
sphere of government will be considered to be related parties Only transactions with such parties which are not at arm's length and not on
normal commercial terms are disclosed.

1.31 Events after reporting date

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the audited annual financral statements
The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting date have been disciosed in the notes to
the audited annual financial statements

1.32 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities represent a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed on'y by an
occurrence of non-gccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity

A contingent liability can also arise as a result of a present obligation that anises from past events but which 15 not recogmised as a liabitity
either because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying econom:c benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets represent possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by an occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity

Contingent assets and contingent habilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disciosed in the notes to the annual financial statements
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Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

2. Key judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the municipality's accounting policies, which are described above, management 15 required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and habilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabiities, at the end of the reporting period. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates

These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period In which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the pened of the revision and future periods if the
reviston affects both current and future periods

Judgements

The following are the crtical jJudgements, apart from thase involving estimations, that the management have made in the process of
applying the municipality's Accounting Policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
Audited Annual Financial Statements:

Materiality

Materiality is judged by reference to the size and nature of the item. The deciding factor is whether the omission or misstatement could,
individuaily or collectively, influence the decisions that users make on the basis of these audited annual financial statements

In preparation of the audited annual financial statements materiality has been considered 1n
a) Deciding what to report in the audited annual financial statements and how to presentit
b} Assessing the effect of omissions, rmisstatements and errors on the audited annual financial statements

In assessing whether an rtem, transaction or event is material, specific thresholds for specific items, transactions and events, or
aggregations thereof has been developed. These thresholds are used to make decisions about the reporting of information {i e how to
recognise, measure, present and disclose items, transactions and events), and used as a margin af errar of framework within which to
assess misstatements and errors

Based on professional judgement the quantitative value of matenality for the 2020 financial year 15 set at R 12,5 million

The muniapality has also considered whether certain transactions or balances may be gualitatively material based on the inherent
characteristics thereof, even though the transaction or balance is quantitatively immaterial, f

a) The item, transaction or event relates to legal or reguiatory requirements.

b) Related party transactions

¢) The regularity or frequency with which an item, transaction or event accurs

d) The item, transaction or event results in the reversal of a trend

e) The itern, transaction or event 1s likely to result in a change 1n accounting policy

f) The commencement of 3 new function, or the reduction or cessation of an existing function

g} The degree of estimation or judgement that is needed to determine the value of an item, transaction or event

h) An item, transaction or event that affects the going concern assumption of the municipality

Lease classification — Municipality as lessor

The Municipality has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolic. The Municipality has determined that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties, and so accounts for them as operating leases

Lease classification - Municipality as lessee
The Municipality has entered into 2 number of leases for office equipment. In determining whether a tease agreement is a finance lease

or an operating lease requires judgement as to whether the agreement transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Murnicipality.
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2.  Key judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

judgement is required on various aspects that include, but are not imited to, the fair value of the leased asset, the econgmic life of the
leased asset, whether or not to include renewal options in the lease term, and determining an appropriate

discount rate to calculate the present value of the mimimum lease payments. The Municipality has exercised its judgement on the
appropriate classification of equipment leases, and has determined a number of lease arrangements are

finance leases.

Classification of Property as held for strategic purposes.

The Municipahty classifies vacant land that is earmarked for future development in terms of the Municipality’s Spatial Development
framework, as Property, plant and Equipment, rather than investment Property

Criteria for the classification of properties as Investment property rather than Properties, plant and equipment, when classification
is difficult are as follows:

All properties held to earn market-related rentals or for capital appreciation or both and that are not for administrative purposes and that
will not be sold in the ordinary course of operations are classified as Investrent Properties

tand held for currently undetermined future use.

Leases properties that are held to provide a social {community} service or that are necessary for employees to perform their job functions,
but which also generates rental revenue are not seen as Investment Properties. The rental revenue generated is inc dental to the purposes

for which the property is held.
Componentisation of Infrastructure assets

All infrastructure assels, acquired before the adoption of GRAP where the acquintion cost could not be obtained, with significant
components relating to different useful lives are unbundied into their components in order to depreciate all major components over the
expected useful lives. The cost of each companent is estimated based on the current market replacement cost of each component,
depreciated for age and condition and recalculated to deemed cost at the acquisition date if known or to the date of initially adopting the
standards of GRAP. Al infrastructure assets acquired after the adoption of GRAP with significant components relating to different useful
lives are unbundied into their components based on the actual expenditure incurred

Determination of Repairs and Maintenance costs

Repairs and Maintenance is based on Management's own judgement of casts incurred in cost centres responsible for the maintenance and
reparr of Municipal owned assets. This includes internal charges (inter departmental charges) such as internal transport costs, charged out
to the different departments

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year, are described below

Pension and cther post-employment benefits

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other employment medical benefits is determined using actuanal valuatians The actuanal
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates
and future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to sigmficant uncertainty

Classification of financial assets and liabilities

The classification of financial assets and liabilities, into categories, is based on judgement by management The Accounting Policy on
Financial Instruments describes the factors and criteria considered by the management of the municipality in the classification of financial
assets and liabilities
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2. Key judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

in making the above-mentioned judgement, management considered the definition and recognition criteria for the classification of
financial instruments as set ocut in GRAP 104 Financial Instruments.

impairment of financial assets

The Accounting Policy on Financial Instruments describes the process foliowed to determine the value by which financial assets should be
impaired. In making the estimation of the impairment, the management of the municipality considers the detailed criteria of impairment

of financial assets as set out in GRAP 104 Financial instruments and used its judgement to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period. The management of the municipality

is satisfied that the impairment of financial assets recorded during the year ts appropnate

The calculation in respect of the impairment of service debtors (receivables from exchange and non-exchange transactions) is based on an
assessment of the extent to which debtors have defaulted on payments already due, and an assessment of their ability to make payments
based on their creditworthiness. This was performed per service-identifiable categonies across all classes of debtors

The calculation in respect of the impairment of fine recevables {receivables from non-exchange transactions} is based on an assessment
of the past payment history of fines per category

Valuation of Financial Assets at Fair Value

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial habilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be derived from

active markets, their fair value 15 determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow model The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasibie, judgment is required in establishing fair values
tudgment includes the consideration of inputs such as hguidity nisk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments

Review of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The useful lives of assets are based on management’s estimation. Management considers whether there is any indication that

expectations about the residual value and the useful hfe of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. These include
changes in the composition, condition and nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and processes,
the nature of the processes and environment in which the asset is deployed availability of funding to replace the asset and changes in the
market in relation to the asset, as well as planned repairs and maintenance 1ncluding refurbishments

Valuation of Land and buildings and fair value estimations of Investment Property

tand and bwidings were valued and the fair value of Investment property determined, by reference to market-based evidence, using
comparable prices adjusted for specific market factors such as nature, location and condition of the property.

Impairment of property plant and equipment, intangible assets, heritage assets and inventory

The Accounting Policies on Impairment of Cash and Non-cash generating assets as well as Inventory describes the conditions under which
non-financial assets are tested for potential impairment losses by the management of the municipality Sigrificant estimates and
judgements are made relating to the impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and Heritage Assets and the

write down of Inventories to the lowest of Cost and Net Realisable Values (NRV)

In making the above-mentioned estimates and judgement, management considers the subsequent measurement critesia and indicators
of potential impairment losses as set out i1 GRAP 21 Impairment of Cash generating Assets and GRAP 26! Impairment of non-Cash
generating Assets

Provisions and contingent labilities

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuning provisions, and when measuring contingent habilities. Provisions
are measured at the management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are

discounted to present value where the effect is material
-
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2.  Keyjudgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued}

Assumptions were used in determining the provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites Provision is made for the estimated cost to be
incurred on the long-term environmental obligations, comprising expenditure on pollution control and closure over the estimated life of
the fandfill. The provision is based on the advice and judgment of qualified engineers. The estimates are discounted at a pre-tax

discount rate that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money The increase in the rehabiiitation provision due to
passage of time is recognised as finance cost in the statement of financial performance

Revenue recognition

The Accounting Policies on Revenue from Exchange Transactions and Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions describes the conditions
under which revenue will be recorded by the management of the municipality In making therr judgement, the management considered
the detailed criteria for the recognition of revenue as set out in GRAP 9: Revenue from Exchange Transactions and GRAP 23 Revenue from

Non-exchange Transactions

In particular, in regard to revenue form exchange revenue - when goods are sold, whether the municipality had transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; and, when services is rendered, whether the service has been rendered

Also of importance is the estimation process involved in initially measuring revenue at the fair value thereof In regard to revenue from
non-exchange transactions - sigmficant estimations were made to the imitial recognition and measurement of revenue on fines, on the
estimated reductions on initial recognition and measurement Based on past expenience, of the amount of revenue the Municipality is
entitled to collect was calculated as 96.8% of the value of the fines issued, whereas it was estimated that 87 4% of the value of the fines
issued were impaired. The management of the municipality is satisfied that recognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate.

Assessment of control over land

Land is regarded under control of the Municipality, where the it holds legal ownership and/or the right to direct access to land, and to
restrict or deny the access of others ta land (substantive rights).

Land for which the Municipality holds legal title, but is not recognised as under its contral, include properties under the house selling
schemes, or where a transfer/sales agreement has been entered into with a prospective buyer/transferee, that obtains the right of contro
by means of a binding agreement, if specified that by that agreement that the right transfers before legal title transfers

Land for which the Municipality does not hold legal titie or have custodian of fand appotnted in terms of fegislation, but whith is recognised
as under the control of the Municipality, are in instances where the Municipality has existing infrastructure such as substations or waste
water treatment works or permanent facilities, such as office buildings and community facilities, that it receives the sole economic and
service potential from

Budget information

Management assumes deviations between budget and actual amounts to be material when a deviation of more than 10% exists. Al
material differences are explained in the notes to the audited annual financtal statements
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3. Property, plant and equipment

3.1 Reconciliation of carrying value

2020

Carrying value at 01 July 2019
Cost

Construction work-in-progress
Accumulated depreciation

Additions from acquisitions
Depreciation

Impairment

Other changes

WIP additions

Carrying value of disposals /
transfers

Cost

Accumulated depreciation -
disposals

Carrying value as at 30 June 2020

Cost

Cost - construction work-in-progress

Accumulated depreciation

Carrying value as at 30 June 2020

Land infrastructure Buildings, Capital spares  Other assets Total
assels structures and
facilities

916,807,750 6,311,075,514 984,733,801 8,674,342 341,098,926 8,562,390,333
922,813,232 47,144,137 - - 969,957,369
(3.166,563,543) (113,800,287} {189,060,039) (3,469,423,869)
916,807,750 4,067,325,203 918,077,651 8,674,342 152,038,887 6,062,923,833
5,476,159 92,563,852 30,802,540 10,549,042 139,391,593
{148,628,047) {47.672.456) {18,016,950) (214,317,453)
{64,435) - {229,047) (293,482)
{2,750,162) {162,501} 2,750,162 {162,901}
149,233,559 17,753,167 - 166,986,726
5,476,159 90,354,767 883,251 (162,901) (4,946,793} 91,604,483
{1,816,0t1} {56,340,225) {172,668) (58,328,904}
29,994,820 89,001 30,083,821
{1,816,011) (26,345,405) - - {83,667) (28,245,083}
920,467,898 4,131,334,585 918,960,902 8,511,441 147,008,427 6,126,283,233
920,467,898 7,020,126,070 1,028,737.845 8,511,441 354,225,462 9,332,068,716
396,469,699 51,695,801 448,165,500
{3,285,261,204) (161,472,744) {207,217,035) (3,653,950,983}
920,467,898 4,131,334,565 918,960,902 8,511,441 147,008,427 6,126,283,233

The remaining useful hves of assets were adjusted during 2020, and was treated as a change in accounting estimate. All changes in
accounting estimates are applied prospectively, accordingly no prior year adjustments were made

>
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3.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)
2019
Land Infrastructure Buildings, Capital spares  Other assets Total
assets structures and
facilities
Carrying value at 01 July 2018
Cost 923,781,536 5,850,270,609 950,324,014 7,783,637 324,427,804 8,056,587,600
Construction work-in-progress 854,588, 858 27,044,581 - 881,633,439
Accumulated depreciation - {3,032,719,172) (65,849,954) (183,213,140) (3,281,782,266)
923,781,536 3,672,140,295 911,518,641 7,783,637 141,214,664 5,656,438,773
Additions from acquisitions 41,664 205,932,004 27.689,709 30,349,180 264,012,567
Degpreciation {145,437,417) {47,642,968) (17,332,543} (210,412,928)
Impairment - (416,500} {530,285} {1,006,785)
Other changes - 890,689 890,689
WIP additions 346,834,512 27,233,234 - 374,067,746
41,664 407,329,099 6,863,475 890,689 12,426,362 427,551,289
Carrying value of disposals /
transfers
Cost - disposals {7.015,450) (23,737,237} (413,600) (13,678,069) {44,844,356)
Accumulated depreciation - - 11,593,047 109,135 12,075,928 23,778,110
disposals
{7,015,450) {12,144,190) {304,465) {1,602,141) (21,066,246)
Carrying value as at 30 June 2019 916,807,750 4,067,325,204 918,077,651 8,674,326 152,038,885 6,062,923,816
Cost 916,807,750 6,311,075,514 984,733,801 8,674,326 341,098,924 8,562,390,315
Cost - construction work-in-progress 922,813,233 47,144,137 - 969,957,370
Accumulated depreciation (3.166,563,543} (113,800,287) (189,060,039) {3,469,423,869)
Carrying value as at 30 June 2018 916,807,750 4,067,325,204 918,077,651 8,674,326 152,038,885 6,062,923,816

The remaining useful lives of assets were adjusted during 2019, and was treated as a change in accounting estimate All changes in
accounting estimates are applied prospectively, accordingly no prior year adjustments were made

Included in the carrying value for Land is an amount of R 3 291 833 00 {2019. R 3 231 933 00) for land assets where the municipality is not
the fegal owner or the appointed custodian in terms of legislation but the land is deemed to be under the control of the municipality in
terms of IGRAP 18 Please refer to note 2 for key judgements and assumptions made regarding control of 1and

3.2 Land and buildings carried at fair value

tand and buildings were revalued to fair value during the 2017/2018 financial year. The effective date of revaluation was 01-Jul-2017 and
the valuation was performed by registered and independent valuers. The independent valuers are not connected to the municipality

3.3 Property, plant and equipment pledged as security

No assets have been pledged as security
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
3.4 Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The municipality assessed its items of property, plant and equipment, Intangible assets and Heritage assets for any potential impairment
losses on assets

The following impairment losses were recognised during the year

Land and buildings . 416,500
Infrastructure 64,435 >
Other assets Vehicles 229,047 590,285
Total impairment recognised 293,432 1,006,785

Impairment losses on vehicles were predominantly due to the assets being damaged beyond repair

No impairments were reversed in the current year, and no impairment losses were recognised on revalued assets directly in the Statement
of changes in net assets

3.5 Changein estimate

Useful life of property, plant and equipment reviewed

A review of the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment has been performed. The change in the estimated
useful tives and residual values of various assets of the municipality has resulted in a decrease in depreciation of R 38,858,609 (2019 R
3,196,254)

3.6 Property, plant and equipment under construction or in the process of being developed

No projects were identified where construction or development has been halted, or that is taking a significantly longer period of time to
complete than expected.

3.7 Maintenance of property, plant and equipment

3.7.1 Maintenance of property, plant and equipment by nature and type of expenditure

2020

Buildings, Infrastructure  Other assets Total

structures and assets

facilities
Expenditure
Contracted Services §,791,752 27.609,223 24,145 825 57,547,800
Employee Related Cost 57,558,272 102,673,745 5,633,920 165,865,937
Inventary 6,591,629 15,615,384 1,339,925 23,546,938
Operating Leases 3,932,195 - - 3,932,195
Operation Cost 43,172 255,300 298,472

73,912,020 146,153,652 31,120,670 251,191,342
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3, Property, plant and equipment (continued)
2019
Buildings, infrastructure  Other assets Total
structures and assets
facilities
Expenditure
Contracted Services 13,552,637 28,594 869 19,905,758 62,053,264
Employee Related Cost 57,392,273 95,590,614 4,866,144 157,849,031
Inventory 5,155,400 14,615,360 2,291,587 22,062,347
Operating Leases 8,021,574 13,032,236 101,538 21,155,348
Operation Cost 69,955 191,522 62,329 323,806
84,191,839 152,024,601 27,227,356 263,443,796
4 Heritage assets
4.1 Reconciliation of carrying value
2020
Land and Monuments and Other assets Total
buildings parks
Carrying value at 01 July 201%
Cost 21,698,000 18,825,000 700,700 41,223,700
Accumulated impairment losses . - - .
Carrying value at 30 June 2020 21,698,000 18,825,000 700,700 41,223,700
2019
Land and Monuments and Other assets Total
buildings parks
Carrying value at 01 July 2018
Cost 21,698,000 18,825,000 700,700 41,223,700
Accurnulated impairment losses . - .
Carrying value at 30 June 2019 21,698,000 18,825,000 700,706 41,223,700

4.1.1 Heritage assets

Land and buildings Heritage assets were revalued to fair value during the 2017/18 financial peniod. The effective date of revaluation was
1 July 2017 and the valuation was performed by registered and independent valuers

The comparative sales method was applied to land {historical sites and conservation areas), where comparable valid sales in a specific area
was used, compared to the specific property, and market valuation derived. Due to the nature of histonical buildings and monuments, i.e
where there is no comparable property sales, the generally accepted methodology of these was imited to the discounted replacement cost
of the physical structures

Included in the histonical and naturally significant land and building above ts amongst others the Paarl Mountain (Paariberg) and the Paari
Arboretum. Paarl Mountain is particularly known for its mountain or "Paarl Rock". The huge granite rock ts formed by three rounded
outcrops that make up Paarl Mountain and is the second largest granite outcrog in the world and forms part of the Nature Reserve. The site
i5 3 Provincial Heritage Site {(SAHRA Nr 9/2/069/0028)

The Paarl Arboretum is situated on the eastern bank of the Berg River, 15 2 8 km long and occupies appraximately 31 ha Divided into 6
“continents" a unique feature is that trees and shrubs are grouped according to continents of origin. In excess of 2 600 trees and shrubs,

entering some 650 different species can be cbserved ‘.".‘_.
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4,  Haeritage assets (continued)

The following butldings owned by the Municipality, declared Provincial Heritage sites, have been classified as Heritage assets
i De Qude Woning, 214 Main Street, Paarl {SAHRA Nr 9/2/069/0105) dating from the late 1780's
? The Old Dutch Reformed Church Parsonage {now the Paarl Museumn),Van der Lingen plein, Paarl (SAHRA Nr 3/2/069/0071) The

Parsonage was built in 1787

3 Quma Granny's House, 37 Fontein Street, Wellington {SAHRA Nr 9/2/106/0012), Victorian cottage dating to 1876
4 Coronation Arch, Victornia Jubilee Park, Church Street, Wellington {SAHRA Nr 9/2/106/0019/1), dating to 1902

All of the municipality’s Heritage Assets are held under freehold interests and no Heritage Assets had been pledged as security for any

iabilities of the municipality

No restrictions apply to any of the Heritage Assets of the municipality

5.  Intangible assets
5.1 Reconciliation of carrying value

2020

Opening carrying value as at 01 July 2019
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and imparment

Addtions from acquisitions
Amortisation

Carrying value of disposals / transfers
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Closing carrying value as at 30 June 2020

Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Computer  Plans and design  Licenses and Total
software and rights
systems
9,696,048 1,930,927 952,704 12,579,679
{4,640,028) {1,583,011) {564,345) {6,787,384)
5,056,020 347,916 388,359 5,792,295
859,106 22,653 881,759
40 {992,965) {312,053} {101,281} (1,406,299}
{133,859) {312,053} {78,628) (524,540)
(818,247} {1,841,268) . (2.653,515)
818,147 1,841,268 - 2,659,515
4,922,161 35,863 309,731 5,267,755
9,736,905 89,660 975,357 10,801,922
(4,814,745] (53,795} {665,626) (5.534,166)
4,922,160 35,865 305,731 5,267,756
-,

-
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S. Intangible assets (continued)

2019
Computer  Plans and design  Licenses and Total
software rights
Opening carrying value as at 01 July 2018
Cost 16,590,254 1,930,927 1,278,703 19,799,884
Accumulated depreciation and impairment {11,495,886) {1,501,412) {690,323) {13,687,621)
5,094,368 429,515 588,380 6,112,263
Additions from acquisitions 2,231,884 - - 2,231,884
Additions resulting from acquisitions (683,002) (81,600) {110,068) {874,670)
1,548,882 {81,600} {110,068) 1,357,214
Carrying value of disposals / transfers
Cost {9.126,091} . {325,999) (9,452,090}
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 7,538,860 236,046 7,774,906
(1,587,231} - (89,953) (1,677,184)
Closing carrying value as at 30 June 2019 5,056,019 347,915 388,359 5,792,293
Cost 9,696,047 1,930,927 952,704 12,579,678
Accumulated amortisation and impairment {4,640,028) {1,583,011}) {564,345) (6,787,384}
5,056,019 347,916 388,359 5,792,294

The amortisation expense has been included in the line item “Depreciation and Amortisation” in the Statement of Financial Performance
{see Note 40}

The amortisation method and useful life of Intangible assets is set out in the accounting policy note of Intangible assets

All of the municipality’s Intangible Assets are held under freehold interests and no Intangible Assets had been pledged as security for any
liabihties of the municipality.

Na restrictions apply to any of the Intangible Assets of the municipahty.
6. Investment property
6.1 Reconciliation of carrying value

Opening carrying value

Cost 37,740,000 44,350,000

Fair Value Adjustments 1,818,200 1,950,000

Carrying value of disposals / transfers

Cost - {8,600,000}
Closing carrying value 39,558,200 32,740,000
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6. Investment property {continued)

Cost 39,558,200 37,740,000
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses -

39,558,200 37,740,000

Criteria used to distinguish investment property from owner-occupred praperty and from property held for sale in the ordinary course of
business is set out in the accounting policy note of investrnent property

Method of Asset Valuation 2019/20
The date of fair value assessment was on 30 June 2020

Each property was identified and inspected and fair values adjusted where approprate. An Investment property could be described as 2
rea! estate property that has the abidity of earning a return on investment, either through rental income and/or the future resale of the

property or both The methodology applied was therefore based on the so-called Open Market Value, taking into account the zoning status
of the property, the cost implications of the rezoning process and any other limitations

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Management Finance Act is available for inspection at the
registered offices of the municipality

Revaluation of all investment Property was performed by a Professional Associated Valuer (Reg no 4729}, Jean Marais from Real Direct
Property Valuations.

Revenue and Expenditure disclosed in the Statement of Financial Performance include rental revenue earned from Investment Property to
the amount of R 673,399 (2019 restated: R 658,224)

All of the municipality’s Investment Property is held under freehold interests and no Investment Property had been pledged as security for
any liabilities of the municipality.

There are no restrictions on the realisability of Investment Property or the remittance of revenue and proceeds of disposal

There are contractual obligations for repairs to certain investment Properties which are leased out

7. Investments

7.1 Carsying value of investments

2020
Fair value Total
Carrying value as at 30 June 2020
Eskom stock 82,298 82,298
2019
Fair vailue Total
Carrying value as at 30 June 2019
Eskom stock 124,967 124,967
‘.h‘s‘i
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7.  Investments {continued)
7.2 Investments

The fair value of the hsted investments is estimated at R 82,298 (2019 R 124,968). Fair value of Eskom stock is determined based on
discounted cash flow analysis, at a discounted rate of 4 50% and 5.30%, (2019 7 57%)

Listed Shares are investments with a maturity period of more than 12 months and earn fxed interest rates of 13.5% per annum. The
investment will mature in three equal tranches on 1 August 2019, 2020 and 2021

The fair vatue of Investments was determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements entered into between the
municipality and financal institutions

8. Non-current receivables from exchange transactions

Other receivables

Housing selling schemes 355,749 907,135
Public organisation 77,834 77,834
Total 433,583 984,969
Transferred to current receivables 13 {104,778) {150,118)
Total non-current other receivables 81 328,805 834,851
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

5. Inventories

Consumables 4,898,592 3,817,72%
Materials and supphes 26,149,580 26,377,043
Water 669,580 644,438
Spare parts for Plant & Equipment 107,271 170,467
Plants held for resale 78,990 46,467
Land for BNG housing 2,944,215 2,944,215
Less Inventory held as spare parts for infrastructure assets (8,511,423} (8,674,323)
Total inventories 26,336,815 25,326,036

No inventories were pledged as security for liabilities

During the year inventory to the amount of R203,328 (2019 R 29,103) was written off due to discrepancies identified during the annual
stock count An amount of R 79,592 {2019 R 85,080} was written off due to valuation of inventory at the lower of cost and NRV in
accordance with GRAP 13

Inventories of R 8,511,423 (2019: R 8,674,324) are held as major spare parts for infrastructure assets and has been transferred to Property,
Plant and Equipment

10. Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

Consumer receivables from exchange transactions 101

Electricity 170,285,075 139,339,469
Water 56,203,158 56,730,406
Waste management 46,686,287 30,229,344
Waste water management 30,722,179 19,624,011
Housing rental scheme 1,794,836 5,534,230
Housing selling scheme 108,276 623,538

305,799,811 252,080,998

The average credit period for Consumer recelvables 1s 30 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables for the first 30 days from the
date of the invoice. Thereafter interest is charged at the prime rate per annum on the outstanding balance. The municipality strictly
enforces its approved credit control policy to ensure the recovery of Consumer receivables

The management of the municipality 15 of the opinion that the carrying value of Consumer receivables approximate their fair values

The fair value of Consumer receivables was determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements entered into
between the municipality and Consumer recewvables as well as the current payment ratio’s of the municipality's Consumer receivables

Other receivables from exchange transactions 10.2

Sundry debtors 16,007,514 15,138,766
Other receivables from exchange transactions 6,933,079 8,074,693
Less: Provision for impairment (10,698,291) (3,537,398)
12,242,302 19,676,061
Total receivables from exchange transactions 318,042,113 271,757,059

“.'g“‘
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
10. Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions {continued)
10.1 Consumer receivables
D 2020 2019
Gross Impairment Total Gross Impairment Total
Consumer receivables from
exchange transactions
Electricity 191,681,922 {21,356,847) 170,285,075 150,754,568 {11,415,099) 139,339,469
Water 109,616,636 (53,413,478) 56,203,158 55,111,583 (38,381,187) 56,730,406
Waste management 55,101,822 {8,415,5359) 46,686,287 35,868,575 {5,639,231) 30,229,344
Waste water management 36,325,697 {5,603,518) 30,722,179 23,187,086 {3,563,085) 19,624,011
Housing rental scheme 13,443,013 {11,648,177) 1,794,836 7,961,874 (2,427,644} 5,534,230
Housing sefling scheme 1,000,864 {892,588) 108,276 812,418 {188,880) 623,538
Total consumer receivables from 407,169,954 (101,370,143} 305,799,811 313,696,124 (61,615,126} 252,080,998
exchange transactions
10.1.1  Ageing of consumer receivables
2020
Not due Past due
Current Current 31.60  31-60 61-90 61- 90
impaired impaired Impaired
Consumer receivables from exchange
transactions
Aging by debt type
Electricity 144,807,271 1,247,544 9,749,995 1,167,854 7.472,748 1,192,825
Water 31,385,775 1,453,216 4,747,567 1,489,487 3,771,703 1,464,437
Waste management 9,201,530 553,605 3,774,455 559,305 3,090,247 612,669
Waste water management 8,551,069 380,580 2,765,364 383,619 2,225,824 413,419
Housing rentat schemes 877,033 347,989 871,105 348,316 716,256 397,169
Housing seling scheme 30,725 7,257 28,702 7,257 27,058 7,120
Totat 194,853,403 3,990,191 21,937,188 3,950,838 17,303,836 4,087,635
Past due
91-120+ 91120+ Total  Total Total - Past
impaired impaired due but not
impaired
Consumer receivables from exchange transactions
Aging by debt type
Electricity 29,651,909 17,793,623 191,681,923 21,396,846 26,725,350
Water 69,711,592 49,006,338 109,616,637 53,413,478 26,270,59%
Waste management 39,035,591 6,689,957 55,101,823 8,415,536 38,038,361
Waste water management 22,783,441 4,425,900 36,325,698 5,603,518 22,551,690
Housing rental schemes 10,978,620 10,554,703 13,443,014 11,648,177 1,265,792
Housing selling scheme 914,379 870,954 1,000,864 892,588 84,808
Total 173,075,532 89,341,475 407,169,959 101,370,143 114,936,600
“““;
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
10. Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions {continued)
2019
Not due Past due
Current Current 31-60 31-60 61-90 61-90
impaired impaired Impaired
Consumer receivables from exchange
transactions
Aging by debt type
Electricity 127,543,705 603,797 3,780,313 693,508 1,414,144 772,712
Water 21,373,476 2,071,063 6,482,190 2,365,486 4,506,667 2,602,480
Waste management 7,702,623 310,168 1,853,933 342,848 1,311,654 342,256
Waste water management 7.144 808 221,908 1,328,083 238,563 834,477 228,991
Housing rental schemes 420,588 48,945 317,039 54,011 277,983 81,584
Housing selling scheme 29,515 4,298 24,143 5,467 20,922 5,783
Total 164,214,715 3,260,179 13,785,711 3,699,883 8,365,847 4,033,806
Past due
91 - 120+ 91 - 120+ Total Total Total - Past
impaired impaired due but not
impaired
Consumer receivables from exchange transactions
Aging by debt type
Electncity 18,016,396 9,345,083 150,754,568 11,415,100 12,399,560
Water 62,749,260 31,342,158 95,111,593 38,381,187 37,427,993
Waste management 25,000,366 4,643,960 35,868,576 5,639,232 22,836,889
Waste water management 13,879,729 2,873,622 23,187,097 3,563,084 12,701,113
Housing rental schemes 6,946,264 2.243,104 7,961,874 2,427,644 5,162,587
Housing selling scheme 737,838 173,332 812,418 188,880 598,321
Total 127,329,853 50,621,259 313,696,126 61,615,127 91,126,463

The impairment provision was calculated after individually assessing consumer receivables and by estimating the probability of future
payment ratios, using a formula-based approach by considening the historical payment ratios and other charactenstics found per groups of

consumer debtors.

In determining the recoverability of a Consumer receivable, the municipality considers any change in the credit quality of the Consumer

receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the

customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the management believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess

of the Aliowance for Doubtful Debts

Included in the Allowance for Doubtful Debts are individually impaired Consumer recevables with a balance of R422,814 (2019 R400,868)
which have been placed under liquidation. The impairment recognised represents the difference between the carrying amount of these
Consumer receivables and the present value of the expected liquidation proceeds. The municipality holds no collateral over these balances
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 june 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
11. Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Statutory receivables 111
Property rates 35,651,110 32,494,814
Electricity 775,065 480,781
Water 982,541 1,424,585
Waste management 2,062,542 1,219,745
Waste water management 2,084,911 1,508,562
Fines 8,759,968 3,140,466
51,316,137 40,268,953
Other receivables
Grants and subsidies 49,850,072 20,802,875
Prepayments 2,396,932 7,078,003
Other receivables 4,430,651 3,660,937
Rental leases: straight iine 19,548 19,767
56,697,243 31,561,632
Total receivablas 108,013,380 71,830,585
11.1 Receivabtes from non-exchange transactions
2020 2019
Gross Impairment Total Gross impairment Total
Consumer receivables
Property rates 45,230,707 {8,579,597) 36,651,110 38,295,903 (5,801,087) 32,494,314
Electricity 1,020,427 (245,362} 775,065 840,001 {359,220) 480,781
Water 1,960,307 {977,766) 982,541 1,661,262 (236,677) 1,424,585
Waste management 2,298,585 {236,043) 2,062,542 1,455,480 (235,735) 1,219,745
Waste water management 2,292,287 {207,376) 2,084,911 1,800,173 (291,611) 1,508,562
fines 124,491,341 (115,731,373) 8,759,968 122,854,232  (118,713,765) 3,140,466
172,293,654 (125,977,517} 51,316,137 166,907,051  (126,638,095) 40,268,953
Other receivables
Grants and subsidies 49,850,072 49,850,072 20,802,875 20,802,875
Prepayments 2,396,932 2,396,932 7,078,003 7,078,003
Other recevables 4,430,691 4,430,691 3,660,987 3,660,987
Rental leases straight hne 19,548 19,548 19,767 19,767
56,697,243 56,697,243 31,561,632 - 31,561,632
Total 233,990,897  {125,977,517} 108,013,380 198,468,683  {126,638,095}) 71,830,585
s“:-‘
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 june 2020

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
11. Receivables from non-exchange transactions {continued)
11.1.2 Additional information regarding receivables from non-exchange transactions
2020
) Not due Pas;"due
Current Current 31-60 31-60 61-90 61-90
impaired impaired Impaired
Consumer receivables from exchange
transactions
Aging by debt type
Property rates 19,715,839 476,616 3,927,104 476,049 2,485,969 455,025
Electricity 135,665 9,327 59,887 9,327 52,149 9,327
Water 129,748 7.270 68,427 7,270 62,131 7.270
Waste management 491,480 14,189 149,652 14,189 127,875 14,189
Waste water managemeni 195,523 10,426 102,496 10,426 92,635 10,426
Fines 10,005,206 8,273,921 8,222,174 6,824,512 4,292,890 3,659,770
Total 30,673,461 8,791,749 12,529,740 7,341,773 7,113,649 4,156,007
Past due
91-120+ 91 - 120+ Total Total Total - Past
impaired impaired due but not
impaired

Consumer receivables from exchange transactions

Aging by debt type
Property rates

Electricity

Water

Waste management
Waste water management
Fines

Total

19,101,795 7,171,907

772,727 217,380
1,700,001 955,955
1,529,578 193,476
1,901,632 176,097

101,871,072 96973171

45,230,707 8,579,597 17,411,887

1,020,427 245,362 648,727
1,960,307 977,766 860,063
2,298,585 236,043 1,585,251
2,292,287 207,376 1,899,814

124,481,342 115,731,374 7.028,683

126,976,805 105,687,986

177,293,655 125,977,518 29,434,425
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
11. Receivables from non-exchange transactions {continued)
2019
Not due Past due
Current  Current 31.60 31-60 61-90 61-50
impaired impaired Impaired
Consumer receivables from exchange
transactions
Aging by debt type
Property rates 20,056,772 568,777 2,503,082 570,944 966,592 484,614
Electricity 143,324 20,676 49,259 20,942 36,255 20,812
Water 155,004 15,745 59,536 15,861 47,964 15,964
Waste management 417,618 25,415 87,037 25,398 67,029 25,398
Water waste management 200,725 21,930 88,277 21,907 66,771 21,907
Fings 3,409,553 2,903,971 6,119,095 5,193,433 4,976,074 3,843,729
Total 24,382,996 3,556,514 8,906,286 5,848,485 6,160,685 4,412,434
Past due -
91 - 120+ 91 -120+ Total Taotal Total - Past
impaired impaired due but not
impaired
Consumer receivables from exchange transactions
Aging by debt type
Property rates 14,769,456 4,176,752 38,295,902 5,801,087 13,006,820
Electricity 611,163 296,789 840,001 358,220 358,133
Waste management 883,796 159,524 1,455,480 235,735 827,541
Water waste management 1,444,399 225,866 1,800,173 291,611 1,329,767
Water 1,398,758 189,107 1,661,262 236,677 1,285,326
Fines 108,349,511 107,772,633 122,854,233 119,713,766 2,634,885
Total 127,457,083 112,820,671 166,907,051 126,638,096 19,442,472
““I\‘-‘
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annuai Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
figures in Rand 2020 2019

11. Receivables from non-exchange transactions {continued)

Property Rates

Property rates receivables are statutory receivables and arise from property taxes levied on property owners based on the valuation of
properties per the valuation roli in accordance with the Municipal Property Rates Act, No 6 of 2004 and Drakenstein Municipality's Property
Rates Policy. A general valuation is performed every four years, with supplementary valuations in between

The average credit period for property rates receivables is 30 days. No interest is charged for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice
Thereafter interest is charged at the prime rate per annum on the outstanding balance. The mumicipality strictly enforces its approved
credit control policy to ensure the recovery of property rates receivables

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of property rates receivables approximate their fair values.

The impairment provision was caleulated after individually assessing property rates recewvables and by estimating the probability of future
payment ratios, using a formula-based approach by considering the historical payment ratios and other characteristics found per groups of
property rates debtors.

In determining the recoverability of a receivable, the municipality considers any change in the credit quality of the receivable from the date
credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is imited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated. Accordingly, the management believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the Allowance for Doubtful
Debts.

Traffic Fines
Traffic fines receivables are statutory receivables and arise from traffic infnngements committed and fines issued as a resuit, in terms of the

Criminal Procedure Act, No 501 of 1977.
The traffic fines must be issued within 30 days of offence, after which it is payable. No interest is charged
The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of traffic fines recevables approximate their fair values.

The impairment provision was calculated after collectively assessing traffic fines receivables and by calculating the historical payment ratios
and assuming that future payment ratios would be similar to the historical payment ratios

The provision for doubtful debts on traffic fines receivables exist predominantly due to the possibility that these debts will not be recovered
were assessed individually for impairment.

tn determining the recoverability of a receivable, the municipality considers any change in the credit quality of the receivable from the date
credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit nsk is bmited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated. Accordingly, the management believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the Allowance for Doubtful
Debts

Other Receivables

The average credit period for Government Grants and Subsidies is dependent on the Government Department involved and the nature of
the claim. No interest is charged on outstanding Government Grants and Subsidies The subsidies is payable to the municipality due to
allocations made in the DORA or based on agreements between the municipality and the relevant departments.

The claims instituted against the municipality's insurance company are supported by valid insurance claims which are claimable in terms of
the insurance contract entered intg by the municipality. The average waiting period depends on the nature of the claim. No interest is
tharged on outstanding insurance claims.

The average credit period for Other receivables is 30 days. No interest is charged for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice.
Thereafter interest is charged at the prime rate per annum on the outstanding balance. The municipality strictly enforces its approved
credit control policy to ensure the recovery of Other receivables.

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Other recevables approximate their fair values.
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

11. Receivables from non-exchange transactions (continued)
The fair value of Other receivables was determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements entered inte
between the municipality and National / Provincial Departments as well as Other receivables. The current payment ratio’s of Other

receivables were also taken into account for fair value determination

The impairment prowision was calculated after individually assessing other receivables and by calculating the historical payment ratios and
assuming that future payment ratios would be similar to the historical payment ratios

The prowvision for doubtful debts on other receivables exist predominantly due to the possibility that these debts will not be recovered were
assessed individvally for impairment

in determining the recoverability of a receivable, the municipality considers any change in the credit quality of the receivable from the date
credit was initially granted up to the reporting date  The concentration of credit risk 15 imited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated. Accordingly, the management believe that there is na further credit provision required in excess of the Allowance for Doubtful
Debts

Included in Other receivables Grants & subsidies is an amount of R2,806,625 {2019: R2,806,625) pertaining to the housing projects, where
the Municipality is regarded as an agent for the DoHS5 in terms of GRAP 109

12. Cash and cash equivalents
12.1 Bank accounts

The municipahty bas the following bank accounts

FNB Primary Bank Account 627-023-103-85 84,293,562 8,777,432
FNB Secondary Bank Account 627-023-123-4% - -
FNB Traffic Fines Bank Account 620-715-265-14

FNB Motor Vehicle Licensing Bank Accaunt 628-046-375-70

Total 84,293,562 8,777,432
Bank statement balance at beginning of year 8,777,432 60,134,803
8ank statement balance at end of year 84,293,562 8,777,432
Cash book balance at beginning of year 5,949,916 3,969,323
Bank statement balance at end of year 84,293,562 8,777.432
Net movement / reconciling items (6,776,513) {2.827.516)
Cash book batance at end of year 77,517,049 5,949,916

-
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Prakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

12, Cash and cash equivalents {continued]
12.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following-

Call deposits and investments

Short term investment deposits 5.962 59,877,225
Cash at bank

Bank account 77,517,049 5,949,916
Cash on hand 26,450 26,450
Total cash and cash equivalents 77,549,461 65,853,591

All account balances are cleared on a daily basis to the main account The municipality does not have an overdraft facility with FNB.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, Bank Balances, Cash and Cash Equivalents inctude Cash-on-Hand, Cash in Banks and
Investments less than 12 months,

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of bank balances, cash and cash equivalents recorded at
amortised cost in the audited annual financial statements approximate their fair values

The fair value of bank balances, cash and cash equivatents was determined after considening the standard terms and condittons of
agreements entered into between the municipality and financial institutions

institution Account number Account type
ABSA 92-9096-7912 Call deposit 1,110 3,084,620
ABSA 92-9214-3948 Call deposit 1,104 4,021,260
ABSA 92.9416-2871 Call deposit 1,110 4,058,792
ABSA 92-9735-7532 Call deposit 1,106 4,035,730
ABSA 92-9737-3681 Call deposit 1,062 3,305,201
ABSA 40-9637-0104 Call deposit 470 40,076,216
5,962 58,581,819
FIRST NATIONAL BANK 747-2328-2667 32 Day Call Account - 1,277.020
INVESTEC 1400-020170-500 Call deposit - 18,386
Total investments 5,962 59,877,225
13. Current portion of long-term receivables
Current portion of non-current receivables 104,778 150,118
AN
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14. Borrowings

Total borrowings

Annuity loans 1,656,638,729 1.630,703,699

Less: Current portion transferred to current liabilities
Annuity loans

Non-current borrowings

14.1 Summary of arrangements

{19,681,848)

(184,388,046)

1,636,956,881

1,446,315,653

Annuity loans are repaid over periods varying from 3 to 17 (2019 3 to 10) years and at interest rates varying from 9.14% to 12.278%
(2019 6.75% to 12.278%) per annum. Annuity loans are not secured During 2019/2020 year, certain 10 year long term borrowings were
restructured. As part of the restructuring, interest amounting to R56,907,180 was capitalised

The fair value of borrowings was determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements entered into between the

municipality and the relevant financing nstitutions
Refer 1o Appendix ‘A’ for more detail on borrowings
15. Lease liabilities

15.1 Carrying value of lease liability

2020

Carrying value as at 3¢ June 2020
Finance lease hability

Transferred to current lrabulities

Total

2019

Carrying value as at 30 June 2019
Finance lease l:ability

lransferred to current liabilities

Total

Fair value Amaortised cost Total
1,440,194 1,440,194
1,717,999 1,717,999
3,158,193 3,158,193

Fair value Amortised cost Total
2,570,530 2,570,530
2,657,091 2,657,091
- 5,227,621 5,227,621

-,

»
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15. Lease liabilities {continued)
15.2 Obligations under finance leases

The municipality as lessee
The obligations under finance leases are as follow

Minimun lease payments payable

Payable within one year 1,951,234 3,027,669
Payable within two to five years 1,509,005 2,807,932
Tatal minimum [ease payments 3,460,239 5,835,601
Less: Future finance charges (302,046) (607,980)
Present value of minimum lease payments 3,158,193 5,227,621

Present value of minimum lease payments

Payable within one year 1,717,999 2,657,091
Payable within two to five years 1,440,194 2,570,530
Present value of lease obligations 3,158,193 5,227,621

Finance leases were entered into for certain photocopter machines for a lease period of 36 months, electronic cashboxes/drop safes for a
lease period of 48 months. Interest rates are fixed at the inception of the agreements No arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments, The minimum lease payments equals the fair value of the equipment

16. Employee benefits

Non-current employee benefits

Post employment health care benefits 16.1 141,432,000 132,524,000
Ex-Gratia pension benefits 16.2 1,304,001 1,891,000
Long service awards 16.3 35,387,000 35,565,001

178,123,001 169,980,001

Current employee benefits

Post employment heaith care benefits 16.1 9,605,000 8,816,000
Ex-Gratia pensian benefits 16.2 113,000 151,000
tong service awards 16.3 4,507,000 5,757,000
Provision for bonusses 164 19,229,141 17,604,049
Provision for performance bonusses 16.5 2,254,517 1,509,190
Staff leave provision 166 48,487,309 37,496,639
Provision for TASK backpay 167 17,226,570 11,028,231

101,422,537 82,362,109
Total employee benefits 279,545,538 252,342,110

%
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16. Employee benefits (continued}

16,1 Post employment health care benefits

The municipality provides certain post-retirement medical benefits by funding the medical aid contributions of qualifying retired members
of the municipality. According to the rules of the Medical Aid Funds, with which the mumicipality 15 associated, a member {who is on the
current conditions of service) is entitled to remain a continued member of such medical aid fund on retirement, in which case the
municipality is hable for a certain partion of the medica! aid membership fee. The municipality operates an unfunded defined benefit plan

for these qualifying employees

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 30 June 2020
by Mr Niel Fourie and Mr Julian van der Spuy of ZAQEN Actuaries Pty {Ltd). The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the

related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method

The Post Employee Health Care Benefit Plan is a defined benefit plan, of which the membaers are made up as follow

Number Number

In-service members {Employees) 731 725
Continuation members {Retirees) 228 221
Total members 959 246
The hiability in respect of past service has been estimated as follow

In-service members (Employees) 61,357,000 57,894,000
Continuation members (Retirees) 89,680,000 83,446,000
Total liability 151,037,000 141,340,000
Non-current 141,432,000 132,524,000
Current 9,605,000 8,816,000
Total liabifity 151,037,000 141,340,000

The munitipality makes monthly contributions for health care arrangements to the following Medical Aid Schemes
. Bonitas
L Hosmed
= Key Health
. LA Health
. Fed Health
. Samwumed

The Future-service Cost for the ensuing year is estimated to be R 3,999,000 whereas the Interest Cost is estimated to be R 18,136,000

The prncpal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuanial valuations were as foliow

‘-‘
ats
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16. Employee benefits {continued})

i) Rates of interest

Discount rate Yield curve Yield curve

Consumer Price Inflation {CPI) Difference Difference
between between
nominal and nominal and
yield curve yield curve

Health care cost inflation rate CPI+1% CPI+1%

Net effective discount rate Yield curve Yield curve
base base

GRAP 25 defines the determination of the Discount Rate Assurnption to be used as follow

“The discount rate that reflects the time value of money is best approximated by reference to market yields at the reporting date on
government bonds. Where there 1s no deep market in government bonds with a sufficiently long maturity to match the estimated maturity
of all the benefit payments, an entity uses current market rates of the appropriate term to discount shorter term payments, and estimates
the discount rate for longer maturities by extrapolating current market rates along the yield curve ”

The Actuaries used the nominal and real zero curves as at 30 June 2020 supplied by the JSE to determine the discount rates and CPI
assumptions at each relevant ttime period In the event that the valuation i1s performed prior to the effective valuation date, they used the
prevailing yield at the time of performing their calcuiations. The methadology was changed from a point estimate to that of a curve In order
1o present a more accurate depiction of the liability. Previously only one discount rate was used to value all the habilities. This changed
methodology would be seen as a change in estimate basis

ii) Mortality rates

Mortality before retirement has been based on the SA 85-90 mortahty tables. These are the most commonly used tables in the industry.
Mortality post-employment {for pensioners) has been based on the PA {90) ultimate mortality tables. No exphot assumption was made
about additionat mortality or health care costs due to AIDS

iii) Normal retirement age

The average retirement age for all active employees was assumed to be 63 years. This assurnption implicitly allows for ill-health and early
retirements. The normal retirement age [NRA} for all active employees was assurned to be 65 years

The armounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Fair value of plan assets
Unrecognised actuarial gains / {losses) -
151,037,000

Present value of unfunded cbhgations 141,340,000
Total benefit liability 151,032,000 141,340,000
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial performance are as follow:

Current service cost 3,734,000 3,348,000
interest cost 13,766,000 12,156,000
Actuarial losses / (gains) recogrised 2,486,611 10,861,605
Total post-retirement benefit included in employee refated costs 38 19,986,611 26,365,605

‘Q‘-“.

re
67 o

AUDITOR-

G EMNERAL

SOUTH AFRICA

Auditing to build public confidence

K A - 8 Match 2021

394



Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financ:al Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
16. Employee benefits (continued)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follow:
Balance at the beginning of the year 141,340,000 124,485,000
Service cost 3,734,000 3,348,000
Interest cost 13,766,000 12,156,000
Benefits paid {10,289,610) {9,510,605)
Actuarual losses f {gains) recognised 2,486,610 10,861,605
Present value of fund obligation at the end of the year 151,037,000 141,340,000
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit assets were as follow:
Balance at the beginning of the year -
Contributions from the employer 10,289,610 9,510,605
Benefits paid (10,289,610} (9,510,605}
Balance at the end of the year -
The history of experienced adjustments are as follow:

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Present value of defined henefit obligation 126,078,000 118,305,000 124,485,000 141,340,000 151,037,000
Fair value of plan assets - -
Deficit 126,078,000 118,305,000 124,485,000 141,340,000 151,037,000

Experienced adjustments on defined benefit
obligation

The effect of a 1% movement in the assumed rate of heaith care cost inflation s as follow

1% Decrease

Effect on the defired benefit obligation 144,092,000
Effect on the aggregate of the interest cost 17,271,000
Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost 3,742,000

Total accrued liability

The effect of a 20% movement in the assumed martality rates are as follow on the ensuing years assumptions

-20% Mortality

rate
Total accrued liability 161,342,000
Effect on the aggregate of the interest cost 19,414,000
effect on the aggregate of the current service cost 4,276,000

The municipality expects to make a contribution of R 9,605,000 to the Defined Benefit Plan during the next financial year

1% Increase
156,100,000
18,765,000
4,157,000

+20% Mortality
rate
142,326,000
17,056,000
3,754,000

Refer to note 58 Retirement Benefit Information to the audited annual financial statements for more information regarding the

municipality's other retirement funds that is Provincially and Nationally administered
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16. Employee benefits {continued)
16.2 Ex-Gratia pension benefits

The municipality provides pension and retirement gratuity benefits to certain employees who were in the employment of the former Paarl
and Wellington Municipalities (now incorporated into the Drakenstein Municipality) at 31-Dec-1994 {Wellington) and 31-Mar-1995
{Wellington} and still in the employment of Drakenstein Municipality at date of normal retirement, medical disability, retrenchment or
death. The gratuity is calculated on the salary benefits during 1994/1995

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 30 June 2020
by Mr Niel Fourie and Mr lulian van der Spuy of ZAQEN Actuaries Pty {Lid} The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the multiplying the annual pension provided, by an appropriate
annuity factor as at the valuation date.

The Ex-Gratia Pension Benefit Plan is a defined benefit plan, of which the members are made up as follow

Number Number

In-service members (Employees) 165 188
Continuation members (Retirees) 5 8
Total members " 170 196
The liabikty in respect of past service has been estimated as follow
In-service members {(Employees) -
Contmuation members (Retirees) 1,417,001 2,042,000
Total liability 1,417,001 2,042,000
Non-current 1,304,001 1,891,000
Current 113,000 151,000
Total liability 1,417,001 2,042,000
Lump sum benefit 1,075,001 1,321,000
Pension benefit 342,000 721,000

1,417,001 2,042,000

The interest-cost for the next year 1s estimated to be R 97,000. The actuartes are of opinion that future service cost need not be determined
for pension fund liability as all benefits vests immediately
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16. Employee benefits {continued)
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follow
i) Rates of interest
Lump sum Lump sum
valuation valuation
Discount rate 7.35 % 8.06 %
Consumer Price inflation (CP1) 314 % 480 %
Pension increase rate (Pensioners) 414 % S 80 %
Net effective discount rate 308 % 214 %
Pensioner Pensioner
valuation valuation
Discount rate 6.24 % 7.80 %
Consumer Price Inflation [CPI) 280% 460 %
Pension increase rate {Pensioners) 380 % 560 %
Net effective discount rate 235% 208 %

In accordance with GRAP 25 the discount rate was determined using the implied duration of the llabity to obtain an appropriate interest
rate on the yield curve. The nominal and real zero curves as at 30 June 2020 supplied by the JSE was used to determine the discounted rates

and CPl assumptions

11) Mortality rates

Meartality before retirement has been based on the PA (90) mortahty tables. These are the most commaonly used tables in the industry. It

was assumed that female spouses would be five years younger than their male spouses and vice versa

iii) Normal retirement age

The average retirement age for all active employees was assumed to be 63 years. This assumption imphcitly allows for ill-health and early

retirements. The normal retirement age (NRA] for all active employees was assumed to be 65 years

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follow:

Fair value of pfan assets
Unrecognised actuarial gains / {losses)
Present value of unfunded obhgations

Total benefit liability

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial performance are as folfow:

Service cost
Interest cost
Actuanal losses / (gains) recognised

Total post-retirement benefit included in employee related costs (Note 38)

1,417,001

2,042,000

1,417,001 2,042,000
155,000 204,000
(696,067} (548,592}
(541,067} {344,592}
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16. Employee benefits {continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follow:

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,042,000 2,515,000
Service cost = 2
Interest cost 155,000 204,000
Benefits paid {83,932) {128,408)
Actuarial losses / (gains) recognised {696,067) {548,592)
Present value of fund obligation at the end of the year 1,417,001 2,042,000

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit assets were as follow:

Batance at the beginning of the year - -
Contributions from the employer (83,932) {128,408)
Benefits paid 83,932 128,408

Balance at the end of the year -

The history of experienced adjustments are as follow:

2016 2017 2018 2015 2020
Present value of defined benefit oblgation 3,369,000 2,591,000 2,515,000 2,042,000 1,417,000
fair value of plan assets o - - -
Deficit 3,369,000 2,591,000 2,515,000 2,042,000 1,417,000

Experienced adjustments on defined benefit
obhgation . : 0 =

The effect of 3 1% movement in the assumed rate of pension increase inflation is as follow

Effect on the interest cost
Effect on the defined benefit obligation

The municipality expects to make a contribution of R 113,000 to the Defined Benefit Plan during the next financial year

1% Decrease
1,404,000
96,000

1% increase
1,430,000
98,000

Refer to note S8 Retirement Benefit Information to the audited annual financial statements for more information regarding the

municipality's other retirement funds that is Provincially and Nationally administered
16.3 Provision for long service awards

Provision for long-service awards
Less: Transfer to current provisions

Total non-current provisions

Non-current
Current

Total provisions at the end of the year

39,854,000 41,322,001
(4,507,000) (5,757,000}
35,387,000 35,565,001
35,387,000 35,565,001
4,507,000 5,757,000
39,894,000 41,322,001
%
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16. Employee benefits {continued)

Long service awards

The municipality operates a unfunded defined benefit plan for afl 1ts employees Under the plan, a Long Service Award Is payable after 10
years of continuous service and every 5 years thereafter to employees The provision 1s an estimate of the long-service based on historical
staff turnover. No other long-service benefits are provided to employees

The most recent actuanal valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carned out at 30 June 2020
by Mr Niel Fourie and Mr Julian van der Spuy of ZAQEN Actuaries Pty [Ltd). The present vaiue of the defined benefit obligation, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method

At year end 1,833 {2019: 1,850) employees were eligible for Long Services Awards

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follow

Discount rate Yield curve Yield curve

Consumer Price Inflation {CP1} Difference Drifference
between between
nominal and nominal and
yield curve yield curve

Normal salary increase rate CPi+1 CPI+1% CPi+1%

Net effective discournt rate Yield curve Yield curve
base base

GRAP 25 defines the determination of the Discount Rate Assurnption to be used as follow

“The discount rate that reflects the time value of money is best approximated by reference to market yields at the reporting date on
government bonds Where there 15 no deep market in government bonds with a sufficiently long maturity to match the estirmated matunity
of all the benefit payments, an entity uses current market rates of the appropriate term to discount shorter term payments, and estimates
the discount rate for longer maturities by extrapolating current market rates along the yield curve.”

The Actuaries used the nominal and real zero curves as at 30 June 2020 supplied by the JSE to determine the discount rates and CPI
assumptions at each relevant tirme period In the event that the valuation is performed prior to the effective valuation date, they used the
prevailing yield at the time of performing thetr calculations. The methodology was changed from a point estimate to that of a curve in order
to present 3 more accurate depiction of the liabihty. Previously only one discount rate was used to value all the habilities. This changed
methodology would be seen as a change in estimate basis

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follow:

Fair value of plan assets - -
Present value of unfunded obligations 39,894,000 41,322,001

Total benefit provision 39,894,000 41,322,001

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial performance are as follow:

Service cost 3,044,000 2,826,000
Interest cost 4,086,000 3,899,000
Actuarial losses / {gains) recognised {3,323,173) {1,540,266)
Total expense included in employee related costs 38 3,806,827 5,184,734
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16. Employee benefits {continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follow:

Balance at the beginning of the year 41,322,001 39,286,001

Service cost 3,044,000 2,826,000

Interest cost 4,086,000 3,899,000

Benefits paid (5,234,827} (3,148,734)
Actuarial losses / |gains) recognised (3,323,174) {1,540,266)
Balance at the end of the year 39,894,000 41,322,001

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit assets were as follow:

Balance at the beginning of the year - -

Contributions from the employer 5,234,827 3,148,734

Benefits paid {5,234,827) {3,148,734)

Balance at the end of the year

The effect of a 1% movement in the withdrawal rates are as follow on the ensuing years assumptions

Effect on the defined benefit obligation
Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost
Effect on the aggregate of the interest cost

The effect of a 20% movement in the withdrawal rates are as follow on the ensuing years assumptions

Effect on the defined benefit obligation
Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost
Effect on the aggregate of the interest cost

The municipahty expects to make a contribution of R 4,507,000 to the Defined Benefit Plan during the next finanaial year

1% Decrease
37,363,000
2,637,000
4,407,000

-20%
Withdrawal
rate
41,655,000
3,068,000
4,959,000

1% Increase
42,681,000
3,101,000
5,086,000

+20%
Withdrawal
rate
38,299.000
2,672,000
4,524,000

The Future-service Cost for the ensuing year is estimated to be R 2,856,000 whereas the Interest Cost is estimated to be R 4,730,000

16.4 Provision for honuses

The movement in provisions for bonuses are reconciled as follow

Prawvision for bonuses
Batance at the beginning of the year
Net rnovement

Balance at the end of the year

Current

17,604,049 15,233,132

1,625,092 2,370,917
19,22%,141 17,604,049
19,229,141 17.604,049

Service bonuses are granted to municipal employees as a 13th cheque. An estimate amount for the provision raised is determined

according to the amount aceruing to employees up to June from their previous bonus payment.
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16. Employee benefits (continued)

16.5 Provision for performance bonuses

Pravision has been made for performance bonuses in accordance with the performance agreements with each Executive Manager and the
City Manager using the best estimate of the potential perfarmance bonus payable. The actual bonuses wiil only be paid once the evaluation

committee appointed in terms of the Performance Management regulations has reviewed the performance agreements of the Executive
Management team and made a recommendation to the Council for final approval The performance bonuses have been provided as follow:

Strategic management team

Leibbrandt, JH {City Manager} 278,236 278,236
Carstens, 1 [Chief Financial Officeri{Until 31 March 2020) 167,658 223,545
Brown, B {Chief Financial Officer {(From 1 June 2020} 18,629 -
Boshoff, GBF [Executive Director. Community Services} (Untit 31 August 2018) - 38,970
lohaar, S [Executive Director: Corporate Services} 223,545 223,545
Hattingh, D [Executive Director: Engineering Services) {Untit 12 April 2019) . 175,110
Wust, M {Executive Director Engineering Services) {From 1 September 2019) 186,288 -
Waring, L (Executive Director: Planning and Development} 223,544 223,544
Esau. G (Executive Director: Commuruty Services) (From 1 November 2318} 223,545 130,401

1,321,445 1,293,351

The moverment in provisions are reconciled as follow

Provision for performance bonuses
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,509,190 1,428,712

Bonuses paid (215,839) {1,010,875)
Reversals of prior year prowvision {360,278} (201,997}
Increases in provision 1,321,444 1,293,351
Balance at the end of the year 2,254,517 1,509,190
Non-current -
Current 2,254,517 1,509,190
Total provisions at the end of the year 2,254,517 1,509,190

No performance bonusses was paid out during the 2015/20 financial year, except an amount of R215,839 pertaining to the 2015/16 and
2016/17 performance evaluation that had not yet been paid to Ms AME De Beer

16.6 Provision for staff leave

Staff leave provision 48,487,309 37,496,639

Non-current . 2
Current 48,487,309 37,496,639

Total provisions at the end of the year 48,487,309 37,496,639
-,
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16. Employee benefits (continued)

16.7 Provision for TASK backpay

Provision for TASK backpay 17,226,570 11,028,231
Non-current g i
Current 17,226,570 11,028,231
Total provisions at the end of the year 17,226,570 11,028,231

Included in Employee cost is a provision for TASK backpay, due to the revaluation of post on TASK and the movement from the "Van Der

Merwe" Salary scales to the TASK salary scales

17.  Provisions

Provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites 17.1 168,950,709 191,848,888
Balance of non-current provisions for rehabulitation at end of year 168,950,709 191,848,889
Balance of current provisions for rehabilitation at end of year . S
Balance of provisions for rehabilitation at end of year 168,950,709 191,848,889
17.1 Provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites

The movement in non-current provisions are reconciled as follow:

Balance at beginning of year 191,848,888 165,816,002
Changes in estimates: asset increase ito IGRAP2 918,613 22,115,242
Changes in estimates: asset decrease ito iGRAP2 (23,176,946} -
Unwinding of discount & other changes {639,846) 3,936,857
Rehabihtation expenditure during the year - {19.213)
8alance of provisions for rehabilitation at end of year 168,950,709 191,848,888

The council will incur further rehabilitation cost on its unrehabilitated dumpingflandfiti sites over the period 2024725 up to 2026/27 and
post monitoring costs thereafter. Provision has been made for the net present value of this cost based on the status quo as at 30 June 2020
Future interventions such as the proposed height extension of the Wellington landfill site may in future adjust the date and cost of

rehabilitation

During the year the municipality revised its prowision for the rehabilitation provision of landfill sites to include past-closure manitoring and
inspection costs as is required by the licence conditions and as clarified in the “Accounting for Landfill Sites" guidelines issued by the

Accounting Standards Board

The net effect of the change i estimate in the current year was an decrease in provision to the amount of R22.9 million. The change will
lead to a reduction of operating costs in future periods of the same amount as the post closure monitoring and inspection costs will be

funded from the provision
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Staterments for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

17. Provisions {continued}

Location Proposed rehabilitation Post closure
date monitoring date

Wellington existing 026/3027 2056/2057 53,527,057 62,480,713
Wellington old 2026/2027 2056/2057 30,577,895 35,934,491
Gouda Rehabtlitation complete 2048/2049 587,054 527,547
Saron Rehabilitation complete 2048/2049 419,981 377,410
Hermon Rehabilitation complete 2048/2049 523,764 470,672
Dal Josafat 2024/2025 2054/2055 12,865,392 13,673,449
Orleans 2024/2025 2054/2055 24,035,497 26,941,919
8oy Louw 2024/2025 2054/2055 44,069,347 49,324,983
Klapmuts landfill Rehabilitation complete 2029/2030 928,737 838 816
Wateruintjiesvlei landfill Rehabilitation complete 2029/2030 1,415,985 1,278,888

168,950,709 191,848,888

IPCE 15 a consulting engineering and environmental consulting firm appointed to determine a high-level concept-design stage costing-value
lamount) to cap and rehabilitate the landfill sites at the end of the current Financial Year (2019/2020) Their wndependence from
management Is monitored The firm is a member and fully subscribes to the Constitution and Code of Conduct of the Council of Engineers
of South Africa

Based on the work provided by IPCE, an applicable inftatron rate of 3 45%-4.50% has been determined and a discounted rate of 972%
11 28% has been utihsed

The funding required by the municipality to fund the rehabilitation has been assessed and based on the government bond rates with similar
maturity periods The municipality assessed the effect of discounting coupled with the future inflation rate to approximate the current cost

of the expected rehabilitation cost as disclosed above

1B. VAT control (receivable) / payable

Accrual VAT transactions {8,758.002) 12,918,939
VAT payable [control) 8.002,555 (8,771,384}
Total {755,447} 4,147,555

No interest is payable to SARS if the VAT is paid over timeously, but interest for late payments is charged according to the VAT Act. The
muricipality has financial risk policies in piace to ensure that payments are affected before the due date

19. Consumer deposits

Deposits 52.606,653 57,004,529

Guarantees held in heu of deposits were R 21,161,656 (2019 R 16,063,607}

Consumer Deposits are paid by consumers on application for new water, electricity and refuse connections. The deposits are repaid when
the accounts are terminated In cases where consumers default on their accounts, the municipality can utilise the deposit as payment for
the outstanding account

No interest is paid on Consumer Deposits held
The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Consumer Deposits approximate therr fair values

The fair value of Consumer Deposits was determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements entered into
between the municipality and its consumers
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

20. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade Creditors 201 248,936,928 213,082,874
Payments received in advance 202 37,987,552 22,690,833
Retention 203 36,778,312 49,306,190
Other payables 204 21,813,703 13,770,236
Nett VAT accrual on outstanding recewvables 205 42,288,528 31,782,917
Total 387,805,023 330,633,050

20.1 Trade Creditors

Eskom Limited (Bulk Purchases) 157,303,329 140,032,888
Other trade creditors 91,633,599 73,049,886
Total 248,936,928 213,082,874

20.2 Payments received in advance

Payments received in advance 37,987,55: 22,690,833

20.3 Retention

Retentions 36,778,312 49,306,190

20.4 Other payables

Other payables and accruals 21,515,382 13,481,751
Rental leases: straight limng 298,321 288,485
Total 21,813,703 13,770,236

20.5 Nett VAT accrua! on outstanding receivables

VAT accrual on receivables 53,660,893 39,075,397
VAT on provision for doubtful debt {11,372,365) (7,292,480}
Total 42,288,528 31,782,917

The average credit period on purchases is 30 days from the receipt of the statement, as determined by the MFMA, No interest is charged
for the first 30 days from the date of receipt of the invoice Thereafter interest is charged in accordance with the credit policies of the
various individual creditors that the municipality deals with. The municipality has financtal nisk policies in place to ensure that all payables
are paid within the credit time frame.

The management of the municipaiity is of the opinion that the carrying value of Creditors approximate their fair values

The fair value of Creditors was determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements entered into between the
municipality and other parties.

The amount payable to ESKOM included in trade and other payables are for the May and June accounts The Mumicipahty did not owe
ESKOM any debt older than 30 days during 2019/20

The VAT accrual on outstanding receivables, refers to the VAT portion of outstanding receivables, which is not yet payable to SARS, as the
Municipality is registered on the payments basis for VAT with SARS, in accordance with Section 15{2){a} of the Value-Added Tax Act No 89
of 1991.
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

21. Payables from non-exchange transactions
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Conditional grants from other spheres of government

National Government {Unconditional Grants) . L
National Gevernment {Conditional Grants) 652,078 639,327

Provincial Government {Conditiona! Grants) 21,108,212 25,815,792
Other Grants 7,204,240 3,142,404
Guarantees and Donations (Linconditional) 987,208 987,209
Total conditional grants and receipts 29,951,738 30,584,732

These amounts are separately mvested in terms of section 12 of the MFMA. Refer note 36 for more detall of grants from National and
Provincial Government

Refer to Appendix 'L" for more detail on Conditional Grants
22. Housing development fund

Realising housing proceeds

Balance at beginning of the year 15,607,722 18,413,017
Plus - tnterest and redemption, and other on housing schemes 134,790 224,981
Plus . {Net Loss} / Surplus on letting schemes 5,842,380 {2,132,826)
Less : Housing subsidies expenditure {383,373) {897,449)
Balance at the end of the year 21,201,519 15,607,723

Unrealised housing proceeds

Balance at beginning of the year 1,180,473 2,114,466
Long term housing faans {381,238} (933,994)
Balance at the end of the year 799,235 1,180,472
Total 22,000,754 16,788,155

The Housing Development Fund is not cash backed, as the value of outstanding housing receivables exceeds the value of the fund

23. Reserves and funds

Re-valuation reserve 1,451,197,728 1,480,380,383

The Revaluation Reserve arises on the revaluation of Land and Buildings Where revalued Land or Buildings are sold, the portion of the
Revaluation Reserve that relates to that asset, and is effectively realised, is transferred directly to Accumulated Surplus

Distributions from the Revaluation Reserve can be made when it is in accordance with the requirements of the municipality's accounting
policy. The payment of cash distributions out of the reserve is restricted by the terms of the municipality's These restrictions do not apply
to any amounts transferred to the Accumulated Surplus Council do not currently intend to make any distnbution from the Revaluation
Reserve

Refer to Statement of Changes in Net Assets for more detail and the movement on Reserves
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Firancial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2020

2019

24.  Accumutated surplus/ (Deficit)

Total Accumulated Surplus

2,691,690,921

2,583,896,254

The Capitalisation Reserve equals the carrying value of the items of property, ptant and equipment from the former legislated funds. The

Capitalisation Reserve ensures consumer equity and is not backed by cash

Refer to Statement of changes in net assets for more detall and the movement on Accumulated Surplus

25. Service charges

Electricity
Sale of Electricity

Less: income forgone

Totat

Water
Sale of Water

Less: Income fargone

Total

Waste management
Waste management {solid waste)
Less: Income forgone

Total

Waste water management
Waste water management (sewerage and sanitation)
Less: Income forgone

Total

Total service charges

26. Sales of goods and rendering of services

BuHding Plan Approval

Camping Fees

Cemetery and Burial
Cleaning and Removal

Entrance Fees

Laboratory Services

Legal Fees
Library Fees

Photocopies and Faxes

Sale of Goods
Total

1,218,737,240 1,071,368,672
(47,334,224) (52,278,593}
1,171,403,016 1,019,090,079
175,680,380 184,157,813
{11,731,103) (16,337,878}
163,949,277 167,819,935
155,887,732 138,258,426
{31,517.772) (37.119,592)
124,369,960 101,138,834
133,764,324 116,246,238
{17,380,367} {20,925,539)
116,383,957 95,320,699
1,576,106,210 1,383,369,547
5,437,127 8,012,679
1,750,219 2,207,848
3,471,888 3,142,365
348,084 423,695
615,510 384,909
107
562,910 1,637,698
13,322 21,861
143,265 157,244
11,952 13,251
12,754,384 16,001,550
.
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

27. Rental from fixed assets

Land and buildings 1,983,094 1,949,782
Housing rental 33,672,974 30,790,948
Other rental revenue 1,850,785 1,505,072
Less Income forgone {21,515,817) {24,699,975)
Total 15,991,036 9,545,827
Operating leases {municipality as lessor)

At Statement of Financial Performance date the Municipality has contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments.

Within one year 240,863 666,068
In second to fifth year inclusive 666,046 1,145,466
After five years 182,812 125,712
Total 1,089,721 1,937,246

The Municipality has significant current lease arrangements for land and buildings over a period varying from 2 up to 32 years {2019 2 up

10 32 years) being subject to increased lease payments

All contingent lease payments are based on the actual contract value of the property leased and the escalations vary from 7 5% up to

12 32%
No other restrictions were imposed

28. Interests oninvestments

Shert-term investments and call accounts

29. Dividends

External investment

30. Interest earned from receivables

Exchange receivables

6,140,446 14,208,454

12,600 15,120

6,421,577 9,574,993
-~
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

31. Operational revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Operation revenue from exchange transactions 4,266,744 9,309,023

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Goods and services received in kind 2,368,493 14,363,654
Exchange Revenue 4,266,744 9,309,023
Non-exchange revenue 2,368,493 14,369,654
Total operational revenue 6,635,237 23,678,677

Services received in kind

Included in goods and services in kind, is an amount of RO (2019: R14,165,305) related to interest payable on an external loan that was
waived by DBSA as a grant from the IEPSAS fund was received by the DBSA [the fender). This grant covered a part of the interest payable on
the loan received from the DBSA during the 2017/2018 year in terms of GRAP 23, where lenders waive their right to colfect a debt owed by
an entity, revenue asising from debt forgiveness is measured at the carrying amount of the debt forgiven.

32. Licences or permits

Exchange revenue 20,240,886 17,643,029

Included in licenses and permits is an amount of R14,067,528 (2019: R13,537,700) received from the Department of Transport and Public
Works as agency fees for mator vehicle license services, which the Municipality performs on behalf of the Department of Transport and
Public Works

33. Gainf(Loss}) on disposal of fixed and intangible assets

Gains /[ losses) on disposals of fixed assets 331 (2,326,716} 2,002,228
Fair vaiue adjustment 332 1,812,863 1,946,205
Total {513,853) 3,948,433

33.1 Gains / {losses) on disposals

Gans / [losses) on disposal on PPE, |A, IP & HA (2,247,124) 4,268,359
Gains / {losses} from assets from non-exchange transactions - 39,911
Gains / {Iosses} on inventary {79,592} (2.306,042)
Total {2,326,716} 2,002,228

33.2 Fair value adjustment

Investment property 1,818,200 1,950,000

financial assets {5,337) {3,795}

Total 1,812,863 1,946,205
T,
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2020

2019

34. Property rates

Residential properties

267,055,508

212,715,017

Agricultural property 57.359,173 57,650,326
Business and commercial properties 87,178,470 94,394,302
State-owned properties 28,346,623 25,812,412
Less income forgone (128,048,211} {119,925,316)
Total 311,891,563 271,147,341
Valuation as at 30 June 2020

Residentia 39,781,258,837 35,849,214, 870
Agricultural 8,496,836,800 8,521,896,600
Commercia! 7,466,017,700 10,580,458,972
State-owned properties 3,604,996,855 2,470,077,050
Total property valuations 59,349,110,192 57,421,647,492

Valuations on land and buildings are performed every 4 years The last general valuation came into effect on 01 July 2017. Interim
valuations are processed on an annual basis to take into account changes in indrvdual property values due to alterations 2nd subdivisions

A umiform rate for the same class and type of property was applied with the implementation of the Property Rates Act A rate on different
categories was applied to property valuations to determine assessment rates. Rebates of 50% are applied to pensioners. A discount of 20%

was granted to the state institutions

Rates are levied monthly on property owners and are payable the 15th of each month for monthly rate payers of Drakenstein areas and

15th October for annual payers. Interest s levied at the prime rate on outstanding rates amounts

35. Fines, penalties and forfeits

Fines, penalties and forfeits 351 82,126,344 75,253,291

35.1 Fines, penalties and forfeits

Traffic fines

Service prowvider fines 80,838,912 74,103,860

Other fines

Building fines 46,348 5,000

lilegal connections - Electricity 132,638 177,810

Overdue books 64,052 100,036

Pound fees 1,044,394 866,585
1,287,432 1,149,431

Total 82,126,344 75,253,291

36. Transfers and subsidies - Revenue

Operational

Allocations 188,658,256 168,125,090

Capital

Allocations 180,713,799 177,719,482

Total 369,372,055 345,844,572
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

36. Transfers and subsidies - Revenue (continued]

Unconditional grants

Equitable share 150,601,000 137,518,000

Other 31,011,342 7,178,454

Operational grants 181,612,342 144,696,454

Conditional grants

National Government 101,071,554 66,277,203

Provincial Government 89,455,664 137,363,776

Provincial Government - {117,295}
Tota! conditional grants 190,527,218 203,523,684

Subtotal 372,139,560 348,220,138

Offsetting of housing expenditure where municipality is seen as an agent (429,953) {813,097)
Recognition of revenue in terms of GRAP 11 (2,339,190} (1,562,469)
Total Government Grant and Subsidies 369,370,417 345,844,572

National Government {Unconditional Grants)

Balance unspent at beginning of year = 5
Current year 150,601,000 137,518,000

Conditions met - transferred to revenue {150,601,000) {137,518,000}
Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilities 21 -

in terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent commurity members All registered
indigents receive a 100% monthly subsidy for the basic charges of Electricity, Refuse Removal, Sewerage and Water Services, the subsidy 15
adjusted as taniffs increase. All gualifying registered indigent households receive 6 kl water and 50 kWh electricity free every month

National Government (Conditional Grants)

Balance unspent at beginning of year (639,327) (10,643,587)
Current year receipts {101,084,304) {56,272,943)
Conditions met - transferred to revenue 101,071,554 66,277,203
Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilities 21 {652,077) (639,327)

These grants were used 1o construct infrastructure assets for the Municipality. Other than the unspent amount, the conditions of the grant
have been met.

This grant received from National Government are for operational and capital expenditure projects related to budget reform and
implementation of the MFMA_ Qther than the unspent amount, the conditions of the grant have been met

Provincial Government (Conditianal Grants)

Balance unspent at beginning of year (25,815,792} {39,335,163)
Current year receipts {84,749,719) (123,844,405}
Conditions met - transferred to revenue 89,455,664 137,363,776
Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilities 21 {21,109,847) {25,815,792)
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

36. Transfers and subsidies - Revenue {continued)

Conditions not met - repaid to grant provider 60,000
Condiions not et - repaid to grant provider 57,295
Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilities 21 - 117,295

These grants received from Provincial Government are for operational and capital expenditure such as Revenue from Housing Grants and
the related housing operating expenditure where Drakenstein Municipality is regarded as an agent in terms of GRAP amounted to

R 429,953 (2019 R 813,097} In terms of 3 GRAP interpretation, where a municipality is regarded as an agent, the revenue should be set off
against the operating expenditure

Other Grants

Balance unspent at beginning of year (3,142,404) {2,783,564)
Current year receipts {27,443,618) (2,209,423}
Conditions met - transferred to revenue 23,381,782 1,850,583

Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilities 21 (7,204,240} {3,142,404)

These grants received from other insututions are for operational and capital expenditure projects Other than the unspent amount, the
conditions of the grant have been met No funds have been withheld. These include monetary capital in-kind

Guarantees , denations and other contributions

Balance unspent at beginning of year {987,208) {587,208)
Current year receipts (7,629,561) {5,327,871)
Conditions met - transferred to revenue 7,629,561 5,327,871
Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilities 21 {987,208) {987,208)

These grants received from other institutions are for operationat and capital expenditure projects Other than the unspent amount, the
conditions of the grant have been met No funds have been withheld

37. Construction contract revenue

Housing projects

Kingston / tantana (Construction) 1,151,848 1,562,469
simondium (Planning} 1,187,341
Total 2,339,190 1,562,469

Revenue and expenses on housing contracts are recognized by reference to the stage of completion
of the specfic contract

38. Employee related cost

Total employee related cost 38.2 667,786,183 660,159,716
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 tune 2030

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
38. Employee retated cost {continued)
38.2 Municipal staff costs
Basic salary 444,503,575 426,570,671
Social Contributions 99,472,690 91,575,497
Travel or Motor Vehicle 27,092,375 28,508,156
Housing Benefits 4,318,705 4,861,151
Qvertime payments 26,292,036 36,437,635
Acting and Post Related Allowances 1,231,265 1,292 968
5hift Additional Remuneration 2,362,260 2,002,978
Standby Allowance 9,061,813 10,992,384
Night Shift 3,181,854 2,779,133
Workman Compensation 2,420,354 2,935,787
Cellular and Telephone 3,880,950 2,736,191
Contribution to leave reserve 13,556,420 6,186,738
Provision for performance bonuses 961,166 1,091,354
Provision for TASK backpay 6,198,351 11,028,238
Defined Benefit Plan Expenses: Post Employment Health Care
Current Service Cost 3,734,000 3,348,000
Actuarial [Gains) / Losses 2,486,610 10,861,605
Interest Cost 13,766,000 12,156,000
Defined Benefit Plan Expenses: Ex Gratia Pension Benefits
Current Service Cost - -
Actuarial {Gains) { Losses (696,068) {548,592)
Interest Cost 155,000 204,000
Defined Benefit Plan Expenses: Long Services
Current Service Cost 3,044,000 2,826,000
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses {3,323,173) {1,540,266)
Interast Cost 4,086,000 3,899,000
Less Costs Recharged to capital projects - {44,513)
Total 667,786,183 660,159,716
"'“\‘;
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

39, Remuneration of councillors

Executive Mayor (Poole, Cl} 1,046,957 1,006,728
Deputy Executive Mavyor (Combrink, GC) 837,597 805,382
Speaker (Stowman, AC) 837,597 805,382
Chief Whip {(Koegelenberg, RA) 785,247 755,045
Mayoral Committee Members

Mayoral Committee Member Of Rural Development (MA Andreas) 785,247 755,045
Mayoral Committee Member Of Social Services (E Gouws) 785,247 87,284
Mayoral Cormnmittee Member Of Social Services (W Philander) - 561,446
Mayoral Committee Member Of Human Settlements And Property Development (L 785,247 755,045
Cyster)

Mayoral Committee Member Of Environment And Open Spaces {C Kearns) 785,247 755,045
Mayoral Committee Member Of Corporate Services (LP Mokoena) 785,247 755,045
Mayorat Committee Member Of Public Safety (R Srnuts) 785,247 755,045
Mayoral Committee Member Of Comrunication And Intergovernmental Relations (RH 785,247 755,045
Van Nieuwenhuizen)

Mayoral Committee Member Of Engineering Services {JF Le Roux) 785,247 755,045
Mayoral Committee Member Of Planning & Economic Development And Tourism {) 785,247 755,045
Miller)

Mayoral Committee Member Of Recreation, Arts And Culture (LT Van Niekerk) 785,247 755,045
All other councillors 16,826,307 16,252,900
Celiphane & data allowances 2,834,200 2,868,031
Re:mbursive travel aliowances 6,584 7,584
Total 31,026,999 29,945,187

In Kind Benefits
The Executive Mayor, Deputy Executive Mayor, Speaker, and Mayoral Committee members are employed full-time. Each is provided with
an office, administrative and secretanal support at the cost of the Council

The Executive Mayor and Deputy Mayor and other full-ime Mayoral Committee members have access to Council owned vehicles for
ceremorual and official functions

Councillors receive a total cost to company package as determined by the Notice for “Determination of Upper Limits of Salaries, Aliowances
and Benefits of Different Members of Municipal Councils”, issued in terms of Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act, 1998, and may
structure it as it wishes, furthermore they recerve a maximum of R44,200 per year (2019 R44 200} as a cellphone and data allowance in
accordance with the notice. Other councillors receive an average of R331,335 (2019: R318,591) per year, except the chairperson of MPAC,
who receives an average of R423,214 (2019 R408,860) per year.

Furthermore councillors receive the benefit of special risk insurance caver {SASRIA) as provided for in terms of the notice . This insurance
cover, should cover the loss of or damage to a councillor's personal immovable or moveable property and assets, excluding property used
by such councillor for business purposes, as well as hfe and disability cover, for any loss or damage caused by riot, civil unrest, strike or
public disorder
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 lune 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

39, Remuneration of councillors (continued)

List the name of the councillor which at any time during the relevant financial year was in arrears for Amount outstanding

maore than 90 days. for more than 90

days

IuLY 2019

CL GEORGE N/NN 1,542

AUGUST 2019

CL GEORGE N/NN 1,859

DECEMBER 2019

CLSMIT J/DR 673

JANUARY 2020

CL VAN NIEKERK HW/LT 742
4,816

40. Depreciation and amortisation

Amortisation

Intangible assets 5.1 1,406,299 874,669

Depreciation

Praperty, plant and equipment 3 214,317,457 210,412,931

Total 215,723,756 211,287,600

41, Impairment losses on financial assets

Contribution (to}/from provision for impairment to surplus and deficit

Consumer receivables and availability charges receivables 83,162,545 47,190,813

Statutory receivables. Property Rates 3,959,701 {5,595,770)

Statutory receivables Traffic fines 66,195,634 64,013,206

Long term receivables 170,149 .

Total 153,488,029 105,608,249

Drakenstein Municipality uses the allowance account {provision for impairment) against which actual debts written off are recorded. During

the year, the following debt was written off against the allowance account

Bad debts written-off

Consumer receivables and availability charges receivables
Statutory receivables: Property Rates

Statutory receivables: Traffic Fines

Total

42.  Impairment losses on PPE, 1A and HA

Impairment losses on fixed assets recognised
Property, plant and equipment

{39,772,133) {93,738,576)

(1,257,506} (2.644,433)

(70,137,705) {54,490,540})

(111,167,344) {150,873,549|

293,482 1,006,785
\"-:-‘-:
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Anpual Financial Staternents for the year ended 30 fune 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand - 2020 2019

43, Interest, dividends and rent on land

interest 431 178,731,085 158,386,287

43.1 Interest cost
Financial babilities

J Long-term liabilities - interest paid 121,132,523 143,899,763
. Long-term liabilities - interest capitaiised due to restructuring 56,907,180 -
. Finance leases 434,841 321,219
178,474,544 144,220,982

Long-term liabilities - non-exchange transaction - 14,165,305
QOverdue accounts 256,541 .
256,541 14,165,305

Tatal 178,731,085 158,386,287

Included in goods and services in kind, is an amount of RD (2019 R14,165,30%) related to interest payable on an external loan that was
waved by DBSA as a grant from the IPSAS fund was received by the DBSA (the lender) This grant covered a part of the interest payable on
the loan received from the DBSA durning the 2017/2018 year, In terms of GRAP 23, where lenders waive their nght to collect a debt owed by
an entity, revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the carrying amount of the debt forgven

tncluded i interest paid is interest amounting to R56,903,698 (2019 RO) that was capitalised during 2019/2020 year, when a number of
long-term loans of the municipality was restructured

44. Bulk purchases

Electricity: Eskom 768,631,262 673,707,616
Water 9,820,466 4,306,442
Total 778,451,728 678,014,058

44.1 Electricity losses

Reconciliation of XWh losses

KWh units purchased 713,972,614 728,501,883
KWh units sold (693,022,704) (688,291,696}
KWh loss (Technical and Non-technical) 20,249,910 40,210,187
Average value of losses {cost] 22,560,291 37,185,778

Percentage loss:
Technical losses 293 % 552%
Norm of losses 10.00 % 1000 %

Reasons for losses
. Technical losses
. Unmetered services
. Theft
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
figures in Rand 2020 2019

44. Bulk purchases {continued)

44.2 Water losses

Systemn input volume (Kilolitres) 12,051,013 10,428,832
Billed metered consumption {ilohtres) {9,983,321) (8,836,669}
Total kilolitres loss (Technical and Non-technical) 2,067,692 1,592,163

Comprising of:

Technical fosses 2,038,876 1,377,669
Non-technical tosses 28,816 214,494
Total 2,067,692 1,592,163

Percentage loss: *

Technical losses 16.92 % 13.21%
Non-technical losses 024% 2.06 %
Total 17.16 % 15.27 %
Norm of losses: 15.00 % 15.00 %

Reasons for losses:
. Burst pipes
. Use of unmetered fire water connections at flat buildings and factaries
. Open spaces & sports figlds that are still unmetered
. Undetected leaks underground
. Scouring of mainlines and reservoirs as part of the operational procedure to ensure good water quality

*The water losses per the Annual Financial Statements takes inta account water that was metered but not billed Whereas the Annua
Performance Repart shows an actual technical water loss of 16,92% (2019 13.21%), as unbilled metered water is not taken into account

45. Contracted services

Consuitants and professional services 451 25,978,258 29,894 064
Contractors 452 107,296,338 115,509,390
Qutsourced services 453 13,998,117 5,372,290
Total 147,272,713 150,775,744

45.1 Consuitants and professional services

Business advisory services 19,803,833 23,990,354
Legal advice and litigation 4,450,466 4,962,450
Other consultants and professtonal services 1,723,955 941,260
Total consultants and professional services o 25,97"8,258 29,894,064
..
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

45. Contracted services {continued)
45.2 Contractors

General services

Housing project expenditure 2,488,215 4,011,414
Catening services 350,942 991,017
Management of informal settlements 1,704,015 824,661
Other contractor services 5,270,049 8,274,520
Safeguard and security 37,553,076 33,974,077
Total general services 47,406,297 48,075,689

Maintenance services

Maintenance of buildings and facilitres 5,746,857 13,898,521
Maintenance of equipment 27,381,563 21,190,984
Maintenance of unspecified assets 26,761,621 32,344,196
Total maintenance service §9,890,041 67,433,701
Total contractor 107,296,338 115,509,390

45.3 Qutsourced services

General services

Traffic Fines Management 2,467,625 2,538,728
Refuse Removal 7,607,833 86,400
Other outsourced services 3,922,659 2,747,162
Total general services 13,998,117 5,372,290

46. Operational cost

Advertising, Publicity and Marketing 2,777,864 5,132,143
Bank Charges, Facility and Card Fees 4,740,868 4,862,752
Commission 8,033,812 9,238 766
Communication 6,106,989 7,223,031
Contribution to provision for rehab of landfill site (639,846) 3,936,857
External Audit Fees 7,013,381 7,435 898
External Computer Service 7,803,726 6,676,476
nsurance Underwriting 7,060,379 7,404,776
Licences 2,291,253 2,218,306
Other operational cost 3,339,472 4,258,854
Printing, Publications and Books 1,808,976 2,500,151
Professional Bodies, Membership and Subscription 6,609,273 6,262,545
Skills Development Fund Levy 4,874,458 5,180,039
Uniform and Protective Clothing 2,158,384 2,581,410
Total 63,978,989 74,912,004

Refer to note 17 for an explanation on the reversal of the provision for the rehabilitation of landfill site
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Finangial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

47. Operating leases

Operating leases 16,995,086 31,746,286
Dperating leases {(municipality as lessee)

Land and buildings

Payable within one year 7,892,893 7.456,491
Payable in second to fifth year inclusive 8,845,993 16,739,885
Payable after five years ; .
Total 16,739,886 24,196,376

The Municipality has significant current lease arrangements for land and buildings over a period varying from 2 years and 4 months up to 9

years and 11 months being subject to increased lease payments

All contingent lease payments are based on the actual contract value of the property leased and the escalations vary from 5 6% up to 8 5%

{2019 5.6% up to 8 5%)
No other restrictions were imposed

48. Net cash from/{used) operating activities

Surplus [deficit) after capital transfers and contributions 84,073,134 {9.062,937)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 215,723,756 211,287,607
{Gains) / Losses on disposal of assets 2,247,122 {4,268,360)
Fair value adjustment {1.818,200) {1,950,000)
{Gain)/Losses on disposal of inventory 79,592 2,306,042

Increase / (Decrease) in provisions {22,898,177) 26,032,887

Impairment loss 153,781,511 106,615,033

Housing Development Fund (248,564) {672,469)
Provision for landfill rehab - \GRAP 2 adjustment 22,258,333 {22,115,242)
Assets from capital grant in-kind {35,774,620) (29,121,525)
Gain on assets from non-exchange transactions = (39,911}
Fair value adjustments on listed stock 5,339 3,795

Lease smoothing 219 {1,251}
Leave provision 13,556,420 6,186,738

13th Chegue proviston 19,229,140 17,604,049

Long service award 3,806,827 5,184,734

Task Provision 6,198,339 11,028,238

Post retirement 19,986,610 26,365,605

Performance bonus 961,166 1,091,354

Ex Gratia pension (541,068) {344,592)
Capitalisation of interest 57.342,021 -

Movement in working capital

{Increase) / Decrease in receivables from non-exchange transactions {105,086,849) {51,040,956)

{increase) / Decrease in inventory
{Increase) / Decrease in receivables from exchange transactions

(1,090,371}
{129,447,599]

(3.835.,127)
(75,139,693}

{Increase) / Decrease in post retirement benefits and long services {35,994,006) (32,099,699}
increase / {Decrease) in trade and other payabies 55,750,324 39,221,700
Increase / {Decrease) in unspent conditional grants and receipts {632,994) (23,120,377}
Increase / {Decrease) in other current liabilities (4,903,002) 52,267,649
Net cash flows from operating activities 316,564,403 252,383,292
-,
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
49. GRAP 3 adjustments
i) Adjustments of statement of financial performance items
Previously Correction of Change in Re- Restated
reported error accounting classification
policy
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Services charges 1.332,439.665 26,175,909 24,699,974 1,383,369,548
Sales of goods and rendering of services 16,001,550 16,001,550
Rental from fixed assets 34,245,803 {24,699,974) 9,545,829
Fimance income and divdends 23,798,567 23,798,567
Operational revenue - Exchange 9,309,022 9,309,022
Licences or permits 17,643,030 17,643,030
(Gain on disposal of assets 3,948,435 3,948,435
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Property rates 271,147,343 271,147,343
Surcharges and taxes 1,339,281 1,339,281
Fines, penalties and forfeits 75,253,291 - 75,253,291
Transfers and subsidies 345,188,088 2,218,852 {1,562,469) 345,844,571
Operational revenue - Non exchange 14,369 654 14,369,654
Construction contract revenue 1,562,469 1,562,469
Total revenue 2,140,785,294 28,398,861 3,948,435 2,173,132,590
Expenditure
Employee related cost 671,960,597 {11,800.889} 660,159,708
Councillor related cost 29,945,188 . 29,945,188
Depreciation and amortisation 210,624,362 663.236 - 211,287,598
Imparrment losses on financial assets . - 105,608,249 105,608,249
Impairment losses on PPE, 1A and HA - 1,006,785 1,006,785
Interest paid 158,386,286 - 158,386,286
Bulk purchases - electricity 673,707,616 673,707,616
Bulk purchases - water 4,306,442 - 4,306,442
inventory 57.435,330 539,495 57,974,825
Contracted services 146,585,479 3,912,675 150,498,154
Transfers and subsidies 22,656,356 - 22,656,356
Operational cost 74,857,070 54,937 74,912,007
Operating leases 31,688,152 58,136 31,746,288
Total expenditure 2,082,152,878 (6,572,410} 106,615,034 2,182,195,502
Gains and losses
impairment losses on financial assets 105,608,249 - {105,608,249)
Impairment losses on PPE, 1A, HA 1,006,785 - . (1,006,785}
Gains (Losses) on disposat of assets {4,509,285) 240,925 - 4,268,360
Falr value adjustment on financial assets 3,795 - (3,795)
Fair value ad;ustment on investment {1,950,000) . 1,950,000
property
Gains (Losses) on inventory 2,306,042 - {2,306,042)
Gains from assets from non-exchange (39,912) - 39,912
transactions
102,425,674 240,925 - [102,666,599)
Surplus for the year {43,793,258) 34,730,346 - - (9,062,912}
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial $tatements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
49. GRAP 3 adjustments (continued)
ii) Adjustment of statement of financial position
Note Previously Correction of Change in Re- Restated
reported error accounting classification
pohcy
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6,037,650,655 25,273,175 6,062,923,830
Heritage assets 41,223,700 - 41,223,700
intangible assets 5,792,294 5,792,294
Investment property 37,740,000 37,740,000
Non-current investments 124,968 124,968
Non-current receivables from exchange 834,850 834,850
transactions
6,123,366,467 25,273,175 6,148,639,642
Current assets
Inventories 25,326,036 - - 25,326,036
Trade and other receivables from exchange 276,075,704 315,027 {4,633,048) 271,757,683
transactions
Recevables from non-exchange 82,038,478 {14,841,563) 4,633,048 71,829,963
transactions
Cash and cash equivalents 65,853,590 65,853,590
Current portion of long-term receivables 150,118 150,118
449,443,926 {14,526,536) 434,917,390
Totat assets 6,572,810,393 10,746,639 6,583,557,032
Net assets and liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 1,446,315,652 1,446,315,652
Lease liabilities 2,570,530 2,570,530
Employee benefits 169,980,000 169,980,000
Provisions 183,600,026 8,248,862 191,848,888
1,802,466,208 8,248,862 1,810,715,070
Current liabilities
Consumer deposits 57,004,529 - 57.004,529
Trade and other payables from exchange 362,975,484 {32,342,432) 330,633,052
transactions
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 31,354,236 {769,503) 30,584,733
Borrowings 184,388,046 184,388,046
Lease liabilities 2,657,091 - 2,657,091
VAT payable (Control) 4,000,227 147,330 4,147,557
Employee benefits 94,162,998 (11,800,889) 82,362,109
736,542,611 (44,765,494) 691,777,117
Total net assets
Housing development fund 16,788,195 16,788,195
Reserves and funds 1,513,286,226 {32,905,843) 1,480,380,383
Accumulated surplus 2,503,727,153 80,169,114 2,583,896,267
4,033,801,574 47,263,271 4,081,064,345
Total net assets and liabilities 6,572,810,393 10,746,639 6,583,557,032
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
49. GRAP 3 adjustments {continued)
i) Adjustment of cash flow statement
Note Previously Correction of Changein Re- Restated
reported arfor accounting classification
policy
Cash flows from operating activities
Property rates 273,011,822 273,011,822
Sale of goods and services 1,252,219,365 26,179,908 1,278,399,273
Transfers, subsidies and construction 295,890,227 2,218,952 298,109,179
contract revenue
Interest recewved 23,783,447 23,783,447
Dividends recerved 15,120 15,120
Other receipts and fines recewved 106,060,984 106,060,984
Net VAT received 52,472,054 52,472,054
Payments
Employees cost (654,884,120) - (654,884,120}
Supphers (964,416,531} (15,434,129) {979,850,660)
Interest paid (144,220,981} - {144,220,981)
Net cash from operating activities 239,531,387 12,964,731 - 252,896,118

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and egquipment
and intangible assets

{576,123,335)

{13,032,715)

(589,156,050)

Proceeds on disposal of gproperty, plant and 33,471,669 67,984 33,539,653
eguipment
Decrease/f(Increase) in non-current 421,180 421,180
receivables
Cash flows from financing activities
increase in short-term loans 126,072,592 - 126,072,992
ncrease in consumer deposits 12,182,156 12,182,156
ncrease/(Decrease) in financiat iease 797,625 797,625
fiability
Net increasef{decrease} in cash (163,246,326) (163,246,325)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 229,099,917 229,099,817
of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 65,853,591 65,853,591
year
Net increase/({decrease] in cash {163,246,326) {163,246,325)
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2019
49, GRAP 3 adjustments {continued)
{iv} Adjustment of opening balances

Note Previously Correction of Change in Restated

reported error accounting
policy

Net assets
Accumulated surplus 1 July 2017 2.509,655,396 2,508,655,396
Adjustment to property, plant and 39,729,403 39,725,403
equipment
Adjustment to building plans 2,263,539 2,263,539
Adjustment to retention 4,784,265 4,784,265
Adjustment to BICL's 13,448,592 13,448,592
Adjustment to housing debtors (14,297,234} {14,297,234)
Total 2,509,655,396 45,928,565 2,555,583,961
Revaluation reserve 1 July 2017 1,548,084,422 1,548,084,422
Adjustment to praperty, pilant and (33,395,640) 133,395,640}
equipment
Total 1,548,084,422 (33,395,640) - 1,514,688,782

Note Previously Correction of Change in Restated

reported error accounting classification
policy
Assets and liabilities
Property, plant and equipment {Opening 5,653,641,447 705,936 5,654,347,383
balance as at 1 July 2018)
VAT control {Opening balance as at 1 July 43,471,827 {351,739) 48,120,092
2018)
Trade and other receivables from exchange 248,832,757 282,839 {4,973,535) 244,142,061
transactions {Opening balance as at 1 July
2018)
Receiwvables from non-exchange 88,573,929 {15,066,738) 4,973,535 78,480,726
transactions {Opening balance as at 1 July
2018)
Trade and other payables from exchange 316,821,152 (24,222,249) 292,598,903
transactions {Opening balance as at 1 July
2018)
Unspent condit:onal grants and receipts 53,749,523 {769,504) 52,980,019
{Opening balance as at 1 July 20xx]
..-:‘\.
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Staternents for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

49, GRAP 3 adjustments {continued]
v} Detail notes affected by the reclassification

Due to the implementation of a new financial statements tool, all gains and losses were disclosed th a new note to the Statement of
financial Performance and the nett effect is either disclosed in the income or expenditure section

Reclassification of rental income forgone

The income forgone portion of rental income was incarrecily included in service charges durnng the 2019 financial year and this was
reclassified during the year.

2019
{Increase) / decrease in Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges (24,699,974}
Rertal from fixed assets 24,699,974

vi) Detail notes affected by the change in accounting policy

The following change in accounting policies were implemented

a) Reclassification of grants from housing projects

In terms of the Housing guidehne issued by the Accounting $tandards Board, where construction costs are incurred in terms of a

housing grant, where the municipality is seen as a developer, GRAP 11 must be used Consequently the grant recerved must be
recogmised in terms of GRAP 11, as opposed to GRAP 23 as applied in prior years

2019
(tncrease) / decrease in Revenue from exchange transactions
Transfers and subsidies 11,562,469}
Construction Contract Revenue 1,562,469

b) Availability charges in terms of GRAP 108

GRAP 108, Statutory Receivables became effective at the start of the 2019/20 year and should be applied retrospectively Due to
availability charges falling within the definition of a Statutory receivable, a reclassification was necessitated

2019
(Increase) f decrease in Revenue from exchange transactions
Increase / (decrease) in trade receivables from exchange transactions {Opening Balance 1 July) (4,973,535)
Increase / (decrease) in recewvables from non-exchange transactions {Opening Balance 1 July) 4,973,535
209
{Increase} / decrease in Revenue from exchange transactions
Increase / {decrease) in Trade receivables from exchange transactions {4,633,672)
Increase [ {decrease) in receivables from non-exchange transactions 4,633,672
-,
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annuat Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2019

49.  GRAP 3 adjustments (continued}
wii) Detail notes affected by the prior period correction

a) Property, plant and equipment

During the financial year several errors on PPE were corrected These corrections resulted mainly from the review of properties
included in the register Properties were corrected which were subdivided, not wathin the control of the municipahty or not previously

included n the asset register

{Increase) / decrease in Accumulated Surplus (Opening Balance 1 july 2018)

Increase / (Decrease) in PPE (Opening Balance 1 July 2018)

Decrease / (increase) in Revaluation reserve (Opening Balance 1 July 2018)

Decrease / (increase} in Trade and other payables (Opening Balance 1 July 2018)

Increase / (decrease) in Trade receivables fram exchange transactions (Opening Balance 1 july 2018)

[Increase) f decrease in Transfers and subsidies
Grants for capital

{Increase) f decrease in Contracted services
Mainterance of unspecified assets

increase / (decrease) in Depreciation
Depreciation

{Increase) f decrease in gains/(losses) on disposal of PPE, 1A & HA
Gains/(losses) on disposal of PPE, |1A & HA

Decrease / (increase) in trade and other Payables
Payments received in advance
Retention

Increase f (Decrease) in Property, plant and equipment
Property, ptant and equipment

{Increase) / Decrease in Provisions
Landfill sites

(Increase)} / decrease in Accumulated Surplus
Offsetting of depreciation

DOecrease / {increase) in Revaluation reserve
Offsetting of depreciation

2019
(39,729,404)

2,676,806
33,395,640
3,374,118

282,839

(2,218,952}

3,182,904

663,236

240,925

(16,336,152)
120,533

22,596,369

(8,248.862)

439,797

(489,797)
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

49. GRAP 3 adjustments (continued)
b) Building plans

During the year it was identified that transactions were erroneously included in the document and electronic invoiaing system, which
was used as the basis for calculation of the provision for payments recetved in 2dvance. This error was corrected retrospectively.

2019
{Increase)} / decrease in Accumulated Surplus (Opening Batance 1 July 2018) (2,263,539}
increase [ (Decrease) in VAT control {Opening Balance 1 luly 2018) (351,735)
Decrease / (increase)in Trade and other payables (Opening Balance 1 July 2018) 2,615,274

c) Retention

Detaled review with user departments confirmed finalisation and the lapse of retentron balances of certain projects. These retention
corrections were adjust retrospectively

2019
(increase)] f decrease in Accumulated Surplus (Opening Balance 1 July 2018) (4,784,265)
Decrease / (increase) in Trade and other payables {Opening Balance 1 July 2018) 4,784,265

d] Bulk Infrastructure Contribution Levies {BICL)

After meetings held with the appropriate user departments and review of their Bulk Infrastructure Contribution Levies registers, 1t was
identified that some entries were incorrectly marked as being refundable. These adjustment were made retrospectively

2019
{Increase) / decrease in Accumulated Surplus {Opening Balance 1 july 2018} {13,448,593}
Decrease / {increase} in Trade and other payables {Opening Balance 1 july 2018} 13,448,593
{Increase) f decrease in Service Charges
Electricity services {26,179,908}
Decrease / (increase) in Trade and other payables
Payments received in advance 26,179,908

e} TASK provision

A detail review was performed on the TASK prowvision created, and it was confirmed that not all entries have an audited outcome 1n
term of the TASK evaluation process These entries were corrected retrospectively

2019
{Increase) / decrease in Employee Related Cost
TASK backpay (11,800,889)
Decrease f (increase) in Current portion of defined henefit obligations
Provision for TASK backpay 11,800,889

e
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Staternents for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

49, GRAP 3 adjustments {continued)
f) Invoices paid relating to prior year

During the review of transactions, it was discovered that mvoices relating to 2018/19 was paid during the current year. This was
corrected retrospectively

2019
Increase / (decrease} in contracted services
Business and Advisory 27,500
Electrical 254
Maintenance of building and facilities 405,567
Maintenance of equipment 26,489
Maintenance of unspecified assets 117,150
Safeguard and security 152,812
Increase f [decrease) in operating leases
Operating leases 58,136
Increase / (decrease) in inventory
Inventory 539,495
Increase / (decrease) in operational cost
Advertising, publicity and marketing 13,375
Communication 38,442
Insurance underwriting 1,650
Uniform and protective clothing 1,470
(tncrease) f decrease in VAT control
Accrual input VAT 204,405
Decrease / {increase) in Trade and other payables
Other trade creditors (1,586,745}
g) Housing debtors
During the year housing debtors were reviewed and correctianis were retrospectively adjusted.

2020
{Increase) / decrease in Accumulated Surpius {Opening Batance 1 July 2018) 14,297,234
Decrease / [increase) in Unspent conditional grants (Opening balance 1 July 2018} 769,504
{Decrease) f increase in Receivables fram non-exchange transactions (Opening balance 1 fuly 2018) (15,066,738)
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

49, GRAP 3 adjustments {continued)
h) Payabtes and receivables

Detaited review of receivable and payable balances in the prior year, some balances were found to have been incorrectly classified in
the prior year. These classification corrections were adjust retrospectively

2020
{Decrease) / increase in Receivables from non-exchange transactions 225,175
{Decrease) f increase in Trade receivables from exchange transactions 32,188
Decrease / {increase) in Trade and other payables {257,363)

r—————— .

viii) Detail notes affected by the restatement of notes

a} Principal and Agent arrangement
with the adoption of GRAP 108, acquiring by principle and agents, an note has been included as required by GRAP 109 to indicate the
financial effect of principal and agent arrangements

b) Cash flow statement - reclassifications and corrections
Prior year comparatives were restated, due to the effect of the corrections detailed above

¢) Financial instruments - Maturity Analysis
The financial instruments note, specifically the fair value of assets (note 55.1), hquidity risk {note 55.7) and credit risk management (note
55.8) was restated due to the correction of errors and change in accounting policies as previously indicated

d) Awards to close family members in service of the state
Included in note 53 new information relating to last year's transactions were disclosed and corrected retrospectively

e) Contingent liabilities
The contingent liabilities in regards to the provision for TASK backpay was updated due to the estimate of certain employees not yet being
reliably measured, as the outcomes of TASK had not been finalised by year-end

Previously Restated

Reported Amount
TASK backpay 2,759,059
2,759,059

ix) Detail notes affected by the change in estimates

a) Change in estimate: Provision for rehabilitation of landfill

During the year the municipality revised its provision for the rehabilitation provision of landfill sites to include past-closure monitoring and
inspection costs as 15 required by the hcence conditions and as clarified in the "Accounting for Landfill Sites” gusdelines issued by the
Accounting Standards Board

The net effect of the change in estimate in the current year was an decrease in the provision to the amount of R48,9 million. The change
will lead to a reduction of operating costs in future periods of the same amount as the post-closure monitoring and inspection costs will be
funded from the provision

b} Change in Estimate - Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment reviewed:
A review of the useful lives and residual values of items of Property, Plant and Equipment has been performed  The change in the
estimated useful lives and residual values of various assets of the mumaipality has resulted in 2 decrease in depreciation of R38,858,609

(2019 R3,196,254).
- et ! :-
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

50. Adjusting avents after the reporting date

Exemption for salary increases

With the issuing of the financial statements for audit, Drakenstein Municipality was in the process of a salary exemption
application process, where it applied for the exemption from the Circular 32/2018 - Salary and Wage Collective Agreement 2018-
2021 for the 2020/21.

At date of 1ssuing for audit, Orakenstein Municipality recognized, measured and disclosed certain items, on the basrs that a salary
exemption will be granted, but also raised a contingent liability for the difference between the two scenarios where an exemption
would be granted and where it would not be granted These three areas and the impact thereof were as follows

- Provision for bonuses R1,432,719
- Post employment Medical Benefit R2,347,000
- Long Service Awards R4,648,000

On 18 December, the Arbitrator in the case ruled against Drakenstein Municipality, and thus the salary exemption application was
not granted. Due to this fact, the Provision for bonusses, Post-employment medical benefit laibility and Long service awards
liability had to be adjusted to the scenario, where the salary exemption application was not successful

51. Unauthorised, irregutar, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
$1.1 Unauthorised expenditure
Application of Sec {a) of the definition of Unauthorised expenditure in terms of the

MFMA - Total Operating Budget
Opening balance as previously reported

Add. Unauthorised expenditure — current

Add Unauthorised expenditure - pricr period

Less” Amounts written-off — current

Less- Amounts written-off - prior period -

Closing balance .

Application of Sec (b} of the definition of Unauthorised expenditure in terms of the MFMA - Total Operating Budget

Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure - Per Sec (b} of the definition of
Unauthorised expenditure {(Vote - Department)

Opening balance as previousiy reported 13,268,809
Add: Unauthorised expenditure - current 34,503,469
Add: Unauthorised expenditure - prior period - 13,268,809
Less Amounts written-off — current {13,268,809) -
Closing balance 34,503,469 13,268,809

-"
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Staterments for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

figures in Rand

2020

2019

51. Unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure {continued)

201572020
Unauthorised expenditure per Vote [Department Budget Actual Unauthorised Amount written
expenditure expenditure off by council
Office of the City Manager 4,552,112 3,954,927
Corporate Services 157,095,965 155,106,433
Community Services 478,491,433 418,970,851
Financial Services 130,797,902 165,301,371 {34,503, 469}
Planning and Economic Development 54,225,506 50,498,427 .
Engineering Services 1,557,337,110 1,513,743,251
Department of Chief Audit Executive 7,889,045 7,720,121
Department of Risk & Compliance 2,908,400 1,769,812
Oepartment of IDP & PM5 5,365,531 5,021,457
Department of Communication 5,575,540 3,911,309
2,404,238,544 2,325,997,959 (34,503,469)

The unauthonsed expenditure 15 due to the capitahsation of interest as a result of negotiations during the restructuring process. Refer to

note 43.1 and 14 far more information

2018/2019
Unauthorised expenditure per Vote {Department) Budget Actuat Unauthorised Amount written
expenditure expenditure off by council
Community Servites 506,886,233 426,294,720
Corporate Services 102,280,714 101,458,432
Department of Chief Audit Executive 3,525,815 3,277,503
Department of Communication 1,829,009 1,369,046
Department of 1IDP & PMS 857,770 302,870
Department of Risk & Compliance 2,302,872 2,266,758
Engineering Services 1,620,967,401 1,611963,284
Frnancial Services 74,959,171 62,627,716 -
Office of City Manager {546,557) {820,819)
Planning and Economic Development 58,478,752 55,958,777
2,371,541,180 2,264,698,287 B
Application of Sec {a) of the definition of Unauthorised expenditure in terms of the MFMA - Total Capital Budget
Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure - Per Sec (a) of the definition of
Unauthorised expenditure {Total Capital Budget)
Opening balance as previously reported 8,749,147
Add Unauthorised expenditure — current 8,749,147
Add: Unauthorised expenditure — prior period
Less: Amounts written-off — current (8,749,147}
Closing batance 8,749,147
The over expenditure incurred during the year is attributable to the following categories
Cash
Parys sub-station fire 8,749,147
T

>
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

figures in Rand

2020 2019

51. Unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure {continued)

Application of Sec {b} of the definition of Unauthorised expenditure in terms of the MFMA - Capitai Budget

Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure - Per Sec {b) of the definition of

Unauthorised expenditure {Vote - GFS}
Opening balance as previously reported

Add: Unauthorised expenditure - current
Less: Amounts written-off — current

Closing balance

2019/2020
Unauthorised expenditure per Vote (Departments)

Community Services

Corporate Services

Department of Communication
Department of Risk & Comphance
Engineering Services

Financial Services

Office of City Manager

Planning and Economic Development

2018/2019
Unauthorised expenditure per Vote {Departments)

Community Services

Corporate Services

Department of Chief Audit Exe
Department of Communication
Engineering Services

Financial Services

Planming and Economic Development

18,724,999
18,764,268
{18,724,999) -
18,764,268
Budget Actual Unauthorised Amount written
expenditure expenditure  off by council
80,477,740 62,712,484 -
9,246,981 6,234,938 -
206,345 206,280 -
30,000 30,000 -
215,877,592 198,043,722 - -
1,765,561 1,765,560 - -
25,001 825 -
764,971 764,035
308,394,191 269,757,844 - -
Budget Actual Unauthorised Amount written
expenditure expenditure  off by council
86,538,845 76,581,263
7,896,509 7,896,498
59,506 59,506
24,773 24,773 -
467,041,401 485,766,400 {18,724,999) 18,724,999
1,275,318 1,275,292 - .
929,809 929,799
563,766,161 572,533,531 (18,724,999) 18,724,999
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Drakenstein Municipality

audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

51. Unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure (continued)

51.2 trregular expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 1,452,345 39,619,202

Add: Irregular expenditure - current 4,904,499 9 687,909

Add Irregular expenditure - prior period - .

Less: Amounts approved by Council * (3,332,119} {47,854,766)
Closing balance 3,024,725 1,452,345

* Council certifted an amount of R46,299,919 {award amount) for CES 07/2015 and CES08/2018 as irrecoverable and to be written off

Incident

Service Pravider in Service of the State

Expansion of contract CES 07/2015 (Upgrade and
extension of the Wellington Waste Water Treatment
Works to 16ML / day - Mechanical and Electrical

Installation)

Expansion of contract CES 08/2015 (Upgrade and
extension of the Wellington Waste Water Treatment

Works to 16ML / day . Civil Works)

Requirements for services were not dealt with as a
stngle transaction This resulted in non-compliance
with Regulation 12(3) of the Municipal Suppiy Chain

Management Regulations, 2005

Rewvised interpretation of the application of

Regulation 32 of the Municipal Supply Chain
Management Regulations as inciuded in MFMA

Circular No 96 dated 24 July 2019

Expansion of contract COM P3/2017 without prior

approval by the delegated authority

Non-comphance to procurement process for the
hiring of a digger {oader and tipper truck for works at

Saron and Paarl Waste Water Treatment

Disciplinary steps/criminal
proceedings

Transaction identified during the

year, investigated and report
submitted to Council Amounts
written off as recommended

Invest:gated and report
submitted to Council. Amounts
written off as recommended

Investigated and report
submitted to Council Amounts
written off as recommended

2019 Investigated and report
submitted to Council. Amounts
written off as recommended

nvestigated and report
submitted to Council. Amounts
written off as recommended

The incident is subject to further

tnvestigation

Investigated and report
submitted to Council
Expenditure was written off by
Council on 25 August 2020

42,615

734,883

1,367,618

1,118,585

40,653

6,000

2,074,945

5,683,117

477 888

1,445,961
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Staterments for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

51. Unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure {continued]

The award was made to the incorrect supplier The incident is subject to further 73,478
investigation

Devaition appointment for the hiring, cleaning, The incident is subject to further 506,928

maintenance and delivery of chemical toilets investigation

Composition of bid committees The incident is subject to further 486,904

investigation

Deviation appointment for CCTV monitoring in Paarl The incident is subject ta further 152,835
investigation
4,904,499 9,687,909
All above mentioned amounts exclude VAT
§1.3 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance as previously reported - 1,863
Add- Fruitless & wasteful expenditure - current 256,541
Add: Fruitless & wasteful expenditure - prior period 282,838 -
Less: Amounts approved by Council {1,863)
Closing balance . 5:’.9:379_ .
Incident Disciplinary steps/criminal
proceedings
A double payment occurred on contract COM All avenues to be persued to 282,838 =2
P2/2016 for the canstruction of a new club house coflect the monies from the
including cloak rooms at Hermon Sports Grounds service provider
Payment of interest to SARS Additional tax was levied on the - 1,863
municipality as a result of an
input vat claim on an invoice that
was disallowed by SARS due to
non-comphance to the VAT Act
Payment of interest to Eskom interest was ievied due to 256,541
purported late payment as a
result of hmited operational
hours of the National Payment
Systern on public holidays and
weekends
539,379 1,863
- W,

e

AUDITOR:-=-GEMNMERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

Auditing to build pubhc confidence
KA -8 March "7

434



Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annuval Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
52. Additional disclosures in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act
SALGA Audit fees PAYE Ui
contributions
As 3t 30 June 2020
Opemng balance {5,180.877) - - .
Subscription/fees 6,602,525 7,981,582 86,590,288 6,675,847
Amount paid — current year - {7,981,582) {79,387,202) {6,141,368)
Balance (prepaid} / unpaid ** 1,421,648 7,203,086 538,479
Pension Medical aid
As at 30 June 2020
Subscription/fees 104,788,535 41,818,207
Amount paid — current year {104,788,535) {41,818,207)
Balance (prepaid) / unpaid ** -
SALGA Audit fees PAYE LIF
contributions
As at 30 June 2019
Opening balance (4,377,820) -
Subscription/fees 6,007,874 8,446,736 83,143,228 6,787,055
Armount paid - current year {6,810,931) (8,446,736) {83,143,228) {6,787,059)
Balance (prepaid} / unpaid ** {(5,180,877) -

Pension Medical aid
As at 30 June 2019
Subscription/fees 96,479,568 38,210,684
Amount paid - current year {96.479,568) {38,210,684)

Balance {prepaid) / unpaid **

** These balances are either included in (debtars) or creditors respectively

VAT output payables and VAT input receivables sre shown in Note 18 All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughout the

year

Non-Compliance with Chapter 11 of the Municipal Finance Management Act
Non Compliance to the following sections of chapters of the MFMA

CHAPTER SECTION SUB-SECTION
8 74 1
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

54. Capital commitments

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure

Approved and contracted for

Infrastructure * 182,075,413 127,650,860
Other * 10,360,577
Intangibles * 3,240,660 -
Total 185,316,073 138,011,437

* All capital commitments exclude VAT,
55. Financial instruments

55.1 Fair value of financial instruments

The management of the municipality 15 of the opinion that the carrying value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities recorded at
amaortised cost in the audited annual financial statements approximate their fair values, except for the listed Government stock. In
accordance with GRAP 104 the Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabihties, together with the carrying amounts shown in the

Statement of financial position, are as follow

Financial assets
Fair value
Listed investments

Amortised cost

Non-current receivables from exchange transactions
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Current portron of non-current receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Non-current
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Current

Consumer deposits

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Current portion of borrowings

Current portion of iease liabilities

Total financial tiabilities

Total financiat instruments

14
15

19
20
14
15

2020 2018

Carrying amount  Fair value  Carrying amount  Fair value
82,298 82,298 124,967 124,967
328,805 328,805 834,851 834,851
317,499,564 317,499,564 270,886,979 270,886,979
104,778 104,778 150,118 150,118
77,549,461 77,549,461 65,853,591 65,853,591
395,482,608 395,482,608 337,725,539 337,725,539
395,564,906 395,564,906 337,850,506 337,850,506
1,636,956,881 1,636,956,881 1,446,315,653 1,446,315,653
1,440,194 1,440,194 2,570,530 2,570,530
1,638,397,075 1,638,397,075 1,448,886,183 1,448,886,183
52,606,653 52,606,653 57,004,529 57,004,529
297,246,729 297,246,729 264,853,942 264,853,942
19,681,848 19,681,848 184 383,046 184,388,046
1,717,999 1,717,999 2,657,091 2,657,091
371,253,229 371,253,229 508,903,608 508,903,608
2,009,650,304 2,009,650,304 1,957,789,791 1,957,789,791

(1,614,085,398) (1,614,085,398) (1,619,939,285) (1,619,939,285)
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

55. Financial instruments {continued}
The Fair Values of Financial Assets and financial Liabilities are determined as follow

The Fair Value of Long term liabilities is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments

The fair value of Other Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities were determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of
agreements entered into between the municipality and other parties as well as the current payment ratio's of the municipality's debtors

The audited annual financial statements include holdings in Listed Government Stock which are measured at Fair Value (Note 7). Fair Value
15 estimated with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets is determined with reference to quoted market prices.

Assumptions used in determining fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The table below analyses Financial Instruments carried at Fair Value at the end of the reporting pericd by the leve! of fair-value hierarchy as
required by GRAP 104. The different levels are based on the extent to which quoted prices are used in the calculation of the Fair Value of
the Financial Instruments.

The levels have been defined as follow:
Level 1

Fair Values are based on quoted market prices {unadjusted) in active markets for an identical instrument

Level 2

Fair Values are calculated using valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (1 e as prices) or indirectly (i1.e. derived
from prices). This category includes instruments valued using quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments, quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active, or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs
are directly or indirectly observable from market data

Level 3

Fair Values are based on valuation technigues using significant unobservable inputs This category includes all instruments where the
valuation technique tncludes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation. Also, this category includes instruments that are valued based on gquoted prices for sirmilar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments

30 June 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Leve!l 3 Totat
Financial assets
Financial instruments at fair vatue:
Listed investments 82,298 B 82,298
30 june 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial instruments at fair value:
Listed investments 124,968 - - 124,968

55.2 Capital risk management

The municipality manages its capital to ensure that the municipality will be able to continue as a going concern while delivering sustainable
services to consumers through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. o
-
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financral Statements for the year ended 30 lune 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

§5. Financial instruments (continued)

The capital structure of the municipality consists of debt, which includes the Long-term Borrowings disciosed tin Note 14, Cash and Cash
Equwalents disclosed in Note 12; and Equity, comprising Funds, Reserves and Accumulated Surplus as disclosed in Notes 23 to 24 and the
Statement of changes in net assets

55.3 Financial risk management objectives

Due to largely non-trading nature of activities and the way in which they are financed, muniapalities are not exposed to the degree of
financial nsk faced by business entities. Financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risks that would be
typical of listed companies to which the IfRS mainly apply. Generally, financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational
activities and are not held to manage the risks facing the municipality in undertaking its activitias

The Department Financial services monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal polices and
procedures. These risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity. Compliance with policies and procedures is reviewed by internal
auditors on a continuous basis, and by external avditors annually. The municipality does not enter into or trade financtal instruments for
speculative purposes

Internal audit and risk ranagement, responsible for monitoring and responding to potential risk, regorts quarterly to the municipality’s
audit committee, an independent body that monstors the effectiveness of the internal audit function

55.4 Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant Accounting Policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of Financial Asset, Financial Liatulity and Equity Instrument are
disclosed in the Accounting Policies to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

55.5 Market risk

The municpality's activities expose it primarily to the financial nsks of changes in interest rates (see Note 5% 6 below} No formal policy
exists to hedge volatilities in the interest rate market

55.6 Interest rate risk

Credit risk management is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows assaciated with a financial instrument will fluctuate in
amount as a result of market interest changes.

Potential concentrations of interest rate risk on financial assets consist mainly of fixed deposit investments and bank and cash balances

The municipality 1s not expased to a high level of interest rate nsk on its inancial habilities. All of the municipality’s interest bearing external
loan lrabilities, as detailed in Appendix "A’, are fixed interest rate loans. Similarly with financial assets, the municipality invests its susplus
funds on call deposit interest rate deposits with banks for fixed terms not exceeding one year.

The municipality’s maximum exposures to interest rates on Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are detalled in the Credit Risk
Management section of this note

55.7 Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Council. The municpality manages liquidity risk by effectively managing
its warking capital, capital expenditure, external borrowings and cash flows. Standby credit facilities are available with the municipality’s
matn banker to cater for any unexpected temporary shortfall in operating funds.

-
- ,:"
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand ZQZD 2019
§5. Financial instruments [continued)
30 June 2020
Within 1 year 2to0 5years S years + Total
Maturity analysis
Annuity loans 201,433,182 953,981,047 2,271,844,632 3,427,258,861
Finance 1,951,234 1,509,005 - 3,460,239
Pavyables from exchange transaction 297,246,729 - 297,246,729
500,631,145 955,490,052 2,271,844,632 3,727,965,829
30 june 2019
Within 1 year 21t0 5 years 5 years + Total
Maturity analysis
Annuity loans 346,965,300 1,497,340,151 556,536,834 2,400,842,285
Finance 3,027,669 2,807,932 - 5,835,601
Payables from exchange transaction 264,853,942 - 2‘64,853,942
614,846,911 1,500,148,083 556,536,834 2,6‘71,531,828

The municipality expects to meet its other obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets. The
municipality expects to maintain its current debt to equity ratio. This will be achieved through the annual increase in tariffs to maintain the
accumulated surplus, as well as the increased use of unsecured bank loan facilities

§5.8 Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on Its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the municipality

Potential concentrations of credit risk consist mainly of fixed deposit investments, long-term dehtors, consumer debtors, other debtars
short-term investment deposits and bank and cash balances

The municipality manages credit risk in its borrowing and investing activities by only dealing with well established financiai institutions of
high credit standing, and by spreading its exposure over a range of such institutions in accordance with its approved investment policies.
Credit risk relating to consumer debtors is managed in accordance with the municipality's credit control and debt collection policy. The
municipality’s credit exposure is spread over a farge number and wide variety of consumers and is not concentrated in any particular sector
or geographical area. Adequate provision has been made for anticipated bad and doubtful debts Additional information relating to the
analysis of consumer debtors is given in the accounting policies and Note 11 to the audited annual finanoial statements

The municipality does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
charactenistics. The municipality defines counterparties as having simiar characteristics if they are related entities. The credit risk on liguid

funds is hmited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the audited annual financial statements, which is ret of impairment losses, represents
the municipality’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtamed.

The maxirnurm credit and interest risk exposure in respect of the relevant financial instruments is as follow

Investrments 7 82,298 124,967
Long-term receivables 433,583 984,969
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 10 317,499,564 270,886,979
Bank and cash batances 12 77,549,461 65,853,591
Maximum credit and interest risk exposure 395,564,906 337,850,506
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Drakenstein Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2020

2019

55. Financial instruments {continued)

55.9 Other price risks

The municipahty is not exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments as the mumicipahity does not trade these investments.

56. Additional disclosure in terms of the Broad-Based Black Econamic Empowerment Act

Information on compliance with the Broad- Based 8lack Economic Empowerment Act {B-BBEE) is included in the Annual Report under the

section titted Employment Equity
57. Related party disclosures

57.1 Nature of related party relationships

Retated party
Compensation made to Key Management Personne
Compensation made to Councillors

57.2 Related party transactions
Revenue

Consumer services rendered to Key Management Personnel
Consumer services rendered to Councillors

57.3 Related party balances
Outstanding balances
Consumer accounts

Key Management Personnel
Councillors

Nature of relationship
Refer tonote 38 1
Refer to note 39

80,704 79,417
1,419,208 1,269,763
1,499,912 1,349,180

77258
77.258

The consumer services are in accordance wath approved tanffs that was advertised to the public. No bad debt expenses had been

recognised in respect of amounts owed by related parties

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. Consumer Deposits were received from Key Management Personnel
and Councillors No expense has been recognized in the period for bad or doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related

parties

Mot all persons in the service of the state i1s seen as related parties as defined in GRAP 20, as they do not necessariy control or have an
interest that gives them significant influence over the muricipahty.
Regulations 46, awards to close family members of persons in the service of the state are disclosed in note 53

for disclosure purposes in terms of Supply Chain Management
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 lune 2620

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

58. Retirement benefit information

The municipality makes provision for post-retirement benefits to eligible Councillors and employees who belong to different pension
schemes These funds are governed by the Pension Funds Act and include both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes

The only obligation of the municipality with respect to the retirement benefit plans is to make the specified contributions. Where councilors
/ employees leave the plans prior to full vesting of the contributions, the contributions payable by the municipality are reduced by the
amount of forfeited contributions.

The total expense recognised in the Staterment of financial performance of R 104,788,535 (2019 R 96,479,569) represents contributions
payable to these plans by the municipality at rates specified in the rules of the plans

These schemes are subject to a tri-annual, bi-annual or annual actuarial valuation as set out hereunder
a) LA Retirement Fund {Previously Cape loint Pension Fund)
The LA Retirement Fund operates both as a defined benefit and defined contribution scheme

Defined benefit scheme

The contribution rate payable is under the defined benefit section is 27%, 9% by the members and 18% by their councils. The actuanal
valuation report at 30 June 2019 disclosed an actuarial valuation amounting to R1,655,893,000 {30 June 2018; R1,776,181,000), with a net
accumulated surplus of R11,200,000 (2018 R63,423,000), with a funding level of 100 7% (30 June 2018 103.7%)

Defined contribution scheme

The actuarial valuation report at 30 June 2019 indicated that the defined contribution scheme of the fund 15 in a sound financial position,
with a assets amaunting to R1,960,090,000 (30 June 2018: R2,018,237,000), net investment reserve of RO {30 June 2018 RO) and with a
funding tevel of 100% (2018: 100%).

The actuary concluded that :

. The Pensioner account has a funding level of 100.7% with n surplus of R11.2 million and 15 1n a sound financial
condition as at the valuation date

. The DC Section has a funding level of 100% and is in a sound Financial condition,

O Overall the fund is :n a sound financial condition with a surplus of R11.2 million and the overall funding level of
100.3%

. The nature of the assets ts suitable for the Fund.

U The assets are appropriately matched relative to the term and nature of the liabilities.

. The Fund's investment strategy is suitable

. The risk benefits are partially re-insured | consider this to be appropriate for the size and nature of the fund

The last statutory valuation performed as at 30 June 2019 revealed that the net assets of the fund amounted to R26,215,000,000 (30 june
2018: R24,108,000,000 ). The members share account and processing reserve account had assets amounting to R25,389,735,000 (2018:
R23,318,184,000), and the pensions account had assets amounting to R647,516,000 (2018, RE51,455,000) with funding levels of 100.3%
and 124.9% (30 June 2018 100.4% and 128.0%) for the Pensions Account and the Share Account respectively The Preservation Pension
Account showed a surplus of RO and was 100% funded for both 2019 & 2018. The contribution rate paid by the members (7.50%) and the
municipalities {7.50%/19 50%) is sufficient to fund the benefits accruing from the fund in the future. The actuary certified that the structure
of the assets is appropriate relative to the nature of the liabilities, given normal circumstances and that the Fund is in a sound financial

condition as at the valuation date

s“
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Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

58. Retirement benefit information (continued}
b) Consolidated Retirement Fund for local government (Previously Cape loint Retirernent Fund)

The last statutory valuation performed as at 30 June 2019 revealed that the net assets of the fund amounted to R26,215,000,000 (30 June
2018: R24,108,000,000 } The members share account and processing reserve account had assets amounting to R25,389,735,000 {2018
R23,318,184,000), and the pensions account had assets amounting to R647,516,000 (2018 R651,455,000) with funding levels of 100.3%
and 124 9% {30 June 2018 100 4% and 128 0%) for the Pensions Account and the Share Account respectively The Preservation Pension
Account showed a surplus of RO and was 100% funded for both 2019 & 2018 The contribution rate paid by the members {7 50%) and the
muncipalities {7.50%/19.50%) 15 sufficient to fund the benefits accruing from the fund in the future. The actuary certified that the structure
of the assets is apgropriate relative to the nature of the liabilities, given normal circumstances and that the Fund is in a sound financial
condition as at the valuation date

c) SALA Pension Fund
The SALA Pension Fund operates both as a defined benefit and defined contribution scheme

The statutory valuation performed as at 1 July 2018 revealed that the assets of the fund amounted to R14,298,600 00
{30 June 2015: R13,231,200.00}, with funding levels of 96 0% (30 June 2015. 100%) Recommended that employers continue to contribute
at the current rate of 19 18% of pensioners salaries

{t 5 the actuary's opinion that
. They are satisfied with the investment strategy of the Fund,
. The nature of the assets is, in their opinion, suitable for the nature of the liabilities of the Fund as defined in the Rules of the
Fund;
. The matching of assets with the habilit:es of the fund is adequate, and
. The insurance arrangements are appropriate compared to the cover provided can be regarded as financially sound at the
valuation date

d) Municipat Counciliors’ Pension Fund

The Municipal Councitors Pension Fund operates as a defined contribution scheme The statutory valuation performed as at 30 lune 2018
revealed that the assets of the fund amounted to R1,798,030,000 (30 fune 2017: R1,480,549,000), with funding levels of 103 26%

(30 June 2017° 101 31%) The contribution rate paid by the members (13.75%) and counail {15%) is sufficient to fund the benefits accruing
from the fund in the future. The Actuary certified that the Fund was in a sound financial condition as at 30 June 2018, in that the assets of
the fund were sufficient to cover the accrued service habilities including the recommended contingency reserves in full.

e) National Fund For Municipal Workers

The fund operates as a defined contribution fund and in terms of the rules of the fund category A and category C members contribute at a
rate as agreed upon by the Local Authority and the member, subject to an absolute mimmum contribution of 2% and 5% of their
remuneration respectively

Category C-Members, appeinted after 1 July 2012, who are not part of the Schedule shall make monthiy contributions to the Fund equal to
7.5% of their Remuneration

The Local Authority must contribute in respect of category A and category C members such an amount as agreed between the Local
Authority and the fund, subject to a minimum contribution rate of 2% and 5% of their remuneration respectively Category 8 members are
members who belong to both category A and C and the Local Authority must, on behalf of such members, not contribute less than 7% of
their remuneration. The contnibution rates stipulated above include the amount payable towards the insured risk benefits policy

The last statutory valuation performed as at 30 June 2019 revealed that the net assets of the fund amounted to R15,393,671,000 {30 June
2015  R10,050,029,000}, with funding levels of 100.46% (30 June 2015 100.42%). The actuary certified that the assets of the fund are
sufficient to cover 100.46% of the members’ Fabilities, also that it can be expected that the funding level of a fund of this nature will
fluctuate around 100%, for example due to timing differences in investment and receipt of mones, slight mismatching of assets and

habilities and processing errors
e
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Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

58. Retirement benefit information {continued)
f} The Municipal Workers Retirement Fund (Previously South African Municipal Workers Union Provident Fund)

The Municipal Workers Retirement Fund is a defined contribution scheme. Members contribute at a rate of not less than 7.5% of salaries,
as required by the Rules The employers contnibute at a total rate of not less than 18%. From 1 luly 2017, members and employers that fall
under other bargaining councils or forums are not bound by the above minimum contribution rates. The statutory valvation performed as
at 30 June 2017 revealed that the assets of the fund amounted to R7,720,948 000 (30 June 2014 R6,574,75 00), with funding levels of
102.0% (30 June 2014: 111.7%). As a percentage of members’ Fund Credits, the investment smoothing reserve has decreased from 5.6% to
4.9% over the valuation period. As 2 percentage of the market vaiue of assets, it has decreased marginally from 4 6% to 4.4%.The Fund's
assets are sufficient to cover the members’ Fund Credits, the targeted levels of the risk benefits reserve and the data and processing error
reserve, and an investment smoothing reserve of 4.9% of members’ Fund Credits as at 30 June 2017 In addition, there is brought-forward
surplus of some R152.8 million which has been allocated to former members and is awaiting payment. The Fund is therefore in a sound
financial position,

‘s"“‘
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59. Contingent liabilities

Paarl Print (Pty) Ltd - Destruction of property - Claim for damages

A fire destroyed the Paarl Print property erf 25867, Paarl during September 2009 As a result of this incident, the apphicant during March
2012 lodged a claim against the Municipality to the amount of R448,819,503 79 (2019: R448,819,503.79 ). Claim was referred to Council’s
insurers and notice of intention to defend was lodged {1y the insurer’s fegal representatives. A court date has not yet been set. Should
Council be unsuccessful in defending the claim, there is a possibility that the claim will be settled No further action since 2012

D Theys, OL Veroni & H Carolissen - Damages
The plaintiffs are claiming from the Municipatity for damag=s after hitting a sandbag and then collided with a fence. The claims of D Theys,
OL Veroni and HL Carolissen were consolidated into one cas- arrd has since been settled. The claim amounted to R416,000 in 2018/19

M & T De Villiers - Damages

Claim for damages due to a fire. The matter was referred to cus internal insurer department on 14/12/2015 Attorney firm Visagie Vos was
appointed to act on behalf of Drakenstein Municipality's Insure - The estimated financral exposure to the amount of RO (2019 R351,639)
belonged to the insurer and not the Municipality per se. The imatier has been finalised.

M Siebert
The plaintiff, M Siebert 15 claiming from the Municipality for da nages following a collision.  The matter was referred to the internal
insurance departrment and has been settled. The claim amounted to R9,141in 2018/19

W Swanepoel
The plaintiff, W Swanepoel is clzsiming from the Municipality for dama-ges aiter driving through a pothole  The claim of RO (2019 R23,147)
was referred 1o the Municipality's insurers, but was rejected No furthe © action from the plaint:ff since May 2018

5 Hendricks obo R Hendricks

The plaintff claiming on behalf of her son for general damages. for pain and suffering, loss of amenities of hie, disabiity, and disfigurement
and shock The Municipality is the second respondent, and as such the 1nsurer and appointed attorney has advised that the Municipality
has a good defence as it was wrongly joined - the contingent liability is thu s reduced to RO (2019: R2,736,000)

Dirk du Toit
The plantiff claim is for general damages occurred by a storm water drain. Matter has been finalised The claim amounted to R32,424 in

2018/19

Francois Levens

The plaintiff claim is for general damages, after the plantiff was wrongfully and unlawfully assaulted and robbed Matter referred to
internal insurance departrment and the Municipality filed a plea. but awaits action from the plaintiff The claim was estimated to be
R40D0,000 (2019 R500,000)

Wilma Quinn
The plaintiff claim 15 for general damages occurred by a burst water pipe on her property. The claim amounting to R200,000 (2019
R200,000), was referred to internal insurance department A discovery affidavit wa s filled in lanuary 2020, after the previous application

was dismissed

Morne van Rooi
The plaintiff claim is for general damages; after collision by the Plaintiff and a vehicle' of the Municipality. Matter has been settied. The
claim amounted to R17,799 in 2018/19

Karin Smidt
The plaintiff claim is for general damages; after a fall by the Plantiff on a pavement. Matter has been settled The claim amounted to

R151,690 in 2018/19

M Manus

Risk adverse cost order has been issued against the Municipality after the defendant defaulted on their mumicipal bill, brought an order to
have the services reconnected, which was then contested by the Municipality. Rule nisi apolication was made order of the Court and
matter has been finalised. The claim amounted to R37,128 in 2018/19

.
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§9. Contingent liabilities {continued)

Albertus Nel

The plaintiff claim of R53,771 is for general damages after collision by the Plaintiff with a cow in Jan van Riebeeckdrive Claim was received
during 201%/20 and the matter has been referred to the Municipality's Insurers.

Naryna van der Merwe
The plaintiff claim of R31,363 is for general damages, after collision by the Plaintiff with a municipal vehicle Clarm was received during
2019/20 and the matter has been referred to the Municipality's Insurers.

NERSA

NERSA had for the 2019/20 year, approved a lower energy charge per kWh, than was applied for by the municipality. The approval letter
for the 2019/20 was only received after the electricity tariffs for 2019/20 was already implemented on 1 July 2019. The municipality has
been engaging with NERSA for the whole of 2019/20 on this dispute and consequently the municipality has taken NERSA to court. The
matter will be heard on 23 November 2020. The impact of the lower tariffs, should the municipality not succeed in its apphcation, is an e
estimated amount of R20,703,168.

D Hattingh
The municipality has a current arbitration process with the former Director of Engineering Services, who claims an alleged constructive
dismissal - The maximum exposure for the municipality is the payment of the former director’s contract package for 12 months, amounting

to R1,596,747 (2019: RO).

Arbitration cases - unfair dismissals

The municipality has a current arbitration process with Messers, A Absolon, R Williams, D van Rooy, M Jacobs and L Marquard, who all
claim alleged unfair dismissal processes. The maximum exposure for the municipality is the payment of the 12 month's salaries since
dismissal date, amounting te 902,910 (2019: RO)

TASK backpay

The TASK pay scales were introduced from 1 July 2014. At date of implementation, not all job descriptions were graded in terms of TASK
and consequently a process was started where these posts were then graded in terms of TASK and the Municipality became hable to
remunerate employees retrospectively on their TASK level At year-end a contingent liability exists for TASK backpay for those employees in
service, whose job descriptions have not been TASK-graded, amounting to R6,131,558 {2019 R2,759,059)

Jo-Ann Koegelenberg
The plaintiff claim of R98,951 is for general damages. Claim was received during 2019/20 and the matter has been referred to the

Municipality's Insurers.

60. Contingent assets

Neil Lyners & Associates CC

Claim of R300,000 (2019: R300,000) for damages during installation of Civil Infrastructure services under contract CES9/2011 Siyahlala
Formal letter of demand was served on the Respondent dated 22/07/2015. Summons was issued Awaiting a date to appear before &
supervising Judge to prepare for trial. Matter stilt in progress.

Insurance Claim - Parys Substation fire

A dispute with the insured underwriter with regards to the amount of the insurance claim to be paid out by the insurance company, and
the uncertainty on the claim amount to be paid out, no provision could be made in the 2018/19 Capital Adjustment Budget in February
2019 The claim is estimated at R24,394,037 (2019: R24,394,037)

Veolia Water Solutions and Technologies South Africa (Pty) Ltd
Claim for penalties to be imposed due to the delay in the completion of the Welvanpas Reservair. The claim was settied during the year R0

{2019: R1,900,000), per the amicable agreement.
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61. Biological assets
61.1 Biological assets in Drakenstein Municipal area

The Municipality has various species of Proteacea growing on the Paarlberg (Erf 1 Paarl}, a National heritage site Due to the fact that the
plants are growing in @ nature reserve it is protected by the Nature Conservation Act 19 of 1974 a special permit must be obtained to
harvest any seeds produced by these plants These plant grow wild and 1s exposed to natural conditions such as fire, furthermaore there is
no input cost by the municipality in order to enhance the growth of these plants or to control it as what would normally be seen in an
agricultural actinty. These plants produce seedlings on a yearly basis that can result in plants but the municipality cannot determine the
quantity of plants as theses plants are ali in different stages of growth. For the reasons above these plants are not recognised and
accounted for in terms of GRAP 27, Agricuiture. An assessment will be made once GRAP 110, Living and Non-imng Resources, become
effective as to the applicability thereof on these assets.

62. Reporting against the framework for schedule 4 of DORA allocations

Submit project registrations and detail project implementation plans before the prescribed due dates. Department of Provincial and Local
Government is monitoring the averall programme implementation

63. Registered IUDG programmes

2019/2020 Received Expenditure Total
Saron butk water pipe replacement (IUDG) 8,568,702 {8,568,702}
Saron buik storage & water treatment (IUDG) 2,075,687 (2,075,687)
Replace / upgrade water reticulation system {IUDG) 12,780,421 {12,780,421)
Replace [ upgrade sewerage systemns Paarl (IUDG) 5,684,236 {5.684,236)
Reseal of streets /road network {Paarl/West) (1UDG) 11,155,078 {11,155,078)
Upgrading of areas around Paarl east ren{IUDG) 5.368,663 {5,368.663}
Boreholes infrastructure 3,255,340 {3,255,340)
Software licences and maintenance 161,873 [161,873)
49,050,000 {49,050,000) -
2018/2019 Received Expenditure Total
Upgrading of Mbekweni B and C Sports Fields 6,831,538 (6,831,538}
Replacement of Strawberry King bulk water 16,277,356 (16,277,356}
Replacement of Saron bulk water 6,877,193 {6,877,193)
29,986,087 {29,986,087) -
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64. Going concern

in terms of the accounting standard GRAP 1, paragraphs 27 to 30, the annual financiat statements are prepared on a going concern basis
The assumption is based on the fact that the municipality has a constitutional mandate to levy praperty rates and service charges to enable
the municipality to be considered as a Boing concern even though the municipahity will be operational over the short to medium term in a
state where liquidity will be under pressure.

To improve liquidity, the municipality has introduced a revenue management, expenditure management and cost containment programme
including an exercise to restructure existing long-term external loans. For the 2020/21 budget the operating and capital expenditure budget
was reduced considerably, even before the onset of the COVID 19 pandemic. The municipality has made substantial investments in revenue
generating infrastructure over the past five years that created capaaity for development and growth The municipality do have a stable and
growing revenue base, although slower than projected five years ago.

The municipality has not defaulted on payment of creditors By sustaining a revenue collection rate above 95 51%, the municipality do have
the ability to operate as a going concern and to continue rendering services toits commurity
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65. Principal and agent arrangements
Agent arrangements: Traffic services
Agent for the Western Cape Department of Transport and Public Warks

The murnicipahity acts as agent for the Western Cape Department of Transport and Public Works, where it provides motor vehicle
registration and hicenses services on behalf of the Western Cape Department of Transport and Public Works.

Reconciliation of amounts payable to the WC Department of Transport and Public

Works

Balance at beginning of year 1,935,689 {499,952)
Revenue receved on behalf of principal {incl commission} 86,462,553 91,946,483
Revenue recognised by municipality as agency fee * {16,177,657) {15,568,355)
Revenue paid over to the principal {71,790,804) (73,942,487}

* VAT included

429,781 1,935,689

Agent for the National Department of Justice

The municpality acts as agent for the National Department of Justice, where it collects Contempt of court fines imposed for non-
appearance in court of traffic fine offenders. The municipality does not derve any revenue from this functions

Reconciliation of amounts payable to the Department of Justice

Balance at beginning of year 430,300 415,700
Revenue received on behalf of principal 267,900 403,800
Revenue paid over to the principal {344,700) {389,200)

353,500 430,300

Principal arrangements: Traffic services
Issuing of traffic fines

The municipality has a service provider TMT {2019 Synte!l) who acts as agent for the municipahity with the 1ssuing of traffic fines Al
payments are received directly by the municrpality and the service provider invoices the municipality for commission payable

Arnounts remitted, but not received at year-end

Commission received by the agent 2,467,625 2,538,728

Principal arrangements: Financial Services
Agent for the Drakenstein Municipality

The municipality has a service prowder EasyPay (2019: Pay@) who acts as agent for the municipality with the 3rd party collection of debtar
payments All payrnents are paid directly to the municipality and the service provider invoices the municipality for commission payable

Amounits remitted, but not received at year-end 748,678 622,904

Commission received by the agent 2,128,707 1,781,018

Principal arrangements: Financial Services

AUDITOR G EMERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

Audliting to buld public confidznce

W& Karch 2820

451



Drakenstein Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

65. Principal and agent arrangements (continued)
Agent for the Drakenstein Municipality

The municipality has a service provider ONTEC (2019: Utilities World} who acts as agent for the municipality with the sale of prepaid
electricity and water. All payments are received directly by the municipality and the service provider invoices the municipality for
commission payable No penalties are payable if the contract with the agent is terminated.

Armounts rermitted, but not received at year-end 3,392,811 4,323,875
Commission received by the agent 7,815,846 8,176,619
-,

e

AUDITOR-GENERAIL
3O UTH AFRICA

Avditing to buld public cenfidence
KA BMarch 2021



Drakenstein Municipality
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66. Reconciliation of budget surplus/(deficit) with surplus/{deficit) with Statement of Financial Performance

Net surplus/{deficit} per the statement of financial performance

Basis differences 24,073,134
Revenue By Source

Property rates

Property rates - penalties & collection charges (Surcharges and Taxes*) (852,305)

Service charges - electricity revenue

Service charges - water revenue

Service charges - sanitation revenue

Service charges - refuse revenue

Service Charges *

Rental of facilities and equipment (Rental of Fixed Assets*}
Interest earned - external investments

Finance income and Dividends*

Licences and permits

Fines

Transfers recognised - operational / (Transfers and Subs dies*)
Other revenue (Operational Revenue {Exchange}®)
Operational Revenue | Non Exchange)*

Sale of Goods and Rendering of Services®

Censtruction contract revenue

Total

Expenditure By Type

Employee related costs

Remuneration of councillors (Councillor Related Cost “}
Impairment [osses on financial assets

Depreciation & asset impairment {Depreciation and Amortisation *)
imparment Losses

Finance charges {Interest paid *)

Materials and Bulk purchases

Bulk Purchases *

Contracted services

Transfers and grants (Transfers and Subsidies Operational Exp*)
Other expendrture {Operational Expenditure*)

inventory consumed*

Operating Leases*

Lass on disposal of PPE {Gains /(losses) on disposal of PPE, 1A, IP & HA®}

Total

Surplus/(Deficit}
Transfers recognised - capital

Timing differences
Entity differences

Net surplus/deficit per statement of budget comparison

* - Statement of Financial Performance classifications

{1,171,403,016)
{163,949.277)
(116,383,958}
{124,369,960)

1,576,106,211
{15,991,035)
6,153,049
{12,574,622)
{20,240,888)
(82,126,343}
{176,006,115)
137,573,798
{2,368,493)
(12,754,384)
{2,339,190)
(181,526,528)

D —— e —

[2,420,352)

(153,488,029}
293,481
[293,481)

834,343,766
(778,451,728)
(147,284,040}

319,888,635
(55.892,038)
(16,995,091}

{513,851}

{812,730)

————————————

180,713,797

—_——

—_— —

84,073,134

————
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Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019

Budget basis differences mainly relate to Revenue from Housing Grants and the related Housing operating expenditure where Drakenstein
Municipality is regarded as an agent in terms of GRAP amounting to R 429,953 and other differences, where items such as gains and losses
are linked to expenditure budget items, as opposed to the actual nature per GRAP. The mSCOA tables and the format of the Budget
Schedules as issued by National Treasury are not yet fully aligned to the Standards of GRAP and this is therefore the reason for the disparity
in classifications between the 2019/20 Budget and GRAP Annual Financial Statements

67. Budget Information

The budget has been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting m accordance with the prescripts of the Municipal Budget regulations as
well as MFMA Budget circulars. In accordance with the Municipal Budget regulations, the classification basis the municipality presents is
budget is per economic as well as per functional classification {per Vote {Department) and GFS elassification). it should be noted that minor
budget differences between the basis the budget is prepared (accrual basis and prescripts of NT guidance) and actual financial results
{accrual basis in accerdance with GRAP) exssts, mainly related to technical GRAP adjustments required. These differences are not material
and as the basis of preparation is the same {accrual basis) no restatements have been made to the financral information compared to the
budgeted amounts, but where found to be material is explained below

Explanation of voriances between approved and final budget umounts
The reason for the varances between the approved and final budgets are mainly due to reallocations made within the approved budget
parameters allowed for by the Virement Policy of Drakenstein Municipality as approved by Council

Explanation of variances greater than 10%: Final Budget and Actual amounts
Statement of financial position

Current Assets
s Outstanding debtors much more than anticipated.
. Decrease in cash and cash equivalents using trend of the previous year Negative impact of COVID-19 pandemic

Statement of financial performance

Revenue
. Transfers recognised - operotional
Underspending on the allocation from Department of Hurnan Settlements due to various reasons

Expenditure

. finance chorges
Loans were restructured during the financial year. A portion of the interest on loans from certain banks were capitalised and
resulted in overspending due to the correct accounting treatment

. Transfers ond grants
Underspending due to the impact of the lockdown regulations on events

. Other Expenses
Reduction in the provision for Rehabilitation of Landfill Sites
Underspending on the allocation from Department of Human Settlements due to various rea sons
Implementation of various cost containment and expenditure management strategies
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